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About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
Stock Code: 6166.HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial town
projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development was
transformed into a pioneer in hew urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to develop large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and "Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unique abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotioning,
and related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum of
comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning and
design, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary facilities
for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has around 40 subsidiaries including
Langfang VAST Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban
Development Co., Ltd., Ezhou Vast Urban Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban Development Co., Ltd. and
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are responsible for construction and development service of different
industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together with local government of Langfang, Zhangjiakou and Shijiazhuang
of Hebei province, Chuzhou, Anhui province and Ezhou, Hubei province in respect of development of 9 industrial town projects
with project planning areas of approximately 136 sg. km. Focusing on the optimization of infrastructures in the abovementioned
regions, transformation of industry and construction of urbanization as well as building and realizing full integration of working and
living communities for its residents, China VAST Development will spare no effort to become a leading provider and operator of
industrial town in China.
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianjun (Chairman and President)

Mr. Chen Lianggiu (appointed as an executive director

with effect from 17 May 2016 and resigned
with effect from 17 March 2017)

Mr. Yang Yun (Vice President)

Mr. Wang Yagang (Vice President)

Mr. Huang Peikun (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Zhao Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Xiaomei
Mr. Wei Yu
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert

Audit Committee

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman)
Ms. Zhang Xiaomei

Mr. Wei Yu

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Wei Yu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhao Ying

Ms. Zhang Xiaomei
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Mr. Wang Jianjun (Chairman)

Mr. Wei Yu

Ms. Zhang Xiaomei

Company Secretary
Ms. To Yee Man

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Legal Advisors

O’ Melveny & Myers (as to Hong Kong law)

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman) Limited
(as to Cayman Islands law)

Registered Office
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

NEEHR

Principal Place of Business in the PRC
Unit 20703, Level 6

Galaxy SOHO (#8///SOHO)

No. 47 Xiaopaifang Hutong

Dongcheng District

Beijing

China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 1902, China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Langfang Branch

Bank of Hebei Langfang Branch

Industrial Commercial Bank of China Heping Road Branch
Agriculture Bank of China Jiefang Road Branch

China Development Bank

Company’'s Website

www.vastiud.com
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Financial Highlights
HEREE

(in RMB’000 A % F7t)
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For the year ended 31 December
HE212 A31HLEFE
2015 2016 Approximate
RMB RMB Change %
ARY ARY BRA 8%
Revenue Wz 1,4237 million B&  1,965.2 million §& 38.0
Gross profit £ 611.0 million 5 & 624.4 million 58 2.2
Profit before tax B A AR T 681.0 million & & 941.3 million B& 38.2
Profit for the year FEEF 513.6 million B & 668.4 million 5& 30.1
Proposed final dividend BRARHR R (BR) HK10 cents 1l HK12 cents &1l 20.0
per share
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Financial Highlights
HHERE

(in RMB'000 A FE#F7t)

Segment revenue

7 EB UL &R
1%
49% RMB21.2 million
RMB954.3 million S ARM21.288
AR¥9543FHE
FY16
16 BFE
RMB1,965.2 million
ARM1,965.288
50%
RMB989.7 million
AR¥989.7HE

Segment gross profit

2 EBER
60%
RMB375.2 million
ARM¥3752858 FY16
16 THEFEE 3o
RMB624.4 million EM/%W 8 million
ARM624.458 ARM18.8HE
37%
RMB230.4 million
AR¥230488

@ Land development
TR EE

@ Property development
MR

Property leasing

33%
RMB472.2 million
AR#472288

66%
RMB405.6 million
ARMA405.65HE

32%
RMB195.0 million
AR%195.088

1%
v RMB10.6 million
AR%10.6B8

FY15
cn sy mon JI66%
,423. RMB940.9 million
AR¥1,423.758 ARM940985E
FY15
15 BB F
RMB611.0 million
AR¥%611.088 2%
RMB10.4 million
AR¥1048E8
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Chairman’s Statement

FEEE JEE y‘

Dear shareholders, FERNSNRR

In the vigorous spring with vitality, | am pleased to show our greatest  {Rff14F | FEiEEWEE - BEERRMETEE -
gratitude and best wishes to all shareholders and investors on behalf of the HERXRAFZERMRUBBEABE A2 ER
board of the Company and myself! R BAREEBASSOMEMRITHHREE |

2016 was a year of rapid development for VAST Development since its  2016F R EHERE F A RRERERH —F - A
listing. The Company achieved an operating revenue of RMB1,965 million, — &l& % Ug A EF|IARK1,965FE T - RILEE
representing a year-on-year increase of 38.0%; a gross profit of RMB624  38.0% : BHENMARK2AEE T RigK
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.2%; net profits of RMB668 ~ 2.2% : JEFHA RIKE668F BT + FIREAU S
million and basic earnings per share were RMB0.41. It maintained sustainable A R0.4177 o & B A FE#E A 3T 5 B2 i) K IR 18
growth steadily against the backdrop of the new normal of the domestic T » (R T FIBISEBIE R -

economy.

Strategic cooperation continuously improved the shareholding B SERERFEBISZEEL - 2016FAFE
structure. In 2016, the Company was strategically invested by SF Holding B4 zp% & EiF B E B A 5 KGR EBR AT
Group (JEL 2R % =) through its affiliates, Celestial Ocean Investments — EiES AR - M MaIARE B LT ARME—RIE
Limited, the first strategic investment shareholder of the Company from £ &IREEMKERE  E—LEHRARIUEENK
non-financial industry since its listing. It further helped the Company to B —RHRE AZ EELTEH 2 FAURE © 1T
provide customized and comprehensive facilities for different industries with &A% EHE T A AT EEHENERRE] -
professional experience and excellent service, setting out strategic plan for

large industrial towns with their own characteristics and themes.

significant breakthroughs in the industrial urban strategic EXHTEBKARINEEARE -BEaUEER
expansion. We focused on the coordinated development in Beijing-Tianjin-  EEE - B 2ILIEERY @ S22 E K IER
Hebei. Firstly, based in Langfang, we completed an expansion area of 12 km?  HEf&12km? : ESRRESERUER T2 - #HEIF
in Longhe Park; our Guangyang Technology Park restarted its positioning, — #HEIL{E - EXEBENI - ARTEEMEEER
planning and investment attraction work. Secondly, the Group concentrated — BB fRze T2 O R ECEBRIEZRAIE 2R R
on Hebei. We created “the 100-day Miracle of the VAST's High Efficiency” (2 -  BE&E] BREVESIFS  SHEEE
Z®E - @HESE) in the construction of International Aviation Engineering  IREEE4) EERE SER2H  FEREKRO
Centre of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Park (AXRHEEMESX HMAREXERE - BINFAZEEE7.3 km?2 ; EEAEER
B B finZe T2 0 and ancillary roads, bringing the new preliminary
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images of such park to the surface. As for Gaocheng Park, we achieved
realising agreement, investment and construction in the same year; and
for the new Zhangjiakou Modern Industrial Park GRx DIR(LEXE), we
increased an development area of 17.3 km?. We entered into a Cooperative
Development Agreement (& 1R 3£ #3:%) with local governments in Chengde
Airport Economic Zone (F{®EGZe4& 7 &) and Laishui, Baoding, etc. Thirdly,
we deployed in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, our VAST Ezhou
Industrial Park (Z=Z=%B/H & % &) project was officially launched and the
preparation work of the Ezhou International Airport City (25N B 2= 15)
was well underway.

The “double creation” construction achieved remarkable results.
Longhe Park was recognised as “National-level International Scientific and
Technological Cooperation Base “ (B 5 4 BB RH% A #EE ) and Innovative
Venture Hub was included in “Incubation Bases Listed in MIIT Board” (T
SRS F i L&) and the “3-20” talent supporting project in all the
development zones of the whole province, while 9# Café, Beijing Tron Space
and Shenzhen Tron Space are recognised as national-grade maker space by
the Ministry of Science and Technology. Other results also include the launch
of Shijiazhuang Guochuang Hongtai Supply and Demand Comunication
Platform Online for Strategical Emerging Industries (5 5% it B &1 7= 2= 8k B8 37 5
EEMET RIS 45); the undertaking of the launch ceremony of national
“public entrepreneurship people innovation week” in Langfang main venue;
Tron Space matched with 33 industrial alliances, held 129 activities and
established the “Cross-strait Coordinative Innovation Incubation Alliance” (FR
FipEAIFTILEEE) as an organiser; Anci Beitian Mancheng International
Town (Z)x4b M 2% BB/ $8), Western Financial Town in Guangyang
District (5@ g4 g/ $8) and Aviation Town in Luancheng District,
Shijiazhuang City are listed in the first batch of characteristic towns of Hebei
Province at the same time. We connected to the global and set the research,
development and marketing centres and offices in countries in Europe, the
America, central and eastern Europe such as the US, Italy, Czech and Poland
to introduce innovative resources and to leverage on the advantages of
others in order to get through the “last 1 km” of technology incubation.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Recruit the big, attract the strong and select the excellent to
reach better results. We have entered into cooperative agreements or
strategic cooperative agreements with state-owned enterprises, foreign
enterprises and associations and institutions, such as CFHEC, CRC, Cinda,
AVIO in Italy and China—Japan—Korea Enterprise Promotion Committee (4 B
g/ NP EE{R#EE). The Group carried on strategic cooperation with AVIC
and AVIC General, invested in the AVIC Project and marine airfield. Longhe
Park introduces 34 key projects from CISRI and CASIC; Innovative Venture
Hub and Withub and Dreamwork have introduced 52 innovation incubator
projects; Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Park has already signed
and discussed 28 projects, among which 10 projects are accelerating
implementation; Gaocheng Park has signed and introduced the leading
project of Lewa Adventure City Park (££Z= 35 o B PR BN LE S (B ).

The performance of project constructions and the operation
management was obvious. Roads, bridges, integrated pipe network were
newly constructed in Longhe Park, ancillary facilities and coverage have been
expanding. Longhe Fengjing Phase | (8/a#al = — &) and Meishu Phase Il (£
18 — #) were in hot sales, and all construction in Wlthub and Dreamwork (£
Ae2Z T i) in-progress had been completed, launching the new products
to the market. The key public projects in parks, such as Anci Hospital and
Longhe Elementary School were in progress, facilitating the formation of
integrated working and living community. The business segments, including
property service, stadium management and construction work, kept stable
development and safe operation without significant liability incidents in
respect of quality occurred. A number of platform companies set up in other
foreign regions formed solid professional teams and operated in accordance
with standardized operation management procedures.

Full Enhancement on Brand Image of the Corporate. The member of
the Central Politburo of the Communist Party of China and Deputy Minister
of the State Council, Liu Yandong (ZI%£5) gave highly recognition to the Tron
Space at the National Mass Innovation and Entrepreneurship Week (£ 1| ).
Li Jinhua (3£ %) and Luo Fuhe (%= #0), the Vice Chairmen of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference visited
the Hub for Innovative Ventures for investigation and research. Zhao Kezhi,
the Secretary of Hebei Provincial Party Committee visited the Luancheng
Park and gave instruction on project construction, and Zhang Qingwei,
the Governor of the province, visited the important projects at the Longhe
Park for investigation and research. Leaders from Tengzhou and Yantai of
Shandong Province, Zhongguancun Big Data Industry Alliance (7 B+ A%
RSB BA), Jujiang Factory (Z2[F T and other innovative organizations
and technolog|ca| corporates visited the park and negotiated for businesses.
The reputation of the industrial towns had been gaining by holding and
attending the Finance-VAST Breakfast Meeting (81 4&-E= 24 &) at Boao
Forum for Asia, commencing ceremony of the VAST Ezhou Industrial Park,
"5-18" High-end Conference on Innovative Development in Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Development Zone (2% F %% B33 E Sin &), the Shijiazhuang
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Chairman’s Statement

EEEE

Air Show (AXRiE#E), China Industrial Park Conference (Fp & ¥ E & X
&) and China Capital Market Annual Conference (%54 =) and other
major promotion activities for the brand which were reported by central
media including Xinhua News Agency, Xinhuanet, People’s Daily and China
News Service. The Group was honorably awarded the “Frost & Sullivan Award
for Excellence in Growth in Real Estate Industry Market (China)” and ranked
4th among the “Top 30 Real Estate Enterprises in China” while I, myself
was elected as the Rotating President of the Capital Alliance in the Park,
Vice President of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce (& B&E i
EmE) and re-elected as the Vice President of the Langfang Industrial and
Commercial Association (B34 T 7 H)

The results achieved were attributed to the collective efforts by the Board,
senior management and all the staff as well as the strong supports from all
shareholders, investors and all sectors of the society.

Our work in 2017 has fully commenced. Despite the broad aspects and the
difficult tasks, we will strive to realize the constant growth in operating results
and the optimization and upgrade in business structure with concentration,
cooperation and bold innovation.

RFEHIE - REFETHDIXPEEFE
WETREMIERR ] PEEFME3RYS
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Exploiting in depth in Hebei, focusing on regional overall situation.
As Xiongan New Area was established by virtue of the concept of “Plan
over the Millennium, the Milestone of the Country”, with the profound
implementation of the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
strategy, the Company has embraced the valuable opportunity in respect of
the undertaking of industrial shift, the cultivation of emerging industries, and
the acceleration of regional development. With a focus set on the existing
industrial parks located in regions including Langfang, Shijiazhuang and
Zhangjiakou, together with the promising prospects brought from Beijing's
second airport, the capital’s sub-center, the Winter Olympic Games, the
metro transport systems, the improving high-speed network, the industrial
town business of the Company will benefit directly from the new round of
development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Ziongan delta region. The Company will
keep exploiting in depth in Hebei with the base in Langfang, capture the key
historical opportunities of the new capital airport, planning and construction
of the Airport Economic Zone and National Defense Information Equipment
and Technology Exhibition tightly, organize and hold the Northern Defense
Exhibition and promote key projects such as the China-German Industrial
Park. Watching closely the development opportunities in the core area of
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei for further reformation and upgrade, we will put efforts
in urban designing, planning and industrial output, facilitate the cooperation
with the central SOES to realize the all-win cooperation and mutual
development. Meanwhile, focusing on “The Belt and Road” and Yangtze River
Economic Zone and tracking the potential developing areas in the middle and
west of China, we will stick on our emphasis on the industrial town projects
and also take into account of the towns with characteristics. With an eye on
the strategic initiatives of overall development, we will form macro thinking
and macro layout, and create a new way to integrate the development of
industries and cities in order to promote the coordinated development in the
region.

Layout of the marine airfield by leveraging on the aviation.
Based on the existing well-operated aviation park, the Group expanded
new parks when appropriate, kept capturing the industry development
opportunities, and became the first to arrange the marine airfield layout
in well-established cities so as to create an airport network covering East
China, Middle China and South China. Currently, the domestic marine
airfield can serve as a new growth driver to stimulate the local economy
due to it being at initial development stage and of infinite development
potential. The Group established cooperative relationships with domestic and
international renowned research institutions and aviation industry alliances
by strengthened mutual communications and interactions, and improved
VAST's professional strengths in aviation to push the VAST's general aviation
brand to the forefront and top-end market through high standards, strict
requirements and sound image.

R R EEMEZEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE

Going out to achieve a global presence. The Group adjusted the strategy
of “Going out, Bringing in”, strengthened the interaction with the central
and eastern European countries and created a cross-regional collaborative
innovation network, and enhanced the communication and cooperation
with central and eastern European countries in respect of, among others,
industries and parks. Furthermore, by capitalizing on the two-wheel driving
and two-way opening complementarity between a model “"Purchasing
Business to Attract Foreign Investment”, that is to obtain international
high-end production factors by cross-border mergers, reorganization and
integration, and “One Belt, One Road”, the Group seized opportunities to
invest in international renowned and high-tech enterprises and attracted
foreign business and investment via premium high-tech projects, thereby
accelerating the industrial restructuring and economic transformation and
improving international competitiveness to seek new opportunities in the
international market expansion.

Management optimization and standard process improvement. The
Group streamlined and improved the management, operations, systems
and service processes of various business segments to achieve optimized
organizational structure, enhanced efficiency and costs savings by means
of stricter planning and management under the goals of operations
improvement, stringent internal control and risk reducing. More flexible
and reasonable employment mechanism and incentive mechanism in
place, coupled with an improvement on corporate governance structure,
organizational process and assessment mechanism, would help the talent
mechanism of the Company keep working effectively for a long time and
improve the profitability and core competitiveness of the Company. The
Company has maintained its healthy and sustainable development by treating
its shareholders with credibility and integrity, abiding by business ethics and
compliance with each relevant laws and regulations.

To work together to achieve a win-win situation and create a better future,
we can't do it without the trust and support of all shareholders. | believe that
scientific decision-making, continuous innovation and market expansion will
help China VAST achieve a better performance in 2017!

Wang Jianjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 was substantially
generated from: (i) fee and service income relating to/arising from land
development projects/arrangements, representing our fee income derived
from development of industrial town projects; (ii) revenue from sales of
properties; and (iii) a minor portion derived from revenue from property
leasing. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our revenue:

o dE)-

Wz

HEZE2016F12A3MB EFERREEBR
B ()FETHEER LU REERE - BR
MEREXTEEBENERRA  (NVEHEE R
= AN RAG)VDERERE - TRET
H AP U R A A -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT

Fee and service income relating to/arising from FFE L3R B BRI =

land development projects/arrangements 954,305 472,197
Revenue from the sales of properties bIES Eh=le 989,716 940,921
Revenue from property leasing bIEEN=gloe 21,160 10,588
1,965,181 1,423,706

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB1,965.2 million, representing an increase of 38.0% compared with
the total revenue of RMB1,423.7 million for the same period in 2015. The
increase was mainly due to the revenue arising from the expansion of land
development business of the Group from 1 industrial park of last year to 4
industrial parks this year. Also, benefiting from the rising housing price in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the income from properties sales increased at
the same time.

As for the land development business, the land area sold in Longhe Park was
less due to the postponement of the land sale plan by the local government
owing to the adjustment to the urban planning of Langfang in accordance
with the grand strategy for Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coordinated development.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, an aggregate of 30,015 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government for a total
land premium of RMB54.8 million, representing a decrease as compared to
the aggregate of 243,206 sg.m. of land sold in Longhe Park by the relevant
local government for a total land premium of RMB757.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Apart from the fee income received from sales of
land, we received income of RMB27.0 million, which was attributable to the
Company, from supplementary payment by successful land buyers and other
comprehensive services fee income of RMB93.1 million (which was calculated
and charged with reference to a certain proportion to the tax imposed on
Longhe Park resident enterprises during the year). We recorded fee income of
RMB155.2 million from development projects of land for sale in Longhe Park
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of RMB317.0
million as compared with RMB472.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2015.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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During the year, we received promising income contributed by the other
4 new industrial parks even though the Group recorded a decrease in the
income from Longhe Park. For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park and Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, the Company mainly engaged in
land preparation and investment services, and the income from which of
RMB90.7 million and RMB56.0 million, respectively, were calculated by cost
plus method. For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the
Company mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services,
and industry development services. The income from land preparation and
investment services, calculated by cost plus method, was RMB501.4 million,
while the income from industry development services, calculated by 45% of
the initial investment for the Park, was RMB95.5 million. For the VAST project
at Yanghe-River New Town of Zhangjiakou Economic Development Zone, the
Company mainly engaged in business attraction services, and the income
from which of RMB55.5 million was determined by the agreement between
the local government authorities and Company.

We recorded fee and service income relating to/arising from land
development projects/arrangement of RMB954.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, representing an increase of RMB482.1 million compared
with RMB472.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For property development business, we recorded revenue from the sales
of properties of RMB989.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
an increase of 5.2% compared with RMB940.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. Though for the year ended 31 December 2016, we
delivered the area of commercial and residential properties of 128,566 sq.m.,
representing a decrease of 20,312 sg.m. compared with the area of property
delivered of 148,878 sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2015, benefiting
from the rising housing price in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, we still recorded
a growth in the overall property sales revenue.

Cost of Sales and Services

Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of development projects
of land arrangements, (i) cost of properties sold, and (iii) direct operating
expense of property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2016, our
cost of sales and services amounted to RMB1,340.8 million, representing an
increase of 65.0% as compared with that of RMB812.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Such decrease was primarily due to the increase
of land development cost and property selling cost for the year ended 31
December 2016.

HAREEERADMEOBRAB T - BE
REEEHAIUE 5 ST D 3 B (B 1 R S T &R
WIRATR - ERFBMEZXBRAORIEEM
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our gross profit amounted to
RMB624.4 million, an increase of 2.2% compared with RMB611.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015. Gross profit margin was 31.8% for the
year ended 31 December 2016, compared with 42.9% for the same period
in 2015, which was due to the fact that most of the income for the year
arose from land preparation and investment services attributable to VAST
Ezhou Industrial Park, Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park and
Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park, which had a lower gross
profit margin.

Other Income

Our other income increased from RMB142.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB458.2 million for the same period in 2016, representing
an increase of RMB315.7 million. The increase was mainly due to the income
from the transfer of part of land development rights of RMB305.0 million in
2016.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses increased from RMB34.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to RMB335.5 million for the same period in 2016. The
increase was mainly due to the fact that the Company recorded a gain of
RMB368.6 million from the disposal of a subsidiary in 2016.

Finance Costs

Our finance cost increased by RMB166.4 million, or 218.7%, from RMB76.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB242.5 million for the
same period in 2016. The increase in finance cost was mainly due to a an
increase in our average outstanding balance of bank loans and other loan
facilities.

Gain on the Fair Value Change of Investment Properties
Gain on the fair value change of investment properties decreased from
RMB115.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB3.7 million for
the same period in 2016. Such increase was mainly due to an appreciation in
the value of an investment property project, Foxconn Technology Complex
(B EREAE) in 2015, which was caused by the following transactions:
the Company obtained the land for Foxconn Technology Complex (& +
EERIE#E) through open tender, auction and listing in May 2015. A land
cost of RMB101.3 million incurred, including an inter-company land cost of
RMB77.2 million eliminated by the Group on consolidation. The land cost
after the Group’s inter-company elimination was RMB24.1 million, resulting
in an appreciation in value of RMB77.2 million. The Group did not have such
revenue in 2016.

Profit Before Tax

Our profit before tax increased by RMB260.3 million, representing 38.2%,
from RMB681.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB941.3
million for the same period in 2016.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased from RMB167.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB272.9 million for the same period in 2016, representing
an increase of RMB105.5 million or 63.1%, which was primarily due to an
increase in profit before tax recorded for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, net profit of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 increased by RMB154.8 million, representing
30.1%, to RMB668.4 million from RMB513.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, which was primarily due to the increase in the sales of land
development project.

Earnings Per Share

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,637,641,000 was RMBO.41 (basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015: RMB0.31).

Cash Position

Our cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB1,649.0 million to
RMB2,707.5 million as of 31 December 2016 from RMB1,058.5 million as of 31
December 2015, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash inflow of RMB779.5
million from our operating activities; (i) the net cash inflow of RMB122.0
million from investing activities which was primarily resulting from restricted
bank deposits withdrawn of RMB471.6 million, offset by restricted bank
deposits placed of RMB726.6 million and the cash inflow of RMB537.5 million
arising from the disposal of subsidiaries; (iii) the net cash inflow of RMB744.2
million from financing activities which was primarily due to new bank loans
and other loans of RMB3,927.4 million, the repayment of bank loans and other
loans of RMB2,550.1 million and the interest payment of RMB540.0 million, as
well as the dividend payment of RMB140.0 million.

Fre®ipx
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Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group's total borrowings increased by RMB1,257.8 million from
RMB3,352.9 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB4,610.7 million as at 31
December 2016. Secured bank loans increased from RMB1,386.3 million as
at 31 December 2015 to RMB1,930.9 million as at 31 December 2016 while
other secured loans increased from RMB1,946.6 million as at 31 December
2015 to RMB2,659.8 million as at 31 December 2016. Bank loans secured
by properties for sale under development which were pledged decreased
from RMB364.5 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB332.7 million as at 31
December 2016.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB535.4 million as at 31 December 2015
to RMB943.2 million as at 31 December 2016, which were mainly the trade
receivables from each park and local government, including RMB91.4 million
from VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, RMB56.4 million from Shijiazhuang Hongtai
Industrial Town Park (AR iTEM EZ=E ¥ mi#EE) and RMB606.5 million
from Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

Prepayments and other receivables increased from RMB464.9 million as at 31
December 2015 to RMB490.8 million as at 31 December 2016, primarily due
to the increase in prepayments and other receivables of RMB17.3 million and
RMB8.5 million in 2016, respectively.

Advance from for Properties for Sale

Advance from properties for sale increased from RMB96.6 million as at 31
December 2015 to RMB842.8 million as at 31 December 2016, primarily due
to the fact that construction of certain properties have not been completed
and delivered.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Interest in Associates

Huarong ShengsShi (Langfang) Investment Company Limited, a company
owned by the Group as to 35% and Langfang Kaichuang Jiahua Investment
Co., Ltd, a company owned by the Group as to 49% was deregistered in
2016 and the invested capital of RMB7.0 million and RMB9.8 million was
recovered. Together with the appreciation of RMB10.2 million in the net assets
of Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Company Limited, a company owned by
the Group as to 30% as a result of valuation, interest in associates increased
from RMB147.4 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB149.5 million as at 31
December 2016.

Completed Properties for Sale

Completed properties for sale decreased from RMB1,400.6 million as at 31
December 2015 to RMB1,006.1 million as at 31 December 2016, primarily
owing to property sales.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group's properties.
As at 31 December 2016, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB968.2 million compared to RMB786.0 million as at 31 December 2015.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: () the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (ii) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes and cash. The main objective for the use of
these financial instruments is to maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility
at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2016, bank balances and restricted bank deposits was
RMB3,469.0 million, among which RMB3,351.1 million was denominated
in Renminbi, RMB103.2 million denominated in USD and RMB14.7 million
denominated in HKD.
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As at 31 December 2016, our total borrowings were RMB4,610.7 million,
among which RMB4,593.7 million was denominated in Renminbi and RMB17.0
million denominated in HKD, with maturities as follows:

M2016F 128318 - ZAFINERLBAARE
4,610.7E&ETT  HP ARKLS937TEETUAR
BEE - AR17.08&TUB%EHE - BIEA
o

31 December 2016
2016%12A31H

(RMB million)

(AR¥EEBT)

Within 1 year —FR 1,523.3
110 2 years —FEMF 1,022.7
2to 5years MEERF 2,051.2
Over 5 years AFLAE 13.5

Among the RMB4,610.7 million borrowings, RMB1,333.8 million was with
floating rate, RMB3,256.9 million was with fixed rate and RMB20.0 million was
interest-free.

Convertible bonds and notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes in USD50 million and USD50
million respectively with a term of 3 years on 30 December 2015. The coupon
rates of the convertible bonds and the notes are 6% and 12% respectively
with interest paid semi-annually. The convertible bonds can be converted at a
conversion price of HKD3.1 per share before maturity.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 70.1%. The Group's financing capability became stronger after
Listing. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative financial policies
and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart
from certain cash, bank deposits, bank and other borrowings which are
denominated in foreign currency, the Group is not subject to any significant
risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency hedging arrangement
had been made by the Group during the year. The Group will closely monitor
and manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

R R EEMEZEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group has entered into an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary
for a consideration of RMB525.2 million on 6 December 2016. The Group
recognised a gain of RMB368.6 million in the profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016. The equity transfer agreement constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules as one of the applicable
percentage ratios was over 5% but less than 25% at the time of the entering
into such equity transfer agreement. For details of the Disposal, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 917 employees (31
December 2015: 667 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.
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Business Review

Industrial Town Development

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns (EZi$8) in China. Our primary
business focus, being industrial town development business, significantly
differentiates us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced
development of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005, there
were very few market players in the PRC offering a similar range of services,
and industrial towns only became a development model to drive China’s
urbanization process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate with
certain local governments in Hebei, Anhui and Hubei provinces in relation
to development of nine industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models
to drive China’s urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a
cluster of enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents (&
¥, —%2). In addition to our industrial town development business, we also
develop and invest in residential, commercial and industrial properties in
both our industrial town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which
accounted for only a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our
industrial town business, we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position
industrial towns with selected industry themes, (i) convert land planned
for development into land suitable for sale by the local governments in
accordance with our cooperation agreements, (i) promote the sale of such
land to attract target customers to set up businesses in our industrial town
projects, and (iv) provide follow-up management and operation services to
enterprise customers in our industrial towns.

With the expansion and diversification of the business of the Company, we
currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in nine
different-themed industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe Park; (ii)
Longhe Resort; (iii) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, all of which
are located in Langfang, Hebei province; (iv) VAST Zhangjiakou City New
Industrial Park; (v) Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park, all of which are
located in Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province; (vi) Shijiazhuang General Aviation
Industrial Town Park; (vii) Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Industrial Town Park,
all of which are located in Shijiazhuang City, Hebei province; (viii) Chuzhou
Park in Chuzhou, Anhui province; and (ix) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in
Ezhou City, Hubei province. After over 10 years of development, Longhe
Park is progressing towards its maturity in active development stage. The
remaining eight projects are in the early stage of planning and development.
However, with the improvement and betterment on the terms of cooperation
agreements signed between the Company and local government, some of
our cooperation agreements enable us to record revenue in the early stage of
development, thus providing support for developing project on a rolling basis.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T 30 B B R 5 P e /2 2 T 48 18 B BT i B 6L
projects situated. g

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration

and Development Wanijiang City Belt
STRHEBRRE BT &

< Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIS
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Langfang, Hebei Province
N 2. = irport #15
& B T s
N " . @ Higlh-speed )
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To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 75km/AE h

AL R EHE —BR 5

To the Second Beijing Capital International Airport 15km/AE
RIERERE

To Tianjin Port 105km/A B

Geographical Advantage

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major
economic growth regions in China

- Locates in the central east of Hebei province, with Beijing, the capital,
“lies in the north and Tianjin in the east”

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national
and provincial highways crossing this area

— Construction work of the Second Beijing Capital International Airport
was approved on 16 December 2014 which will be completed in 2018.
As an ancillary facility, airport express railway will commence operation
synchronously by then

e Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities
arising from the economic growth in Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding
areas

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service
and environmental protection

— The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price
increase

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Zhangjiakou, Hebei Province
AL ERRA

RS ERE
Inner Mongolia
Autonomous

Beijing

W

Shanxi
Geographical Advantage EuES
- Located in the transport hubs of Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia, — — SRR A MAIAILR ~adE ~ IUF - REHEE
Zhangjiakou is the intersection of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolises and EHRBIEANLT  EREENTEMNES
Hebei-Shanxi-Inner Mongolia Metropolises ST B DE B
- Thanks to the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and  — SBR[ EEHEHE E—BEXREE - 5k
Development Plan”, the Beijing-zhangjiakou high-speed railway will SR R ARER A & INE

accelerate growth from Beijing to Zhangjiakou

— The joint bid of Zhangjiakou and Beijing for 2022 Winter Olympics will bring ~ — 5REK A By REE A BB P02 F R FHES -
new development opportunities TR B R
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province
AEBRARET

o BEXO
Zhangjiakou

Pl
Beijing

Tianjin

o B
Cangzhou
Shijiazhuang

Hengshui

ma
Xingtai

Geographical Advantage

¢ Shijiazhuang City is one of the important and major cities in the capital
of Hebei province and Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political,
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of
Hebei province. Shijiazhuang City is a city which the implementation of its
coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

o Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transport in which
four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan,
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such as
Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang, Shian
(A& miR AR intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate mileage
of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

o Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region.
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region.

e Three cities, Luancheng City, Gaocheng City and Luguan City, had turned

into districts. The area under the jurisdiction of the Shijiazhuang City
had expanded from 469 square kilometers to 2,206 square kilometers,
representing an increase in the area of approximately 4 times, and hence
providing more room for development.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chuzhou, Anhui Province
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Geographical Advantage

Chuzhou is a prefecture-level city in eastern Anhui province in close
proximity to the Yangtze River Delta, only approximately 50 kilometers from
Nanjing, Jiangsu province

Chuzhou is also in Wanjiang City Belt (50T #) which has been
approved by the State Council as a national pilot zone (EIX A R#1&) for
the development of industries shifted from the eastern Yangtze River Delta

These industries primarily include new materials manufacturing, energy,
new equipment manufacturing, provision of modern services and

production of high-quality natural food

Relying on the advantageous geographical position in the greater Yangtze
River Delta, Chuzhou strives to create a new growth in the development of

urbanization

Our service offered in Chuzhou is limited to marketing and promotion
activities
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Ezhou City, Hubei Province
L& SN

RE = uxue
L@ Xlanmng anzg:_;hi W@
Shishou Hongh Chibi =\
| AW
\Z %
Geographical EBuES

R R EEMEZEE AR A A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city
of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.
As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes
22 minutes.

The Shun Feng airport (IEZ#£35) locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end
express delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the fourth
in the world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center which is
only 20 kilometers from the park.
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The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2016.

Industrial town

TREHIHMEEXTHEEBEEREE20165128
BMEMIN - EXTRE  RBBENRERLREE -

project® Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEBEA" EXIE PR 8 & BRARY BiR

Langfang,

Hebei province

S BT

(I) Longhe Park ¢ Information e Planning and design, e Calculated with e Progressing towards

() BEAEHER

Planned site area:
RENGHEEE

28.0 million sg.m.
280BE&F 5K

() Longhe Resort,
Langfang

() ESEEAABIKREE

REM

Planned site area:
HENEHERE

9.5 million sg.m.
9.5 BTk

technology, advanced
manufacturing,
modern services and
property development
o BB - RS -
BRI R R

e \acation home and
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business
subject to finalization

o ERERR - BEL
BEXCEB(FEE)

industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the
project

BB REt EETE
fi ~ THIERTE - EES
MRIERR  TIHTTHHM K
ERRLETEB SR
R 7%

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction,
marketing and follow-
up services to manage
and operate the
project

A Rt EETE
i ~ EHERTE - EES
MERERR « TIHTTEA K
EEMMSEIHANER
AR

reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

o LIRS FIAR

DBADLREREESR
ETIRATE

Calculated with
reference to a certain
percentage of land
sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

=4 R TS SIE A
DAEDHERERELES
MEFIIEETE -

an active development
stage, and contributed
to our income during
the year
EEABIRERRER -
WAEARFEREBA
BR

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

=% S E=S okl i)
# o KRBT EER
A SRR
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status

EXmEEAO EXTE B 7% &5 E BARH BiR

(I Guangyang e Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ A portion of the net ¢ Binding agreement
Technology o 32| industry positioning, land sale proceeds signed; land
Regeneration Park®@ land preparation, representing the preparation and

() ESREEER infrastructure sum of our actual infrastructure

construction, investment amount construction not yet
Planned site area: marketing and follow- with a pre-agreed commenced
1B E|(E I ERE up services to manage  return and a portion o BETRALARNN

15.0 million sg.m.
15.08 & T 7K

Zhangjiakou,
Hebei province
MEERRA™T

(IV) VAST Zhangjiakou
City New Industrial
Park

(V) RRAMERARE
*E

e Under planning
o HEIF

Planned site area:
FRENEMmAE -

1.6 million sg.m.
16B8EFHK

and operate the
project

HE - RE EETE
fiL ~ LRI - HEER
MR ~ TIHTTHAK
EEMMSEIHANER
AR

Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

BB BREt EEE
i ~ THIERTE - EE%
MERE S DA R 351788

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

of the remaining net
land sale proceeds
in accordance with
our equity interest in
the relevant project
company.
T RS SRR R
B—&5 - mAEERIE
ER MO ERZRERIE
(BHELMEZEIH) -
PAR B 84 T B L3
B TIRERE R
MREREE REIZK
RESHE) BV 4ERD o

Both one-off income
and recurring income,
which is calculated
based on a percentage
of the fixed return and
part from ancillary
areas of operating

land premium, and

the percentage of tax
paid by the resident
enterprises of the park.
— R A B F L
AIFF - REFEER &
fREL A e
FEHs» B L RAR
EHMTIRAD LG

s
= o
S

AR LHEER
ERRIEER

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
BETEAR N0
# o RGBT HEBER
iR bR
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Industrial town
project™
EXmEEAO

Industry theme

Scope of services
BR 7% &5 E

(V) Zhangjiakou City
Modern Industrial
Park

V) RRAMRREXER
=

17.3 million sg.m.
17.388F K

Shijiazhuang

Hebei province

B ARED

(VI) Shijiazhuang General
Aviation Industrial
Town Park

V) ARIGRAMZEES
HE =

Planned site area:
RENEHETE

20.0 million sg.m.
2008 8F K

(VIl) Shijiazhuang
Gaocheng VAST
Industrial Town Park

Vi) ARERRERESE
miRER

27.0 million sg.m.
2708 8K

o Service Equipment
manufacturing industry
and medical service

o IRBRBEUEERRE

e General aviation
industry, modern
services and property

o BRMZEEX

o Under planning

¢ Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

Hal - Rt BEETE
fi ~ THIEREE - EER
MR DA R 51T 88

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

WA Rt EETE
fiL ~ LRI - HIRER
HEIERR K 51T 8

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

o A F/E EXETE
fir ~ EHERTE - EAEG
iR K T35 1T 8

Fee arrangement Status

BERTH R

e Commission services e Binding agreement
income, which is signed; land
calculated based on a preparation and
certain proportion of infrastructure
a fixed return and the construction not yet
aggregate investment commenced
in the park s BEETEORIOM

o ZIEMBUWA - ZEFE & RFMBTHEER
PRk EEEELEN EEREER

—ELLPIETE o

commission services e
income, which is
calculated based on

a certain proportion

of a fixed return and
the aggregate cost
incurred in the park.
ZRERBEA - ZEE
[o] 3% K% (B8 [ P A AR AR
BN —FELLOIFE -

Commission services e
income, which is
calculated based on a
certain proportion of

a fixed return and the
aggregate investment
in the park
ZIERBWA - ZEE
133 & B 218 & 425 H)
—ELPIEtE o

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction
commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year
EEFTANRNOH
# o BRI EBER
B - WHER
FEREBAER

Binding agreement
signed; land
preparation and
infrastructure
construction has
commenced, and
contributed to our
income during the year
BEEFTELARNNG
# o ERBRTIEER
ERER R - WER
FEREBAER
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Industrial town

project™ Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement Status
EXmEEAO EETE B 7% &5 E BERTH iR
Chuzhou,

Anhui province

RREABMNT

(VI Chuzhou Park
(VISR 7~ ] [

o New materials, new
energy, equipment

e Marketing
o TI57THH

e Calculated based on
net land sale proceeds

Binding agreement
signed; marketing

manufacturing, of a certain size of land  activities commenced
Planned site area: modern services and sites o BETALORNN
BN TE - natural food s WRERTH LR & BRKBHS
o FTMEL  BTREIR - B PSR EFREATE SEEE)

15.0 million sg.m.

24 - ARRBRZE

15.08&FHK R
Ezhou,
Hubei province
LB SN
(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial e Intelligent e Planning and design, ¢ Commission services e Binding agreement
Park manufacturing, industry positioning, income, which is signed; land
(IX) ZHEDBMEEE e-commerce business, land preparation, calculated based on a preparation and
energy conservation infrastructure certain proportion of infrastructure
Planned site area: and environmental construction and a fixed return and the construction
RENEHEIE - protection, modern marketing aggregate investment commenced, and
services o HE - Kt EET into the park. contributed to our
2.6 million sg.m. o WEEHE EWESH - fu - LHEER - B e ZIEMSWA - REFE  income during the year
26BBFT K ERREIRIR - RRIRTS HEIERR K 51T 88 B LEREEGTEN o EETAORNING
—EBIFE - #o DB TIEERER
FEESBRAER
Notes: Mk -

BN SR - BHETEEREERE
i RXOAMMBEREXE  RROMHRKE
(EE  AREBAMZEXTHRER  AFRE
BRRFEXTHER BN REER R AT
MNEZXERERRFANZENB A RRIE -

(1) Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park, Q)]
Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park, Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial
Town Park, Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, Chuzhou Park and
VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed by our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

BAR201ME4A27 A B T KBTI A E
& FREBRHEEE - BREBR R
LS — (BRI A b R ERER I Th RS [ 2 MR R E &
HEFERES([IEREME_HS]) - Bkt
REBE-_WEARE(BIEEBREBCE)
R IREIE At 5 BUT#ETTERE) - BNEE
BT IREMDAZA - HAIN20165F12 318
AFARESRER BN - BEBREMEE
WEEEN RRISHENAFER

(20 We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the (2
development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011.
As Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to the airport
currently under construction in the conjunction area of Beijing and Guangyang
District of Langfang (the “Second Beijing Capital International Airport”), the
development plan of the surrounding area of the Second Beijing Capital
International Airport, including Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, is
under review by the local government. As such government planning has not
been released, we have not commenced development of Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park as of 31 December 2016. The industry positioning and our
scope of services for Guangyang Park are subject to changes.

32 B R HRE T E AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Longhe Park ()]
After years of development, an accumulated land of 4,974,584 sqg.m.
(accounted for 25.5% of saleable land) were sold by local government

for Longhe Park, more than 200 investment projects were introduced

with total investment exceeding RMB70 billion.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, fee income derived from our
development of industrial town projects at Longhe Park was RMB155.2
million. The table below sets forth selective information about the
classification of land, planned site area and site area sold of Longhe
Park as of 31 December 2016.

EENE

EBSFHER  RABIEHEA 2 2
st AL 4,974,584F 5K (] HB £ it
25.5%) B3t 3|18 A 8 B 1BIA2001E - 4R
ERBBARB700(ET «

HE2016F12A31MBLEFE  KERTE
MENREEEMHRBEMSEARAS
ARB15528& 7T o TERHIIMN2016512
RA3AEN=TERE LD - REMS
EERD R EENEIRER -

Planned site
Classification g area™ Site area sold® Saleable land unsold
REE
[ 2 HE G EE REEMA T HEL
sq.m. sg.m. % sg.m. %
75K K % K %
Saleable HH#E
¢ Residential and o EEEK
commercial area AER 10,288,300 1,971,631 19.2 8,316,669 80.8
e Industrial area o EXEE 9,205,500 3,002,953 326 6,202,547 67.4
Subtotal of saleable land ~ A] i £ #/ N5t 19,493,800 4,974,584 255 14,519,216 74.5
Non-saleable FHHE
e Roads o ERK 4,431,300 N/ATEA NATEA NATER NATEA
e Greenery space o 42t ZE 4,074900 N/AT@EA NATEA NATEHR NATEA

Subtotal of non-saleable  FEH =+
land INEF 8,506,200 N/A TNEH

N/ATER  NATER NATNES

Total -5 28,000,000 4,974,584

N/A TEA 14,519,216 N/A TEA
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Notes:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local
government

(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments through
public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the total saleable
site area under the same land classification.

The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by local
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a
breakdown of our fee income for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Land sold ASP sold

it

(1) REMAHETEHERE R R RATHLE
B EIMESE °

@ EPLESEBARMNNE « BiEs
B RO AR T A R (e R (R T
A T (B — T M08 R)) B — 55
st -

TREHNEE2016F12A318 ILEE
7B H R Y RS - ABRETE Y
HEE - TS URRMNER
W AHIRAAR -

our fee income/

by local by local Land percentage of
government government premium land premium
WHBR  BHBUTH BEHBARA
HENLE  FHHEE  LlES HLilES
sq.m. RMB/sg.m. RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR¥ET,/
K K ARBFT ARBTT %
Year ended 31 December & Z2016F12831H
2016 FFE
Industrial land T¥E 4 15,702 401 6,300 5,419 86.0
Residential and EEREELM
commercial land 14,313 3,389 48,500 29,723 61.3
Subtotal Nat 30,015 1,826 54,800 35,142 64.1
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() Longhe Resort

The table below sets forth selective information about the classification
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2016.

() EHETEEREERE
TREFHIH 2016512 A31 B Bt a0 @ 15
KRB EBREMER LD ERRE(GHE
ERETRER -

Classification o8 Planned site area™
BB EED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNKHER 4,525,200
e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 5,687,200
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EPK 563,700
o Greenery space o Fx b2 3,249,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl F 3,812,800
Total @et 9,500,000
Note: BfIE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local

government.

M

AREBME I T ERIER B30T BUF LA
B EIMESE -

L

_'}:._ f-,-:_ . -,
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(lll) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

During the year 2016, we continued our communication with people’s
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park.
As of 31 December 2016, the industrial positioning and service scope
of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed planning
for the second Beijing Capital Airport has not been released, thus no
development work had been carried out in respect of the park. The
Company will continue to communicate with people’s government of
Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District of Langfang
in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park and strive
to commence land consolidation and facility construction as soon as
possible.

(IV) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park as at 31
December 2016.

() =EMERCE

TE2016F H - BAPJEER S T A RBA &
BR T ERE & A R BUR S 5t E RS B R
EIEBEERITER - HE20165F12 A
3B AR R EHE —HISRE N KB
o ZEREEENRRSEEDE R
B WARIEEERAE o ARIGEER
Besh T A RBUN K B3 T BB [ A RIBUT
ERESREMERBEE RFER - FHN
RIRERE) L b BT N ELE SR IR ER o

(IV) RXOMHEEREXER

TREFIN2016F12 ATHERR OM#TE
RHEEXBRAB LMY BERBEEEE
MENRER} o

Classification Wik | Planned site area®
BB EED
sg.m.
oK
Saleable oHE
¢ Residential and commercial area s FERMEHER 360,832
¢ Industrial area o E¥E 1,130,865
Subtotal of saleable land AT 3B £ 40/ N5 1,491,697
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o JERK 82,303
Subtotal of non-saleable land e/ et 82,303
Total Mt 1,574,000

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(V) zZhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Zhangjiakou City Modern Industrial Park as at 31

(V) RROMBREXEE
TREFIH2016F12 A3 HER ATERA
EXEREHE T o EREEREEN

\g

December 2016. BTEER o
Classification 28 Planned site area™
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area s FERNKHER 3,685,200
e |ndustrial area o R 1,266,900
Subtotal of saleable land Al s et 4,952,100
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 2,111,600
o Greenery space o Fx b2 1,041,700
o Agriculture, regional traffic municipal o B¥ . BIFBEHH 9,082,300
e Supporting facilities o BBNERIE 108,300
Subtotal of non-saleable land e b/ et 12,343,900
Total st 17,296,000
Note: fisT -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

() REEBEBIEREMZ2XTHEELS
B AR HEAO R &) -
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(VI) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
as at 31 December 2016.

V) axHBERAMZERTHREE

TRHEFINR2016F12 AN B ERFEBAM
CEXTHEEREGHE T O ERR I
EREEER -

Classification ] Planned site area™
FEEHEED
sg.m.
75K
Saleable HE
¢ Residential and commercial area e FERLKHER 5,313,000
o Industrial area o EXRE 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N 11,660,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o iEPK 3,668,900
e Greenery space o GR bz 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o BEENERIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land FEHZE /AT 8,340,000
Total F 20,000,000

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

For Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park, the Company
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services, as well as
industry development services. We completed main road construction
for the park of 4,691 meters in total and completed land demolition and
site formation of more than 500,000 sg.m., with investment amounted
to nearly RMB700 million. During the year, the Company received
income arising from land preparation and investment services of
RMB501.4 million calculated by cost plus method, and income arising
from industry development services of RMB95.5 million calculated by a
certain percentage of the initial investment.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

PAE -

M REEERDERRMZRXTERILT
BT AV HERO AR B -

ARBEAREBAMZ=EETHERE
EREITHERRERBEMEXERR
% AEEERETREEEBRERHAR
4,691K ¢ W ek LI RE Bt it T B AR B
500,000F 75K » LA ETI2IE B S RIRERE
EARETIETT - AEERREIURRAKA
MEOEFHE LB IERERAARKES01.4
BETIERERZMBER LA
HEFERRBVAARKISSHET -
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(VII) Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park as

at 31 December 2016.

(VI)ERHBHEARERFTHEEE

TREHN2016F12 A3 B AR E R E
REXTHEEEGHE L O BRI
EREMEEER -

Classification o8 Planned site area™
BB EED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNKHER 9,497,900
e |ndustrial area o R 4,582,900
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 14,080,800
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EPK 3,905,900
o Greenery space o Fx b2 2,850,000
e Supporting facilities o BRI 6,234,800
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH A /AT 12,990,700
Total st 27,071,500
Note: Bz

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

For Shijlazhuang Gaocheng VAST Industrial Town Park, the Company
mainly engaged in land preparation and investment services. During
the year, we completed the preparation of the planning schemes for
the Park and completed land demolition and site formation of more
than 80,000 sg.m., and the income arising from land preparation and
investment services calculated by cost plus method was RMB56.0

million.

() REEHEEEDEREMEXITFEBUT
BT LAEE AR S -

REAEARESREFEXETHEREE
METMBERRERSE  EAFEATK
ERAETENREE LKL ITER
o 3t FE R R 80,000 75 K - R AN
BOESEBRE T BEERERAARE
56.0A&7T °
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(Vi) Chuzhou Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Chuzhou Park as at 31 December 2016.

(VI N R g8 E &
TREFN2016612A31 BB R =
BRI ERABNEEEREOEAR o

Classification gl Planned site area™
HENLHEEY
sg.m.
Saleable AJHE
¢ Residential and commercial area e FEREKEHER 4,286,100
¢ |ndustrial area o EXER 5,466,100
Subtotal of saleable land AR M/ R 9,752,200
Non-saleable FEH#E
e Roads o ERK 2,688,800
o Greenery space o 47 bz 2,398,000
e Supporting facilities o THANERIE 159,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH s/ e 5,245,900
Total st 14,998,100
Note: PR -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(IX) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December

(IX) ZRPMNEXEE
TREFIN2016F12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
BEE@ALHYBERREGHEENEEE

2016. ¥t o
Classification o8 Planned site area™
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
o Residential and commercial area s FERNKHER 780,900
e |ndustrial area o R 1,113,100
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 1,894,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o EPK 173,600
o Greenery space o Fx b2 522,400
e Supporting facilities o BRI 16,000
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH A /AT 712,000
Total @st 2,606,000
Note: BIE -
(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local M HEEHWEBEIERBRMAZZTFEREMS

government by us for approval.

For VAST Ezhou Industrial Park, the Company mainly engaged in land
preparation and investment services. During the year, we completed
main road construction of 6,278 meters in total, and completed land
demolition of more than 100,000 sg.m., and the income arising from
land preparation and investment services calculated by cost plus

method was RMB90.7 million.

In addition, for the VAST project at Yanghe-River New Town of Zhangjiakou

BT AR SR AR B -

RAEERIMEXR T BN E T BIE
BRERY  ERFENTREBERER
H516,278K ¢ W FEpK T b #F# #835100,000
FIK - BB DIBOERT HEUS LI EE
BRERAARBOTAET

2O ERROEBERERF IR AFIAR

Economic Development Zone, the Company mainly engaged in business AAFFENREIBEHRAE - 5 ARKSS5HE

attraction services, among which income of RMB55.5 million was determined

TEEVR AR PR E M IR T R B AN R B A ek S

by agreement between the local government authorities and the Company. E °
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Property Development YISERIE
As of 31 December 2016, we had 19 projects at various stages of  A2016%E128318 * HPIES19EENTEHE
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential, EPEXEBMIEE @ TEEHFHRAE B B

commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including  I8H

CEmBLEEET A% BIE - EEF

residence, apartment, villa, garden houses, retail stores and office buildings. FE - TEEHERFAEE - A20165F12A318 -
We had residential, commercial and industrial land reserves of gross floor — FAffE=E - EEMEZEMEN M A E b EEE
area of 1,464,300 sq.m. remain unsold as at 31 December 2016. SAMTER1,464,300F 5K o

We classify our projects into three categories according to the stage of  FIRIEMAZEEERBER » A=1EE5 :

development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties °

for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As of 31
December 2016, our completed properties consisted of Mingren Garden
(& A7), Foxconn City Phase | (B =5z —HA), Hongtai Meishuguan
Phase | tz\‘?%ﬁﬁﬁ'*%@ ), Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il (= Z=£451 48
—Hf), Yihejiayuan Block A (BB AN{E48AR), Hongtai Longdi Phase | (7=
Z=Be&F—#f), Hongtai Longdi Phase Il (2= &E —HA), Chuangye Plaza
Phase Il (8|2 X /E —Hh), Longhe Park — Talent Home (B&)A & #Tl& A A
ZK &), Yishujia (£f%), Yulong Bay Phase | (& —&7) and Electronic
Information Industrial Park Phase | (&2 5.2 2 FE —H).

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent °

properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As of 31 December 2016, our
properties under development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il (8 +
B3 — Bf) and Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase | (115 &8
E= 2 [E —Hf). Both projects are expected to completed by 2018.

. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for .

future development represent (i) properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received the
requisite construction work commencement permit; and (i) properties
for which we are in the process of obtaining land use rights certificates
for our projects. As of 31 December 2016, our properties planned for
future development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il (&5 =87),
Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase Il (13 B & ¥E — &),
Hongtai Commerce Plaza (%= % &%), Qingnianhui (F4F &), Yulong
Bay Phase I (418 — &), Yulong Bay Phase IIl ({158 = £A), Huahang
Apartment (Z#i/A ) and Tanghai Project (E;/81E R).

DR TYE - B THEEKDEBERF
TREEBENE TRIRENDE - B
2016F12A318 * BB R IMEE
BANNE - BLEE - RRERE—
H - F$%ﬁ?*%~@ﬂ&ﬁAE~
ZEEff—H - RREM M BIEKRE
%\%ﬂ%%EAﬁ%a~@@%\@%
—HREFREEEER -

ERPYE - BRPYES  NEEER
RIAIst 2 A0k A DA B WEBIFMRRET
R IEFA B ME o R20165F12 A 31
B #ANEERTFDEREELREN -
H EFEREXE—H - ZMEEE A
HI2018F % T o

RENERRFAENME - REERRFE
M EREO KR B L AEE - BX
WRIFBEETREIHFAENE &
(NERESERMEIE B T AEE R
2 - R2016F 128318 » FMIEBIERK
HEOMERREETER =4 ETEL
EXEH -  ZFEB¥XES SFE-®
B )RR EH . EMABRES
HE -

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling I ETIEE BETHERENZHEERER -
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of FHFINBEEAJEEREDERT ~ BEEPNBRENE
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and KRR ETN R EEERAE -

properties planned for future development.
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The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our

properties as of 31 December 2016.

Type B

Completed B®T 33,000
Under construction pezs= 148,000
For future development AR 2EF%E 130,000

Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) £% A8 =5

Completed B®T 29,000
Under construction 3 -

For future development  R2RFEE -
Completed B®T 351,000
Under construction e -

For future development  RZRFHEE -
Completed B®IT -

Under construction e -

For future development & 2RFH% 153,000

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe

Park EE S EE 75 EEXE

Completed B®T 56,000
Under construction e 15,000
For future development  ARZEFZE 127,000

Longhe Park - Talent Home

EUSHE - AZRE

Completed B®T 22,000
Under construction e -

For future development ~ AZRFAEE -
Completed B®IT 160,000
Under construction e -

For future development AR ZRFHEE -
Completed B®RT 85,000
Under construction e -

For future development A 2RFEE -

AT IR R 7020165512 A 31 B B M1 2 80312

UENTEZHIE -

Langfang
% 07)

Chengde
EE
®

@ Tangshan
B

Tianjin
RiE

Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei
Region
FEEME

Type R
Mingren Garden & A/NE
Completed B®T 64,000
Under construction £ -
For future development  ARZRFAZE -

Hongtai Meishuguan %% £#8

Completed BE%T 252,000
Under construction 2 -
For future development R ZRFAZE -

Qingnianhui FFE

Completed B®T -
Under construction e -
For future development ~ ARZRFA%E 11,000

Huahang Apartment Zfi A&
Completed BT -
Under construction i -

For future development ~ ARZEFA% 10,000

Completed BT 159,000
Under construction 1
For future development SR B¢

472,000

el Tanghai Project &8 H

Completed B%T -
Under construction pig=3 -
For future development ~ ARZ€FA%E 204,000

Annual Report 2016 4 %R 43




Y

44

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Saleable
Gross Floor Land-use Group's  Area Remaining
Site Area Area Purpose Interest Unsold
Filey &M
Project Name and Location BAZBRAE EEE [t ki il Frk g HAEEE
(sq.m) (sq.m) sqm)
(FHX) (FAX) (%) (FAK)
Langfang BY
Foxconn City (Phase | to ) BTRA(-BZ=H) 126,545 311,000 Residential and commercial 100% 267,000
39 Fukang Road, Langfang BT B RE39% AERE%
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il N 8,820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang By MBI %
Hongtai Longdi (Phase I and Il g3 e R ) 126,929 351,000 Residential and commercial 100% 69,000
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang BB SR B 259%: rEREE
Hongtai Commerce Plaza LREEES 47486 153,000 Commercial 100% 153,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang By MREEAEAER [
Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park ENSHEEFEEEER 187,815 198,000 Industrial 100% 180,000
(Phase land I) (8. -8) EX
89 Fukang Road, Langfang BT 2 B89
Longhe Park - Talent Home ETRNE-ATRE 12666 22000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang BT R 1055 frz
Yishujia BER 94,829 160,000 Residential and commercial 100% 600
155 GUangyang Road, Langfang i RRE 155 AERE%
Yihejiayuan (Block A) BAER(AR) 35430 85000  Residential and commercial 100% 3,000
300 Xichang Road, Langfang BT E BR300 rEREE
Minren Garden ZANNE 29141 64,000 Residential and commercial 100% 700
76 Heping Road, Langfang By mMTEI6% rEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phase | and Il TR 25) 120,739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 34,000
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang B MAREERK8T EEREE
Qingnianhui BEE 4,279 11,000 Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHTERRESH ERE%
Huahang Apartment ES NG 10,557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHTERRESH %
Chengde RE
Yulong Bay e 142,841 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 490,000
Junction of Sounthwest of Wuwei Road and Siiujing Road, A& REREE - (ETEH
New District, Chengde v
Tangshan B
Tanghai Project EER 665,935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, EUTERALES fE
Caofeidian District, Tangshan |30
Total At 1,614,012 2,481,000 1,464,300
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The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area (“GFA”) sold, and &R #HHIEZ20165E12 831 B I EERESESE
average selling price (“"ASP”") for each of our revenue-generating property for Wz aUkss - oEEEmE([2EmEl) -

the year ended 31 December 2016. MEHEE(TTEEHER]) -
GFA sold ASP
Residential and commercial FEREE Year ended Year ended
Project EHA Revenue 31 December 2016 31 December 2016
CEEEEE THEE
BZ2016F BZ2016F
W 12A31BLFE 12B3M1BLEE
RMB'000 Sq.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREETIT Fk AR¥ETTEHXK
Yishujia IR
(IR)
Residential *=E 2,368 387 6,119
Commercial [GES 51 67 7,627
2,879 454 6,341
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase | TRRE R — A
(RIRERIEE—HR)
Residential F= 108,347 19,597 5,529
Commercial mE 12,397 1,228 10,095
120,744 20,825 5,798
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase |l RIRER AR AP
(2R M EE — HA)
Residential [E=2 394,374 42,964 9,179
Hongtai Longdi Phase | RIEEB—H
(RZREEER—HA)
Residential *=E 56,431 8,811 6,405
Commercial [GES 5,724 485 11,802
62,155 9,296 6,686
Hongtai Longdi Phase Il RZree BB —HA
(2R BE BB —Hf)
Residential [E=2 255,811 37,301 6,858
Commercial [GES 46,454 2,350 19,768
302,265 39,651 7,623
Foxconn City Phase | BT —H
(BLEH—H)
Residential [Ea=2 729 148 4,926
Yulong Bay Phase | T Be & —ER
(fBE/E—AR)
Residential F=E 56,501 11,124 5,079
Commercial HE 8,900 875 10,171
65,401 11,999 5,451

Electronic Information Industrial Park & F12 B E X E —Hf
(BEFEEEXE—H)

Plant = 19,797 3,229 6,131
Sub-total /INET 968,344 128,566 7,532
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GFA sold ASP
Ancillary Area HWEHE Revenue Year ended Year ended
Project HH Project 31 December 2016 31 December 2016
CEEEER THEE
[ HZ20165 HZE20165F
HE 12A31BLEE 12A31HILEE
RMB'000 sg.m. RMB/sg.m.
AREFIT FrHk ARET A ERK
Yishujia Underground Chamber BERMTE
RERTE) 35 34 1,029
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground REERETE
Chamber (EZEREEH T =) 4,707 4,422 1,064
Hongtai Longdi Underground Chamber Z=ZesefBith N =
(RZRE BB T =) 3,851 2,526 1,524
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground g - T =
Chamber (fil#g7& —Hith T~ =) 364 209 1,742
Sub-total g 8,957 7,191 1,246
Hongtai Meishuguan Car Park Unit TRHRFIG R E L
(RZRZFEMIERER) 11,140 1160 96,0340
Hongtai Longdi Car Park Unit RIREEIBENL
(2= BeBBE (L) 29,494 4040 73,0050
Yulong Bay Phase | Car Park Unit fEEEE —HAE (L
(g2 —BiEEAL) 1,218 170 71,6470
Sub-total INE 41,852 537 77,937
Total st 1,019,153 136,294 7,478
Less: Business tax and surcharges B EER RIS 29,437
Total revenue after tax Fiig e 989,716
Note: MEE -

EERLEEHEEEEMNEE - THEEE
FFEUNTHHEER -

(1) GFA sold represents the number of car park units and ASP represents the average (1
selling price for each car park unit.
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() HONGTAI LONGDI IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE

A 46 & BR LA T 2 SR RE KR

T

EEREREEEEREREEE

-

Hongtai Longdi (ZZ=#EHS) is an integrated
development of residential and commercial project
which is located in Longhe Park, the center of the
south of Langfang. Longhe Park not only enjoys
proximity to the central business district of the capital,
but also occupies a strategic position at Langfang,
Beijing and Tianjin. It is an ecologically friendly
city characterized by its modernization as well as
integration of production and municipal functions in
the south of Langfang. The Project is conveniently
located close to transport facilities with Nanlong Road
in the north and Yinhe Road to the west, which is two
kilometers away from the Langfang stop of Beijing-
Shanghai high-speed railway.

In 2016, the contracted sales and contracted sales
in terms of GFA of Hongtai Longdi (=Z=%e &)
amounted to RMB267,315,000 and 32,900 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the total
GFA and remaining future saleable residential floor
area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Hongtai Longdi
(Z=Z=RERF) project were 351,000 sg.m. and 17,100
Sq.m., respectively.

(1) HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE

AL E BR L T 2 3% R A B

Hongtai Meishuguan (Z=Z=3151£g) is a residential
complex project comprising residence, apartment,
villa and garden houses which is located in
the center of the economic and technological
development zone of Langfang, Hebei province.
Located in the northeastern part of Langfang,
north to Oriental University City (385 A2 3)
and south to the Langfang financial recreational
center, the project is conveniently located close
to a developed transportation network and is
only 500 meters away from the Langfang exit of
BeijingTianjin-Tanggu Expressway and 50 minutes
driving distance from CBD of Beijing.

In 2016, the contracted sales and contracted
sales of Hongtai Meishuguan (Z=Z= 3151 £8) project
amounted to RMB494,628,000 and 57,700 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the total
GFA and remaining future saleable residential
floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Hongtai
Meishuguan (ZZZ=Z 1 £8) project were 252,000
sg.m. and 3,300 sg.m., respectively.
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(111) YULONG BAY PHASE | IN CHENGDE, HEBEI PROVINCE
At B AR HEEE B

Yulong Bay project is an integrated development
project of residential and commercial in Chengde,
Hebei province. Located in the south part of
Shuanggiao District, Chengde, the project
is conveniently located as it is less than two
kilometers away from the Beijing-Chengde
Expressway and only six kilometers away from
the Chengde stop of Beijing-Shenyang high-speed
railway. The project adjoins Chengde University
City (Ff=AEZ34,) with well-equipped surrounding
facilities and has huge development potential for
future real estate projects.

In 2016, the contracted sales and contracted
sales of Yulong Bay Phase | (ff5€/& —Hf) project
amounted to RMB52,320,000 and 8,630 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the total
GFA and remaining future saleable residential floor
area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Yulong Bay Phase
| (#40%E/% —HA) project were 159,000 sg.m. and 2,360
sq.m., respectively.
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(IV)ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN LONGHE PARK (WITHUB

AND DREAMWORK)
ETEFEETEEERE(RE E1IR)

Electronic Information Industrial Park
in Longhe Park, Langfang is a high-end
office building industrial project located in
the center of high-tech industrial cluster
in Longhe Park, Langfang. The project is
conveniently located as it is 5 minutes
away from Langfang high-speed railway
and takes 20 minutes to the city center of
Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway.
It adjoins Beijing-Shanghai, Beijing-
Hongkong-Macao and BeijingTaipei
Expressway. The project mainly involves
the development of single buildings for
enterprises and is an industrial complex project which offers services including commerce, office,
exhibition, communication and training.

In 2016, the contracted sales and contracted sales of Electronic Information Industrial Park
amounted to RMB33,346,000 and 4,700 sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the total GFA
and remaining future saleable factory floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Electronic Information
Industrial Park project were 198,000 sg.m. and 158,000 sg.m., respectively.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(V) CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE II) IN LONGHE PARK
ENEHfERIRARE =M

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established large scale office
building in the south of Langfang. Located in the center of Longhe Park,
Chuangye Plaza is in close vicinity to Anci Administrative Service Center (%
RATBR#S 0 and is a landmark building of Longhe Park. Chuangye Plaza
is in the north of Nanlong Road and in the east of Changfu Road, which is
connected directly to the high-speed railway station and takes 20 minutes to
Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. It is close to Yinhe Road and lJianshe
Road. Its road network is extended to all directions with smooth and clear
connection to the south of Langfang. The area of a single floor ranges from 60
sg.m. to 1,870 sg.m. without indoor columns, enabling an open and practical
space with a large window facing area.

As at 31 December 2016, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Chuangye Plaza (Phase II)
project were 29,000 sg.m. and 19,000 sg.m., respectively.
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(VI)FOXCONN CITY PHASE Il (LONGHEFENGJING) IN LONGHE PARK
EUSHESE TR —H(ETER)

50

Foxconn City Phase I, also known as Longhefengjing Project, is located 1,000
meters south away from the intersection of Nanlong Road and Jianshe South
Road with a variety of apartments that satisfy different housing needs. Four
bus lines of the city, namely, number 11, 15, 16 and 33, pass through the
project site. At the same time, Jianshe South Road closely connects with
Xinkai Road,Yinhe Road and Heping Road in the city. Core business district
such as Wanda Plaza and Mingzhu Shangxia is accessible within 15 minutes
and it is only 5 minute-drive away from Langfang high-speed railway. Facilities
surrounding the project are well equipped with Anci district central hospital
planning in the south, five secondary schools, fourteen primary schools, one
kindergarten in Anci district and Longhe Park First Primary School planning
in the surrounding area. Medical, education, leisure and shopping are readily
available.

In 2016, the contracted sales and contracted sales in terms of GFA of
Foxconn City Phase Il project amounted to RMB722,945,000 and 69,500 sg.m.,
respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the total GFA and remaining future
saleable residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Chuangye Plaza
(Phase Il) project were 148,000 sg.m. and 45,200 sg.m., respectively.

Property Leasing

As of 31 December 2016, we had seven completed investment properties
namely, Chengxiang Building (4 #8 X&), Meishu Complex (Efi4R&
Jinyue Building (& 1% /E48), Tianfu Center (KA ), Foxconn Technology
Complex A11 (& + FERHX12A11), Phase | and Phase Il of SME Entrepreneurial
Base (/N EAIZEM —H] « —H1), Shijiazhuang International Aviation
Engineering Center and two investment properties planned for future
development, including Foxconn Technology Complex C10 (5 TR Z
C10) and Phase Ill of SME Entrepreneurial Base (F0 /| i 22 Al 3 £ it = HA).

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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The following table shows the key data of our investment properties as of 31

AR RAREE RN 2016512 A31 B R AFHEE W

December 2016. FEHIE -
Gross Floor Group's Land
Area  Existing use Interest  lease term
Project Name and Location BRARRMIE BEEE BARE SEfERE THEEER
(sq.m) (Year)
(TAK) (%) (%)
Phase I&11 of SME Entrepreneurial Base M ERIE R -8 5 126395 Partial leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BHTRAEREELT, BHHE-T%
Chengyiang Building WHRE 11,365 Leasing - Commerial and office 100% 50
building
No. 66 Xinhua Road, Guangyang District, Langfang B ER R ZHK 665 HE-BERINE
Jinyue Building e 209 Leasing - Residential and commerical 100% 70
Northwestern comer of the junction of HepingRoad S m BB NI T R EERERERALA HE-HEREE
and Guangyang Road, Guangyang Disctrict,
Langfang
Tianfu Center RERD 8895 Leasing- Commerical 100% 0
South of South Outer Ring, North of Longhe, By MR R RRAINER R R HE-B%
East of Yinghe Road and West of Changfu Road, BARNE - REEBIE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Foxcoon Technology Park Site A11 EIRBEEAN 13102 Leasing-Commerical 100% {0
East of Jianshenan Road and South of ErhaoRoad,  BiSiel BB RAMBIE  —RBNIE RE-5%
Longhe Park, Langfang
Meishu Complex e 9362 Leasing - Commerical 100% |
South of Yunpeng Road and East of linyun Road, BB B R B R B E MR HE-#%
Langfang Economic and Technological SERIE
Developmen Zone, Langfang
Shijazhuang Aircraft Engineering Center RFHERRETRGL 16800 Leasing - Industrial 100% 50
No. 100 Zhongxing Street, Luancheng District, BRI R R 1005, HE-T%
Shijiazhuang
Phase lllof SME Entrepreneurial Base P ERIE R = 64,489 Notdeveloped - Industrial 100% 50
No. 29 Ruixue Street, Anci District, Langfang BEmENRRZEDT FRE-T1#
Foxcoon Technology Park ETRRE 80,399 Not developed - Commerical 100% |
East of Jianshenan Road and South of ErhaoRoad, B EE T S HRRAMBIE - ~SBMNE AER-EE
Longhe Park, Langfang
Total &it 332,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, our property leasing income was
RMB21.2 million, and gross profit was RMB18.8 million. In the future, we will
consider the synergies created by the development of real estate related
business to determine the input of resources on the leasing business.

Outlook

In respect of our industrial town projects development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Park and commence foundation works in respect of
projects located in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area in 2017. We have confidence in
executing this year’s development plan and revenue proposal as laid out by
the management of the Company at the beginning of the year.

In respect of our property development, we intend to commence construction
of four projects in 2017, including Yulong Bay Phase Il ({15 — Hf), Foxconn
City Phase Ill (£ B = ), Hongtai Commercial Plaza (ZZ=m % /&) and
Tanghai Project (/872 H). Revenue from sales of properties during 2017 is
expected to be derived mainly from sales carried forward from four projects
including Hongtai Longdi (7=2=8&&F), Hongtai Meishuguan (72215 £8),
Yulong Bay (#/#€&) and Electronic Information Industrial Park (&5 B.&
X(E).

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of nine Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Wang Jianjun (EZ£E)

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang lianjun (£3£%), aged 54, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 21 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying. Mr. Wang is involved
in various governmental associations, including: deputy to the People’s
congress in Hebei province; member of the Standing Committee of the
People’s Congress in Langfang City, Hebei province; and Vice President (2| &
£) of Langfang Industrial and Commercial Association (B4 LRI 254 &).
Mr. Wang received his college diploma (E%}) in Administration Management
(f7EE32) from the Rural Enterprises Managers & Leaders Institute of
the Ministry of Agriculture (£ 2 #4538 E 2 % EEE7), located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in June 1995. He was qualified as a
Senior Engineer (5 4% Ti2EM) by the Title Reform Leadership Group of Hebei
Province (i/4h& BEFERE4EE/\48), a governmental authority, in December
2001.

Chen Lianggiu (B B #)
Executive Director
Mr. Chen Lianggiu, aged 46, was appointed as our executive Director on 17
May 2016 and resigned with effect from 17 March 2017. Mr. Chen was the
chairman of China Investment Development Co., Ltd.* (FRZERAERSEA
7)) from April 2014 to April 2016 and the deputy general manager, head of
risk management department and head of investment department of China
Jianyin Investment Limited (Fr BRI & AR & T2 7)) from October 2006
to April 2014. Before that, Mr. Chen had been working in various branches
and entities of China Construction Bank Corporation (7 B2 %R 1TAR1D B IR
‘~a]) for more than 13 years. Mr. Chen received his bachelor’s degree from
the School of Law of the Xiamen University, located in the PRC, in July 1993
and his executive master of business administration degree from Tsinghua
University, located in the PRC, in January 2014. Mr. Chen served as a director
of Hong Yuan Securities Co. Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 000562) from March 2013 to December 2014.
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Yang Yun (£ 5t)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#54t), aged 43, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 18 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor's degree in real estate management (EihEAL < &) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T FaB14% K £8), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (BhIE £ ERM) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (BB i 2% [ B
23%) in October 1999.

Wang Yagang (E 25 [l)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (E 3= l), aged 36, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the Vice President of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 14 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (a4t 22 K2, located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (i sE4E 7 & 12), in December 2004.

Huang Peikun (1% i#)

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (& 5%1#), aged 54, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 13
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (EI2#I 28 T 72) from
Zhejiang University (#/T X 3), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (&7 K£2), located in Hong Kong,
in June 2012. He was qualified as a senior accountant (& & =t8M) by the
Department of Personnel Affairs of Guangdong Province Eﬁ?é AZEEE) In
February 2000. Mr. Huang was the executive director of China Merchants
Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 00978)
from 2 June 2012 to 8 August 2013.

Zhao Ying (#58)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (f878), aged 46, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 8 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms. Zhao
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Zhang Xiaomei (FEEz4g)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Xiaomei (5REEHE), aged 46, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 6 August 2014 and a member of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhang has over 17 years of experience in business management.
She received her bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the Beijing College
of Economics (4t 4L E£28%), now known as the Capital University of
Economics and Business (& #4EE 5 K 2), located in the PRC, in July
1992 and her Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (5, £2F%), located in the PRC,
in September 2010.

Wei Yu (i)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Yu (3857), aged 47, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 6 August 2014 and the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee on 6
August 2014. Mr. Wei has 13 years of experience in business management.
He attended the Executive Master of Business Administration Programme at
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (&, £2F%), located in the PRC,
in October 2007. Mr. Yu has also served as an independent non-executive
director of 500.com Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, NYSE: WBAI) since November 2013.

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (£ 7k #)

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (Fk#gi& =), aged 65, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 6 August 2014 and the chairman of
audit committee on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has 22 years of experience in
accounting. Dr. Wong has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of China Merchants Land Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-executive
director of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-
executive director of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 01104) since July 2004. He holds a Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Administration from the Bulacan State University,
Republic of the Philippines since December 4, 2010. He is member of the
following institutions, including: a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators; a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong; a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute;
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute; a fellow member of the
Association of International Accountants; a fellow member of the Society
of Registered Financial Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators; an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in
Scotland; and a full member of the Macau Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAERERE

Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Xu Ming (4 85)

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 50, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang Sheng Shi Construction. Mr. Xu has over 31 years of
experience in business management. He has been a member of the Standing
Committee of the seventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in Anci district, Langfang City, Hebei province ([4L#& BR$h T &K @ B+ fE
ZE@EKZEE) since January 2012. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics (KJZE & A E2), formerly known as Tianjin College
of Finance and Economics (KZBF 48 E85%), located in the PRC, in master's
course on economics (A2 in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior
Economist (= 4k &8 2 EM) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (v
JBREIRITIIEE 9317) in December 1999.

Cui Xiangxu (&[4 8)

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (£a)f8), aged 47, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 21 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(o7 EIEE R AE), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&3+22), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4%
SERD) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (Eryi #8812 B 5T £ 2) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Ms. To Yee Man (tt#k58), aged 32, was appointed as the company secretary
of our Group on 4 March 2014. Ms. To has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting and finance. She worked at Ernst & Young from September
2006 to August 2013 and served as an audit manager (F&t#32) before
her resignation. Ms. To received her bachelor of Business Administration
in Operations Management and Accounting from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, Hong Kong, in June 2006. She has been a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2010.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

BREEE
BMNERETEERARMEBHAREE -

8

IREASE A - 508K © N2006F3 A20 B EEE /T
PIEBIEE: - WEERMNEREE REH R
BRNBEEEE - RAELERFEBEIEERBEBI
FHRE - WB2012F1 AREEITLE B H %2
RERHTERZEGEHERE - HIEER1999F
6 A ek BRI A B (R KR A 28 )
EZIE LT RIZ o HAR999F 12 AR B R R
T B DT R AR IFRD ©

Ema

ERBLZT  475% 200658 A3BER T AR
MrEIEE - FEERMNTE - RAREBE
B g EFEEMSNEKEEEEER2
FIEER o BTG 7 ARENT R E
HBERKRE BB RERIE « 7120014
SREBMG MRS ERBBBIZGTALEE
Bifl

AEME

MEEL L 0 325% 0 R2014E3 4B ERFE AR
FEMQRME - HZETRST e mAE
0TS o 1R A200659 8 £20134°8 A HARIE
Bk SRR SHET - REEB AT SR -
MZETR2006F6 AEEERBAZHREEE
BReTIHEEET24 - 52010F1 7 -
BHEEGIMATNEREE -



Corporate Governance Report
TEEBHRE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance practices and continues to closely monitor the compliance with
the applicable requirements. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

In respect of code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders. However, due
to other pre-arranged business commitments which must be attended to
by each of them, Mr. Wei Yu and Ms. Zhang Xiao Mei, being independent
non-executive directors of the Company, were not present at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2016. However, Ms.
Zhao Ying, being a non-executive director of the Company; and Dr. Wong
wing Kuen, Albert, being an independent non-executive director of the
Company, were present at the annual general meeting to ensure an effective
communication with the shareholders thereat.
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D EELRE

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2016.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Board consists of nine Directors, of whom five
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors. The table below sets out the
roles of each member of the Board and their relationships:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of

the Board and President of the Company
Executive Director

Directors

Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying)

Chen Lianggiu (appointed as
an executive director with
effect from 17 May 2016 and
resigned with effect from
17 March 2017)

Yang Yun

Wang Yagang

Huang Peikun

Executive Director and Vice President

Executive Director and Vice President

Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer

Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director

(spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun)
Zhang Xiaomeli Independent Non-executive Director
Wei Yu Independent Non-executive Director

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 53 to 56. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive Directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific
term of three years which may be extended as each and the Company
may agree, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company provides
that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

In accordance with the said provision of the Articles and the Code Provision
A.4.1,in the last AGM held on 24 June 2016, at least one-third of the directors
(namely Mr. Wang Jianjun, Mr. Huang Peikun and Mr. Wei Yu) were subject
to retirement by rotation and were re-elected. Mr. Wang Jianjun, Mr. Huang
Peikun and Mr. Wei Yu shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

During the reporting period, Mr. Chen Lianggiu had been appointed as an
executive director by the Board of Directors of the company pursuant to
Article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company with effect from 17
May 2016. Mr. Chen subsequent resigned due to his other commitments with
effect from 17 March 2017.

Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders
and Board Committees

During 2016, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee
meetings, 2 remuneration committee meetings and 2 nomination committee
meetings. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 24
June 2016.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant
meetings:

RE-BEERERES
AER(BRIEFNTER ) R=F(IREES
B EAR R E MIER) O EEERHEST
WBHEA R BABEZAN PR RBE RS ([
RBFERE ) HERENBERET - ARTEM
SRAAEMFHRTE - REERRBFRE L
BERAB =S —WER(HMEEABALIF=
BEE - BIASERE=0—0NAB)HARER
- ESES(RREZEREAHNAZ AR
PE=FHRERT R

R 3% By il 48 BIE SC M SR RIMESCEB AL - R
2016 F6A24 A BT EERRBAFAE &2
= EEF(AIBRELE  mEMAENRRT
SE)ERBEREREREF - TESEE &
BHEERRFEAEBREREREATAS i
ERE - EFEER  WHEEEREBT -

RIREHRE - BRI ERARRESSIREA
DA ERMRESSQEETANTES  /
2016F3 /17 BBAER o BRICAEE G ARIZEA
EAEGEHT - B2017F3817BBAER -

EXeel RESEREEZREER
) RE

MN2016%F  BEESHRTNATHEFTSEH - W
REREESSH MAFHESSSELMK
RELZEEeE - ERREAS - AAFN2016
FOA2XRRITREAFARE -

TRENSEFNERESBN T

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F 128310 LEEHRE AEREENSREE

General Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board meeting Committee Committee Committee
Exg REAE ERZEE FMzeg REZEE
Executive Director HTEE
Wang Jianjun IEE 4/4 M N/A N/A 22
i TiEA
Chen Liangajiu BRI 2/4* 111 N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA T
Yang Yun B 4/4 01 N/A N/A N/A
i TiEA T
Wang Yagang B 4/4 on N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA T
Huang Peikun I 4/4 7N N/A N/A N/A
A TiEA T
Non-executive Director FHITES
Zhao Ying A 4/4 11 N/A 2/2 N/A
NiEr A
Independent Non-executive Director ~ By FHTES
Zhang Xiaomei RIS 4/4 01 212 212 212
Wei Yu By 4/4 0N 2/2 2/2 2/2
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 4/4 111 212 N/A N/A
TiEA A

* Mr. Chen Lianggiu was appointed as an executive director on 17 May 2016. During
his appointment and up to 31 December 2016, only 2 regular board meetings had
been held.

* BREFKEER2016FSA17TBEZ X ANITE
= o WREMEE2016F12 8310 (HHART - E817
MATHEEE S -
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The directors are also continually updated with legal
and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings and
resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2016:

Read materials

EENFREEXRRE

RBBERNHATERR  ARRERHHE
WEHREEHF AR T ABRRIEHN RS
HBLIEE - 2REEFAPFEEXERRNER
1 WEIRSIMEEE A A R R R B3
?&%%ﬂ%&%&&é& CEENMEBBEEIGHLR
THESERIEREEMRTE  ZHED
o MREIIN
Bl

B

E“Ttﬂ’]r%ﬁﬁﬂ AERITHE
HE2016E12A3N AL EFEREEMETIE
&R FE 8% -

Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to

the Group's business or directors’ duties
SNERAEEEERESHREN

B AR g RREgE T
Wang Jianjun TEE v v/
Chen Liangaiu PR R R 4 v
Yang Yun Hi v 4
Wang Yagang F M v v
Huang Peikun o= g v v
Zhao Ying ﬁ;@ v/ v
Zhang Xiaomei REENE v v
Wei Yu BF v V4
wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoKiE v v
Audit Committee %1‘? £Eg
The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non- NRIBHEZEEGH=-RBIIFRTES  BIE

executive Directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman), Ms.
Zhang Xiaomei and Mr. Wei Yu, was established with specific written terms
of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision of the Group'’s
financial reporting process and internal controls, and recommendation on
the re-appointment of external auditors. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Audit Committee has met twice to review the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, review the
risk management and internal control system of the Group, review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and discuss with the
management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board's
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, was established with specific
written terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management of the Company including making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
for approval by the Board. During the reporting period, the Remuneration
committee met twice to review the remuneration policy for Directors and
senior management of the Company, assess performance of the executive
Directors and approve the terms of service contract entered into during the
reporting period with the executive director, namely Mr. Chen Lianggiu. The
remuneration for the Directors and senior management comprises basic
salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus. Details of the amount
of emoluments of Directors paid for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. Members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Wei Yu (Chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms.
Zhang Xiaomei.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a Director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a Director. During the
reporting period, the Nomination Committee met twice to review the policy
for nomination of directors, review the background and experience of Mr.
Chen Lianggiu and approve the recommendation of Mr. Chen Lianggiu to the
Board for appointment as an executive Director. A candidate to be appointed
as independent non-executive Director must also meet the independence
requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Yu and Ms.
Zhang Xiaomei.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks to
achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
directors, of whom six are males and two are females. Three are independent
non-executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of gender, nationality, professional background
and skills.
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company's policies and practices in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company's compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors opted
for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and used
accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the assistance
of the accounting and finance staffs, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 80 to 84.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, and an effective risk management
and internal control system enhances the Group's ability in achieving
business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws
and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. As such, the Group’s internal control procedures include a
comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance monitoring
system. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function and the Group's risk management and internal control
system annually, covering all key control, including financial, operational and
compliance. The examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and validation
through observation and inspection (if necessary). The result of review will
be reported to the Board and some measures would be proposed if there is
any area for improvement. The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
during the reporting period.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

\g

BEE &
HZE2016F12A318 ILFE - piAREBINEZE
EFTIRIE MRS B BB E BT

Services rendered Fri iy RS Fees paid/payable
Bt &

RMB'000

AREFT

Audit and review services Fit REH RS 2,650

Remuneration of Senior Management
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration of the members of
the senior management is set out by band as follows:

=N EIE B 1Y BN
HZE2016F12A31HLEFE - oA REREN
FERAR T

Band of remuneration (HK$) HAR (FBT) Number of person
A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,008 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2

Company Secretary

Ms. To Yee Man (“Ms. To") was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 4 March 2014. The biographical details of Ms. To are set
out under the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”. For the year ended 31 December 2016, Ms. To has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”).
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Right to Convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal
place of business at Room 1902, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days' notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company'’s
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
Company'’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no change to the
Company's memorandum and articles of association.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included in
the Chairman'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis sections
from pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 52 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 11 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 85.

Dividends

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a dividend of
HKDO.12 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016, representing a total payment of approximately
HKD196,516,920. The annual dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
proposed to be held on 23 June 2017.

Upon shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the annual dividend
will be payable on or around 12 July 2017 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 28 June 2017.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 20 June 2017
to 23 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 June 2017.

In order to qualify for the entitlement of the annual dividend, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 28
June 2017.

Five Year Financial Summary
Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 212.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group’s capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 23 December 2015, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Goldmark Success Ltd. (the “Subscriber”) and other parties,
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the three-year
term 6% convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 12% notes in the principal
amount of US$50,000, 000 (the “Notes”)(the “Subscription”). The Convertible
Bonds and the Notes were secured by the pledge of equity interests in
certain subsidiaries of the Company and guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianjun
(the executive Director and chairman of the Board) and Ms. Zhao Ying (the
non-executive Director and controlling shareholder of the Company).

Completion of the Subscription took place on 30 December 2015 and the
Convertible Bonds and Notes were issued to the Subscriber on the same
day. Holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right at any time during the
term of the Convertible Bonds requiring the Company to convert all or any
part of the principal amount outstanding under the Convertible Bonds into
Shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$3.1 per Share, subject
to adjustments. Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds, a total of
125,000,000 Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) will be issued, representing
approximately 7.63% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 7.09% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the issue of the Conversion Shares. The Conversion Shares, upon issue,
shall rank at least pari passu in all respects with the Shares then in issue. As
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, no conversion
rights under the Convertible Bonds had been exercised.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes,
which amounted to approximately US$98.3 million, was received by the
Company and was intended to be used for the purpose of capital expenditure
(including those relating to merger and acquisition, but excluding repurchase
of shares and any other margin financing related activities) and general
working capital.

Details of the Group's Convertible Bonds and Notes are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on page 88 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2016
amounted to RMB720,578,000.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties.
As at 31 December 2016, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB968.2 million compared to RMB786.0 million as at 31 December 2015.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (ii) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of entire equity interest
of Shing Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi
International.

significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

The Group has made certain disposals during the reporting period. For
details, please refer to page 21 in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this report.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the percentages of purchases
from the Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 24.4%
and 58.2%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers were 30.4% and 42.2%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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Donations
No charitable donations made by the Group during the year (2015:
RMB600,000).

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 917 employees (31
December 2015: 667 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue at the date on which the Scheme as adopted.

On 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted
to certain individuals under the Scheme. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 72,000,000.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the LA AR5 BB AN B 1545 8 T MR T{E -
year:

Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
RABHEHE FRRRGHORE
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2016 during during 2016 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant R2016%F  theyear  theyear  R2016F RoEE  ROBE  ROSDE date date
SmENEERER 118 RERRE RERKXX  12A31A REAH ild IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Executive directors
HTEE
Yang Yun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
B 20155 i3 NER
7H288
Wang Yagang 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
B 20155 lEal TER
7A288
Huang Peikun 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 230 N/A
HiEH 20155 il TER
7R288
13,500,000 - - 13,500,000
Other employees and 68,950,000 - (10,350,000 58,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 2015%F il TER
contributed or may 7R288
contribute to the Group
HitEEREEHTHHARE
fEHERIWAL
82,350,000 - (10,350,0000 72,000,000

Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 sk . =5 2 —R{G5 EIEAER 20167 A28 H 2019
July 2019, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July F7ANBHBITR - BHh=0D 2 —KHH
2019, respectively. REFA20174F7 B 28 H Z20194F 7 B 31 B £if7T
- T =92 — R BN 201847 A28
HZ2019F7 A31 BHARITTHE -

Details of the Group's Share Option Scheme are set out in note 39 to the — A& E KD B ZINFFIBSENRE B IS HREH
consolidated financial statements. 739 ©
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the period.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this report were:

Position
Executive Director, Chairman of

the Board and President of the Company
Executive Director

Directors
Wang Jianjun
(spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying)
Chen Lianggiu (appointed as
an executive director with
effect from 17 May 2016 and
resigned with effect from
17 March 2017)

Yang Yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President
Huang Peikun Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director

(spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun)
Zhang Xiaomei Independent Non-executive Director
Wei Yu Independent Non-executive Director

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 53 to 56. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may be
extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting (“AGM") in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of
association of the Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial
year or at any time during the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2016, the interest or short positions of the directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the Shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares:

Name of Director Nature of interest

\g

EEREROIESFHNER

BAREREES  NRRHEEMMBR RN
Ol B [ R B MR L E M 2B - AR
AIERAHERB AR R REAEMEAB BN
DRESFMERE  MEEFRRS MBI
BRA T F 2 BRI T A BB A R B S AE ]
HAhE NERRIRALEREFOERN - RS
AT ERER -

EREE

=
M2016F12A318 » AARIERREBITHRAE
RARR REREEE(FERESFRBAE KA
([ H R EIE KB ]) FEXVES) BIRR 1 S AR BB AR 10
REHFTHEFREEF RS EAIEI2EAR
RIAGFBENZLMATGCE: - SRR _E A8 BRI &%
TR ST RIA BTG AR B KB X AR
WHABIT

REBRETE
Approximate

percentage of
shareholding

Number of
securities held

bR
ESHR EEME iR 5 HE BHED
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,027,291,664 62.73%
R (FIEE) ZiEHEE R
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,027,291,664 62.73%
TEEEEME2) BB
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 20,000 00.00%

i}

EIESE L T A A

\

Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Profit East Limited.

(2)  Mr. Wang lJianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed "Share Option
Scheme" above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any Share or
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

e

(1) BEXLAFRARATNE—BR - WRAR
FISATR A R BORRH P A S -

@ IREALABRELLORE  WEANHEL
AR B P A -

B BB EE A N X D BT B I D B S - &
BEEMA BEEERTETHRABEARRE
AT {7 SAE R AR 1) h B RS (AR B E 5 e BB 14
{IEE352{ A TR A ST G R OR A ©
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register

FERR

MR2016%F 124318 » AT (ARRESHE
BITHA BBRIN) R D AR D R BRI
FH R HAE & DI 53361468

FEMECMATTE

required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows: KfgEmsAB IR ¢
Long positions in the ordinary Shares: REBBRALTE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
1B FE
BEER ERME i 58 E BHEDL
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,027,291,664 62.73%
FRBRAA BEma A
Wang Wei (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
FAT(MEED) ZiEHEE R
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited* Interest in a controlled Corporation
(Note 1) 163,600,336 9.99%
FYIBREERER AR AR (FIEED) ZiEHEE R
SF Holding (Group) Company Limited* (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
B Rk (SR @) Bt AR A E (FEET) SRl EEE
SF Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled Corporation 163,600,336 9.99%
R A PR A A (i EET) ZiEHEE R
Celestial Ocean Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 163,600,336 9.99%
RKBEEFRAR (D) EmEaA
China Orient Asset Management Corporation Interest in a controlled Corporation
(Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
FERFEEEEERAR(MFE2) SIS EE S
Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
RIRE R (BIR) AR AR (F:2) ZIEGEE R
Wise Leader Assets Ltd. (Note 2) Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
Wise Leader Assets Ltd.(FizE2) SR EE S
China Orient Asset Management (International) Interest in a controlled Corporation
Holding Limited (Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
PEIR T EEEE(BR)ZERERA R (ME2) ZYEGLEE S
China Orient International Asset Management Interest in a controlled Corporation
Limited (Note 2) 125,000,000 7.63%
FERSEREETEBRAR (M) SRl EEE
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled Corporation 125,000,000 7.63%
FEIR A REREES*(M13E2) ZiEHEE R
Goldmark Success Ltd. (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 125,000,000 7.63%

Goldmark Success Ltd.(FftE2)

*  For identification only

* G
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Notes:

(1) Celestial Ocean Investments Limited was directly interested in 163,600,336
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2016. Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was directly wholly-owned by SF Holding Limited, which was, in turn,
directly wholly-owned by SF Holding (Group) Company Limited. SF Holding
(Group) Company Limited was owned as to 68.4% by Shenzhen Minde Holding
Development Limited, which was, in turn, owned as to 99.9% by Wang Wei.
Therefore, each of SF Holding Limited, SF Holding (Group) Company Limited,
Shenzhen Minde Holding Development Limited and Mr. Wang Wei was deemed
to be interested in the 163,600,336 Shares in which Celestial Ocean Investments
Limited was interested.

(20 Goldmark Success Ltd., the subscriber of the Convertible Bonds issued by the
Company on 30 December 2015, was directly interested in 125,000,000 shares
of the Company as at 31 December 2016. Goldmark Success Ltd. was owned
as to 45% by China Orient Alternative Investment Fund and was controlled by
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund, which was, in turn, directly wholly-
owned by China Orient International Asset Management Limited. China Orient
International Asset Management Limited is directly wholly-owned by China
Orient Asset Management (International) Holding Limited. China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited was owned as to 50% by Wise Leader
Assets Ltd. and 50% by Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited and Wise Leader
Assets Ltd. was, in turn, also directly wholly-owned by Dong Yin Development
(Holdings) Limited. by Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited was directly
wholly-owned by China Orient Asset Management Corporation. Therefore, each
of China Orient Alternative Investment Fund, China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited, Wise Leader Assets Ltd., Dong Yin Development
(Holdings) Limited and China Orient Asset Management Corporation was deemed
to be interested in the 125,000,000 Shares in which Goldmark Success Ltd. was
interested.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any Shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2016.

TEE

(1) H2016F12831H *» KBEREERAARAR
F1163,600336 RO P A EE R - KR
BAEBRARHIBELERERAREEEEHES -
i EL R A R A A AR B % (@) R A
RAFEEZEHSE - IBLER(EE)BRNHER
AREFRINBEERERBRRAHEF68.4%
mRYIAEERERAR AR TALERS
99.9% ° Ht - IELIERARAR - JELZERR (%
E)RNDBIRAR - FYIARERERBR AR
REFGEAEZTEMERBRRNEREBR AR
B HEZEM163,600,336 %A% (D R #E A 1 o

(20  M2016%12A318 » Goldmark Success Ltd. (4
AAFR2015F 12 A30 A #ATH Al IR B H AR
88 A ) FAZN A §]125,000,000% A& 19 7 1 5 B # 42
%5 ° Goldmark Success Ltd. /3 #F B 88 75 3 45 %
BESHELS%  WHTBERESBEREESE
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BREEEBERARERSZERSE - FERA
BREEEEARARATFBERAFEEEE(H
BOERERAREELERE - FERFEE
&2 (B ) BBR A & B Wise Leader Assets Ltd.
B 50% K R AR EE (BIIR ) B BR A A A 50%
MWise Leader Assets Ltd. Bl [ B F3 58 65 2% &= (B
BOBRAREELERES - RRFR(BEFK)E
BAGIHPERSEECEBRAREEE2ER
oAl PERAZERERES  PERFE
EEE (BB )IERBR AR - Wise Leader Assets
ltd. - RIRBER(BE)ERARRTFERSEE
BEEBRARSE B MR AR Goldmark Success
Ltd. B 125 89125,000,0008% % 7 17 A #E 2% ©
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During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Company. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating
to Specific Performance of the Controlling
Shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes issued by the
Company on 30 December 2015, Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, being
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company, have undertaken to, so long
as any part of the Convertible Bonds or the Notes is outstanding, maintain an
aggregate beneficial ownership (directly or indirectly) of not less than 51% in
the issued share capital of the Company except as a result of the conversion
of the Convertible Bonds. A breach of such covenant may constitute an event
of default pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes.

The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

On 29 June 2016, the Company and three of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd.* (ER$h i [& 5= HhE B
£ APR AR, Langfang VAST Industrial Urban Investment Co., Ltd.* (Esthm 7%=
FEEMEREABRAR) ("Langfang VAST”) and Langfang Sheng Shi Tonghui
Park Construction & Development Co., Ltd.* (R g% th 3 e [ (@ i 5 2
BARAF]) (“Sheng Shi Tonghui”), entered into a cooperation agreement
(the “"Cooperation Agreement”) with Shenzhen Pingan UOB Huitong Wealth
Management Co., Ltd.* (RIITFL REERBP EEIEZER A A ("Pingan
UOB") for the establishment of an asset management fund by Pingan UOB
to raise RMB1 billion, among which, RMB700,000 is used for the payment
of the total consideration for 70% equity interest in Sheng Shi Tonghui and
the remaining balance is granted to Sheng Shi Tonghui as an entrusted
loan (the “Entrusted Loan"). Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the
parties further entered into an entrusted loan agreement, equity transfer
and repurchase agreement, equity repurchase guarantee agreement and a
custodial funds agreement (all agreements, together with the Cooperation
Agreement, the “Transaction Documents”) in relation to, among others, the
transfer of 70% equity interest in Sheng Shi Tonghui from Langfang VAST to
Pingan UOB (the “Equity Transfer”), the repurchase of the 70% equity interest
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in Sheng Shi Tonghui by Langfang VAST from Pingan UOB at a predetermined
price on the fifth anniversary of completion of the Equity Transfer and the
grant of the Entrusted Loan to Sheng Shi Tonghui through Liaoning Shen Fu
Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.* Bz L RN EmERITRMHERAR]) as
the lending bank at an interest rate of 8.2% per annum for a term of three to
five years.

Upon completion of the Equity Transfer, Sheng Shi Tonghui is owned as to
30% and 70% by Langfang VAST and Pingan UOB, respectively, and Pingan
UOB has become a substantial shareholder of Sheng Shi Tonghui. As the
Company has continued to account for Sheng Shi Tonghui as a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Pingan UOB becomes a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As a result, the
transactions contemplated under the Transaction Documents constituted
connected transactions between the Company and a connected person at
the subsidiary level and are exempt from the circular, independent financial
advice and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 29 June 2016 and 4 July 2016. Details of the related party transactions
undertaken by the Group in the normal course of business are set out in Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 December 2016, the controlling shareholder of the Company, Profit
East Limited, has provided an unsecured loan of HK$50,000,000 to the
Company at an interest rate of 8% per annum for a term of one year. As the
loan is unsecured and conducted on normal commercial terms or better to
the Group, the loan is fully exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and there was no connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Group that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive Directors) have
confirmed that the connected transactions disclosed above are on normal
commercial terms and their respective terms are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company
has complied with all the reporting, announcement and other applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
connected transactions disclosed above.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Period.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company is committed to support environmental sustainability. The
Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to the principle
of recycling and reducing, including encouraging double-sided printing and
copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Company will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
in the operation of the Group's businesses. The Company will publish
its environmental, social and governance report on an annual basis in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.
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Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.

Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company in its global
offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and related expenses, and
without taking into account the exercise of over-allotment option) amounted
to approximately HKD927.1 million. Up to 31 December 2016, the Group has
used all of the net proceeds in accordance with the proposed usage as set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2014 and details
can be referred to the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

31 March 2017, Hong Kong
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Independent RAuditor's Report

BB RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Island with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China VAST
Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to
211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E MR E

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

\g

BAEETEE

RASR R A SR TE R AE AN BRI (P e ek 2 T -
ERMEAGAVBRERDBRREANSEIE -
EESEHERMERA RN B REFNRERE
EERELIANER  HRELERLMHT
REEBENER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEREEE BRANES RN ELHERENSE
Revenue recognized for property sales
EEHENBARZ

We identified the revenue from sales of properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the amount and volume
of sales transactions recognized during the year.

B EEHSIERBRETFHEAAEERRH2EEKRE

RHBERS o

Details of revenue from sales of properties are set out in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.
AR EEEENAMELR S P SRR T HMEES7IRA -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognized for property
sales included:
HEEHSHBENEREE

o Testing key internal control over revenue recognition on a
sample basis.
LA % - BEMERERA MR ETRZEAIR -

. Selecting property sales transactions on a sample basis
and:
AR % - BEEEEENR

- reading the signed sales and purchase agreements
to understand the relevant terms of the timing of
property delivery and title transfer;

-  SHEEER FAREBRERETERRERIM
PR e e 16K

- obtaining evidence regarding the property delivery
and title transfer;
- ERXERENFTEREELER

- reconciling the monetary amounts of recorded
transactions and related payments to the signed
sales and purchase agreements.

-  ERRSRHENHSEUARMEBEONRERNEES
|§J °
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Independent RAuditor's Report
B H R

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Independent Auditor's Report
B E MR E

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent RAuditor's Report
B H R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEBEm Rk HMRS KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 201641231 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BIE12A31ALFE
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
gz AR¥F T AREBFT

Revenue WA 5 1,965,181 1,423,706
Cost of sales and services HE KRB (1,340,786) (812,723)
Gross profit ES 624,395 610,983
Other income EAbl A 7 458,171 142,484
Other expenses EfbZ 7 (355) (1,989)
Other gains and losses H e & E1E 8 335,468 34,573
Selling and marketing expenses HERTIBITHAY (60,096) (55,248)
Administrative expenses ITBR Y (198,177) (107,936)
Finance costs BhE R AN 9 (242,463) (76,069)
Gain on fair value change of investment WEMERNTE

properties BE)Wa 16 3,673 115,529
Share of profits of associates B N EIRE W 18 15,427 18,637
Share of losses of a joint venture AENFIRERHE 19 (28) -
Gain on fair value change of derivative PTHEMB I AN EZE RS 30 5,302 -
Profit before tax BRI A A 10 941,317 680,964
Income tax expense FriSfiF 12 (272,945) (167,383)
Profit for the year ARE T 668,372 513,581
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wz
Items that will not be reclassified to A K EFEFEE

profit or loss By E
Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied MEER

properties upon

Transfer to investment properties Ay EEE RS 16 32,054 -

Income tax effect FEfisE 21 (8,013) -
Other comprehensive income for the year — ZRHRE fih 2 E U 35 24,041 -
Total comprehensive income R AREE AEML

for the year e 692,413 513,581
Profit (loss) attributable to: wA B RSB

Owners of the Company IN/NCIE YN 668,986 513,581

Non-controlling interests DENGER (614) -

668,372 513,581

Profit and total comprehensive income iR REE

(expense) attributable to: I aagE -

Owners of the Company FiN/NIE = DN 693,027 513,581

Non-controlling interests LERRR (614) -
Total comprehensive income RERHEREEE

for the year 692,413 513,581
Earnings per share BRREA

Basic (RMB) HEAR(ARE) 14 0.41 0.31

Diluted (RMB) e (ARE) 14 0.41 0.31

Annual Report 2016 £



)Eonsalidated Statement of Financial Position
mEBBER TR

AS at 31 December 2016 R20164F 12531 H

At 31 December

#A12831H
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BENREE 15 71,579 30,715
Investment properties &Y 16 1,247,768 942,800
Prepaid lease payments TENRERE 17 = 2,053
Interests in associates SN R AR 18 149,545 147,427
Interest in a joint venture HELNRNER 19 59,972 -
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 20 3,300 3,300
Trade receivables B S RMGRE 24 - 57,116
Restricted bank deposits ZREIERITIER 26 600,000 -
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 21 37,419 34,548
2,169,583 1,217,959
Current assets MEVEE
In progress land development FELHHAEIER
arrangements 22 2,490,246 1,753,260
Properties under development for sale FEHRETME 23 1,347,781 1,382,620
Completed properties for sale FECRTIME 1,006,058 1,400,628
Prepaid lease payments TENRERE 17 - 75
Trade receivables Z S REMGRE 24 943,160 478,266
Prepayments and other receivables TE R F At FE W 5018 25 490,761 464,865
Amounts due from related parties FEUR BRES 5 E 41(a) 1,209 3,606
Income tax recoverable A E S 8,590 42,989
Restricted bank deposits SIRBIRITER 26 161,495 506,477
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 26 2,707,529 1,058,518
9,156,829 7,091,304
Total assets BEHEE 11,326,412 8,309,263
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M FERTRRIE 27 1,157,842 963,520
Bills payable FENEE 28 - 15,000
Advance from customers for properties BRIEHEMED
developed for sale BERI 842,773 96,616
Amounts due to related parties FESHREE 5 0B 41(a) 67,036 3,104
Current tax liabilities REHREAE 506,253 340,187
Bank and other borrowings ERIT R H AT 29 1,523,229 1,854,559
4,097,133 3,272,986
Net current assets REEEFE 5,059,696 3,818,318
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBEE 7,229,279 5,036,277

86 B R HRE T E AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e M AR R ()

AS at 31 December 2016 1R20164F 12931 H

\g

At 31 December

#A12831H
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bi7E ARET T AREF T
Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMIER 29 3,087,437 1,498,327
Convertible Bonds and Notes AIEIRESFER 30 652,740 579,714
Derivative PTHEMBIE 30 61,619 62,643
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 21 42,602 74,270
3,844,398 2,214,954
Net assets BEFE 3,384,881 2,821,323
Capital and reserves AR R fE
Share capital %N 31 13,031 13,031
Reserves G 32 3,370,504 2,808,292
Equity attributable to owners of QR AFE(L e
the Company 3,383,535 2,821,323
Non-controlling interests DBIAR R RS AhE 1,346 -
TOTAL EQUITY T AREE 3,384,881 2,821,323

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 211 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2017 and signed

on its behalf by:

Director &%

EE2S0N2017F3 831 B #E &I 54 TR
FESSERFE21NBMGZEMIEHRE  WHNUTE
ERREZEFE

Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 22016 1231 H 1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

BENAAFEE
Equity
attributable
Property Share to non-
Share Share  Merger  Capital Statutory revaluation  option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total interest  equity
RENE REHE SURR
BE  BARE AHEE  EADE  BHOE  ERRE B RORNE @t BE ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETR AR¥TR
At 1 January 2015 H201551518 13031 1058359 48 28,062 199,641 = - 1201667 2,500,808 2,500,808
Profit and other ERETFELL
comprehensive income 2 EME
for the year - - - - - - - 513581 513,581 - 513581
Appropriations to statutory 1REUEE AT
fesernve - - - - 571790 - - (57.790) - - -
Dividend distribution AEEF - (197817) - - - - - - (19781) - (19781)
Recognition of RELE MY
equity-settled B2
share-based payments - - - - - - 4751 - 4751 - 4751
At 31 December 2015 120155128318 1301 80542 ® B B - LT 8T8 280138 - 2830
Profitand fotal ERETFEL
comprehensiveincome 2 EME
(expense) for the year - - - - - UM - 66898 693,027 (614) 692,413
Appropriations to statutory 1REUEE BT
Teserve = = = = 72,809 = - (72,809) = = =
Dividend distribution AEEF - (139.964) 3 = = = = - (139,964) - (139,964)
Recognition of RELE MY
equity-settled B2
share-nased payments - - - - - - 9,149 - 9,149 - 9,149
Captal contribution by~ »ERRATE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 1,960 1,960
At 31December 2016 120165128318 13,031 720,578 48 28,062 330,240 24,011 13900 2,253,635 3,383,535 1,346 3,384,881

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows .
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 20164 12 531 H 1F F/Z

Year ended 31 December

BL12A3MALEE
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BfaE ARETR AERETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KT
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FR A5 AT ) 941,317 680,964
Adjustments for: AT S ML A
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BENEETE
equipment 5,198 3,329
Prepaid lease payments released to EREERNANEENIE
profit or loss = 75
Changes in fair value of investment REMELNTER
properties (3,673) (115,529)
Share of profits of associates i kNS e (15,427) (18,637)
Share of losses of a joint venture EiHAERREE 28 -
Exchange gains and losses R Y5y ot 36,106 (17,335)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BEK
equipment B GEo e (312) (499)
Interest income FLEWA (24,727) (12,499)
Finance costs RLE AA 242,463 76,069
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BETFRrlE (368,618) (34,567)
Loss on disposal of associates % B & A RS 1E 1,375 -
Share-based payment expenses BRI E 9,149 4,751
Gain on fair value change of derivative PTHER BT ENHESEES (5,302) -
Operating cash flows before movements &8 & & & B ATHY
in working capital KEBERE 817,577 566,122
Increase in progress land development FELHBXIER M
arrangements (593,527) (330,604)
(Increase) decrease in properties under FERRPYEOGE IR
development for sales (49,357) 1,133,371
Decrease (increase) in completed FED B TYWERL(EM)
properties for sale 394,570 (721,481)
Increase in trade receivables E) e (407,778) (135,918)
Increase in prepayments and TE 15 3R TE K H A R R
other receivables FRIEE N (6,559) (358,342)
Decrease in refundable deposits on land T HbFAEE AR E
development activities REBEE D (30,000) (4,500)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other E 5N E MRS FIEE A CR )
payables 765,501 (216,524)
(Decrease) increase in bills payable FERR =AY GR35 N (15,000) 15,000
Increase in amounts due to related parties  FELUg BaEsE 5 ZIEIE AN 19,075 -
Cash generated from (used in) operations &2 EEIRESFTE(FTH) 894,502 (52,876)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid Sz ER{EH &+ b 38E R (115,032) (50,053)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 4 E8NFT1E(FTA )& 558 779,470 (102,929)

Annual Report 2016 4 %R 89



Y

90

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
GEReRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2016 12431 H 1F F/E

Year ended 31 December

HiE12831B81LEEE
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETH
ACTIVITIES
Interest income received BUF 2 A 33,153 12,499
Payments for acquisition of property, TBEME  BEX
plant and equipment R RRRIE (70,472) (4,572)
Payments for acquisition of investment IR E S N RRIE
properties (38,817) (79,464)
Repayment of loan receivables BERKER - 20,000
Loan receivable raised IR E R (40,030) -
Payments for investment in associates MEE R EIRE = (39,200)
Payments for investment in a joint venture @& &R FIRE (60,000) -
Payments for acquisition of available-for- & a] fit H&E8&
sale investment - (3,300)
Proceeds from disposal of associates AR R & 2 RIFT1S 5RIE 11,934 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEME  BEX
plant and equipment RSB 1,404 892
Restricted bank deposits withdrawn BRIV Z R HIRTT1F K 471,600 240,845
Restricted bank deposits placed EFEARZREIRITIFR (726,618) (380,320)
Repayment of advance to related parties  @RB3E: 7T B HIE R 3,606 -
Advance to related parties Bk (1,209) (3,606)
Cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEF N T FERIE 40 537,487 -
Net cash from (used in) investing activities & & )EENFTE(FTH )R & /558 122,038 (236,226)

B E R E E TR E B R A 7] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) \
mEBEERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2016 12431 H 1F F/E

Year ended 31 December

BIL12A31BLLFE
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BfaE ARET AERETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING A& EE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised e ARITER 1,944,489 1,131,373
New other loans raised g AEHMER 1,982,923 780,475
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIETER (1,280,425) (677,500
Repayment of other loans HAERUER (1,269,703) (805,662)
Advance from related parties FrILEANE T IR A B 44,857 -
Interest paid ERFE (539,979) (298,504)
Dividend paid BT ARF (139,964) (197,817
Issuing Convertible Bonds and Notes BATAIERE SRR = 637,520
Issuance costs of Convertible Bonds BT EIRESNER 30 - (724)
Capital contribution by non-controlling LERRRAEE
shareholder 1,960 -
Net cash from financing activities BMEEBMERSFE 744,158 569,161
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBLEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS FFITHNER 1,645,666 230,006
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERBLEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,058,518 802,596
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GINE [ SR B B Ro 22 3,345 25,916
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBESRBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and MBITERRRES
cash 2,707,529 1,058,518

Annual Report 2016 4 %R 91



Y

92

General Information

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the
"Company”) was incorporated and registered as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 25 August 2014.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal activity of the
Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged
in the land development, property development and property leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying together with her husband,
Mr. Wang Jianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB which
is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand ('000) unless otherwise indicated.

Application of New and Amendments to

International Financial Reporting Standards

(“IFRSS")

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs for the first

time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSS

2012-2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to IFRSS
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current year and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to IAS 1 clarify
that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by an
IFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is not material,
and give guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. However, the amendments
reiterate that an entity should consider providing additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient
to enable users of financial statements to understand the impact of
particular transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the other
comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the equity
methods should be presented separately from those arising from
the Group, and should be separated into the share of items that, in
accordance with other IFRSs: (i) will not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (i) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments
provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively. To give
prominence to the areas of the Group’s activities that management
considers to be most relevant to an understanding of the Group's
financial performance and financial position, the ordering of certain
notes have been revised, specifically, information relating to capital
risk management, financial instruments and subsidiaries were
reordered to Note 33, Note 34 and Note 42 respectively. Other than
the above presentation and disclosure changes, the application of the
amendments to IAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Group in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2.

International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new, amendments and
interpretation to IFRSS that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventures
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiatives
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses?

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
Standards 2014-2016 Cycles

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards

(“IFRSS") (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI"). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or 10ss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.
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Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets. The
Group’s available-for-sale investments, currently stated at cost less
impairment, will either be measured as fair value through profit or loss
or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the designation
criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in early
and additional provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised costs.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of IFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as well
as licensing application guidance.

The Directors are in the process of assessing the potential impacts of
IFRS 15 on the Group's contracts with customers in respect of sales
of properties and land development arrangements, in particular, the
identification of performance obligations under IFRS 15, the allocation
total consideration to the respective performance obligations based
on relative fair values and whether these contracts contain significant
financing components. Furthermore, revenue on sales of properties
will be recognised when customers obtain control over the properties
under IFRS 15 as compared to upon transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership under IAS 18. These impacts may potentially
affect the timing and amounts of revenue recognition. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS
15 until the Group performs a detailed review. The application of IFRS
15 in the future may also result in more disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statement to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the following
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flow; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the amendments
will result in addition disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position for liabilities arising
from financing activities will be provided on application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangement and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
IFRS 16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognized for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest expense and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of IFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be both presented as financing cash flows by the
Group.

under 1AS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application
of IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.
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Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") (continued)

IAS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As set out in Note 35, total operating lease commitments of the Group
as at 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB76,576,000. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of IFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the financial effect until the directors of the Company
complete a detailed review.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of other new, amendments and interpretation to IFRSS
will have a material impact on amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and conversion
option derivative which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value
inuse in IAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERFEEw

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee,

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognizes the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognizes
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognizes
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loss of control of subsidiaries (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services rendered in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loss of control of subsidiaries (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from land development arrangements

For land development projects under collaboration arrangements with
local government authority, the Group is given the right to carry out
construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
within certain districts. When the land plots are sold by the local
government authority to land buyers through public auction, tender
or listing, the Group is entitled to receive from the local government
authority a proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

The Group's share of the proceeds from the land development is
recognised upon completion of related construction works and when
the amount of income can be measured reliably, which occurs upon
sales of land plots by the local government authority. Accordingly, at
the time of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to be received from the
local government authority by the Group are recognised as income.

Revenue from construction contract with certain local government
authority for land development is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus
margin. The Group’s entitlement to additional income relating to these
land development activities in the form of marketing and promotional
service is recognised when such income become receivable in
accordance with the specific rate and basis set out in the relevant
service agreements entered into between the Group and the local
government authority.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Operating lease income

Operating lease income from investment properties is recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease term which is the non-cancellable
period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

significant Accounting Policies continued) BEESTHE @
Loss of control of subsidiaries (continued) KEMEB D AAIES (@)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA RERR (@)

Interest income FLEUIA

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Construction contract

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from cost plus contracts is recognized by reference
to the recoverable cost incurred during the period plus the fee earned,
measured by the proportion that cost incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of the contract.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognized to the extent of contract cost
incurred that it is possible will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognized as expense immediately.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognized profits less
recognized losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognized
profits less recognized losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract work. Amount received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as advances received, if any. Amounts billed for
work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade receivables, if
any.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
pUrpOSES).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for
as investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

If any item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has Changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or l0ss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In progress land development arrangements
Development cost of in progress land development arrangements
comprises the aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies,
capitalised staff costs, capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing
funds during the period of construction and other costs directly
attributable to such in progress land development arrangements.

In progress land development arrangements is stated at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value takes into account
the Group's share of estimated proceeds derived from the sale of in
progress land development arrangements by the local government
authorities, less costs to completion and the costs to be incurred
in realizing the revenue derived from the sale of in progress land
development arrangements based on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold in the
ordinary course of business upon completion of development are
classified as current assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and anticipated cost to completion. Costs include the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to completed
properties for sale upon completion.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and managing an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

3. Significant Accounting Policies continued) 3. EERTEEw

Leases (Continued) HEw®)
The Group as lessee AEEERABEA

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the lease is classified as an operating
leases. Specially, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as "prepaid lease payments" in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or 10ss
in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions of the Company
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of
the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 39 to these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognized
in share options reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are nor recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.

The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investment or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL").

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity instruments that do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets set out
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organization.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment l0ss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial assets. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

BEESHBERw®

Financial instruments (Continued) E@MIT R
Financial assets (Continued) BSEE®)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREENREE)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points,
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

o On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liability.

Other financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings and amounts due to related
parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the
amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised over the
guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible bonds

The component parts of convertible bonds issued by the Company
are classified separately in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
component are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the debt
component of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The derivative component is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or l0ss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and are
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method. Transaction costs relating to the derivative component
are charged to profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivative when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or l0ss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss, expect for waiver of financial liabilities by Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders which is considered as deemed contribution.

When an existing financial liability’s terms are modified and such
modification results in the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms including any fees paid net of any fees received is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present values of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability, it is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and a recognition
of a new financial liability with the difference, being the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the fair value of the
financial liability issued, recognised in profit or loss. If such modification
is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate asserts are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment l0ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior year. A reversal of an impairment l0ss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the Directors have reviewed the Group's investment properties and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time
through rental income. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors have exercised their judgment and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2016 were approximately RMB1,247,768,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB942,800,000). More details are set out in note 16.

Provision for the cost of in progress land
development arrangements

The Group’s in progress land development arrangements is stated at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the cost is higher than
the estimated net realizable value, provision for the excess of cost of
in progress land development arrangements over its net realizable
value should be made. A provision for 10ss on onerous contracts
would be made by the Group if it has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Determination of these provisions would require the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying amount and provision for 10ss on in progress
land development arrangements and the provision for loss on onerous
contract in the periods in which such estimate is changed will be
adjusted accordingly.

The carrying amount of in progress land development arrangements
as at 31 December 2016 was approximately RMB2,490,246,000 (31
December 2015: RMB1,753,260,000). More details are set out in note
22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), according to the requirements set forth in the
relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual land appreciation
tax liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects. Accordingly,
significant estimate is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group
recognizes land appreciation tax based on management'’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the
periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

As at 31 December 2016, the amount of provision for land appreciation
tax which were included in current tax liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial position were RMB16,335,000 (31 December
2015: RMB2,697,000).

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets of RMB37,419,000
(31 December 2015: RMB34,548,000) were recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and deferred tax assets
in respect of certain tax losses of RMB94,800,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB57,923,000) were not recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realization of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
or more than expected, a reversal or future provision of deferred tax
assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which such a reversal or further provision takes place.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 4.
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Recoverability of trade receivables from sale of
blocks of buildings to entities controlled by local

government authorities

Impairment on trade receivables from sale of blocks of buildings to
entities controlled by local government authorities is determined by
management when there is objective evidence, e.g., it becoming
probable that a debtor will enter bankruptcy or is having significant
financial difficulty. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade receivable of
this nature was RMB61,176,000 (31 December 2015: RMB92,116,000).

Further details are set out in note 24.

5. Revenue

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue for the year ended

31 December 2016.

B8 e ot M BT K fh 5 T B9 BB
AENFEERR )

EErT THEBARZNEERR (%)

O EBFEHNEREEEER
FHE S EWFRIER TR E 4

BEEEERAMEBATRBTERARE
MIRREE) TR - BIEERER A E IR
FREGINEBHESERTNE HRIK
BEHRE - EERARKRSREENE
HIRS - ATREEAEEANREEIE

E2016F 12 A31H - & LillEESNE
S WK IEREE A AR 61,176,000
TL (2015412 A318 + AR 92,116,000
TL) © i — SRR AT FE24 o

5. WA
AN 2EBHZE2016F12 A3 HHKRAD
#r o

Year ended 31 December

#Z12H31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET R ARETT

Income arising from land b A B E A

development arrangements 954,305 472,197
Revenue from the sales of properties L ESLITEALGN 989,716 940,921
Revenue from property leasing VISR EEBA 21,160 10,588
1,965,181 1,423,706
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Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company are identified as the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses
of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Land development
Property development
Property leasing

- Land infrastructure development
— Development and sale of properties
— Lease of properties

Inter-segment sales are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the prevailing market price.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

6. DEERE

BROBRERMIEEENS A& H
EHEAAEENIELERES
(TCODM ) © Bto B B IR A FT 14 2 4& M M)

FELERREZROEMFIEFRE
EEMEMEER - AEEMLERBED
2T

THbFIE — T AR R
YL —MEERNMHE
MERE —HEMHE
DEEHELRANRRITHERNE =7

HENEEETRS

Segment revenue and results DEBARESE
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Eliminations Total
TR NERE NERE AHE BHHEH fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRE  ARETR  AR%TR
For the year ended E12016%12A318
31 December 2016
Segment revenue Al
- External segment revenue —EHEblg 954,305 989,716 21,160 1,965,181 - 1,965,181
- Inter-segment revenue (note a)  — ¥R EpUER (Hfta) 7,546 - - 7,546 (7,546) -
Consolidated revenue Fela 961,851 989,716 21,160 1,972,727 (7,546) 1,965,181
Segment results AfEE 248,417 221,898 22,480 492,795 (7,546) 485,249
Unallocated profit or lossitems: &7 SAIEMEBLIER
Other income L1 UN 211,916
Other gains and losses Eila RER 330,006
Seling and marketing expenses  $HERHIRITHMX (23,154)
Administrative expenses EY (68,002)
Gain on fair value change of ITESBTANT(E
derivative ol 5,302
Profit before tax BRBATRA 943,317




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. ZEEEw
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBBMA R & (&)
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Eliminations Total
T NERRE NERE PEEH BHHEE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBTT ARBTTL ARBTTL
For the year ended E12015%12A318
31 December 2015
Segment revenue AEE
- External segment revenue — B El 172,197 940,921 10,588 1,423,706 - 1,423,706
-Inter-segment revenue (notea)  — ¥R EpUER (i) 77,151 - - 77,151 (77,151) -
Consolidated revenue FAkE 549,348 940,921 10,588 1,500,857 (77,151) 1,423,706
Segment results AN EE 512,098 212,298 125,893 850,289 (77,151) 773138
Unallocated profit or lossitems: &2 $FIEMIEXEE
Other income HilA 3937
Other expenses EthE (1,285)
Other gains and losses HhlhsRER (11,318)
Seling and marketing expenses & RAIS{TiERX (12819)
Administrative expenses SGE (70,689)
Profit before tax BREALEF 680,964
Note: BEE
a.  The amount represents intersegment sales between land development a. ZHESERERFE LD E Ry
segment and property development segment. Income from sales of land EDBZANEE - EEBITAELEN
plots under collaboration arrangements with the local government authority 6 b R B0 U A B B S ) S IR EE A RO RR
were eliminated against the cost of properties under development for sale AHETTHEE ©
in which these income are derived.
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments K RAREDBDEN TR REL S

information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represent the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
certain items incurred for central management purpose, including
certain other income, other expenses, other gains and losses, selling
and marketing expenses, administrative expenses and gain on fair
value change of derivative. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

S 755 SR 2 P RE AT st ) A £ ) 6 AR R R AR
R o DEPEBEEARD P REEELNE
TIHAMNE S MAKBROFE(BR) - &2
BETHEMEA - Efd - HlRER
B HERMISITHEMAS  TREXRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. PEEE
Segment assets and liabilities PHEENSBEE
Land Property Property
development development leasing Total
T i BAE MERR YEEE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR%¥®Tx AR%Tx
As at 31 December 2016 B Z2016%F12831H
Segment assets DEVEE 4,963,140 4,126,641 1,247,768 10,337,549
Inter-segment elimination D ERHEE (326,853)
Unallocated assets: KOHEE -
Property, plant and equipment 49 - HiE k& 26,183
Deferred tax assets RERIBE B 37,419
Prepayments and other TE R E b FE MR IE
receivables 59,689
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRIAS 1,183,835
Income tax recoverable A E S 8,590
Total assets REE 11,326,412
Segment liabilities HEEE 3,832,202 3,051,084 = 6,883,286
Inter-segment elimination D EREE (326,853)
Unallocated liabilities: KPDEEE
Other payables EAb B FIE 59,751
Amount due to related parties FE{-) Ba NG 5 5RIE 62,133
Current tax liabilities REHEAE 506,253
Convertible Bonds and Notes ArEEA R EE 652,740
Derivative PTEMBITA 61,619
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 42,602
Total liabilities wrats 7,941,531
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. ZEEEw
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEENMsBEB @)
Land Property Property
development  development leasing Total
+ 3 BAEE MFEER MERE &&t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2015 B Z2015%12831H
Segment assets DEEE 3,306,837 4,084,814 942,800 8,334,451
Inter-segment elimination 7 EBEHEH (400,908)
Unallocated assets: ROBEEE :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1%¥ - BiE M RE 26,058
Deferred tax assets EERIBE B 34,548
Prepayments and other TE R R EAth e Y k1A
receivables 39,557
Bank balances and cash WITEBR KIS 232,568
Income tax recoverable AR E S 42,989
Total assets REE 8,309,263
Segment liabilities AEEE 2,900,728 1,899,219 - 4,799,947
Inter-segment elimination D EREE (400,908)
Unallocated liabilities: KosFarls
Other payables HAb R RE 28,983
Amount due to a related party FELS a5 2B 3,104
Current tax liabilities mETIEAE 340,187
Convertible Bonds and Notes nEEAEREE 579,714
Derivative PTHEMBIA 62,643
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIIEAE 74,270
Total liabilities HmafE 5,487,940
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6. Segment Information (continue)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain property, plant and equipment, deferred tax
assets, certain prepayments and other receivables, income tax
recoverable and certain bank balances and cash, all other assets
are allocated to segment assets; and

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain other payables, amount due to related parties,
current tax liabilities, Convertible Bonds and Notes, derivative and
deferred tax liabilities, all other liabilities are allocated to segment
liabilities.

Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DEIE B )
PTHEEMsHEE @)
PG RB RS BHELR -

BRhREEMELNEE(BEE
TWE  WELRE  BREHES
E - ETAMNFAREMEKTIE -
AR TSR R R TRIT A SRR E
)N BEEMBEEDREDHE
ER

BRrhREEMELNAG(RESR
THAMENFR - & T RSB T 5%
B ORBRAEAE  UTEBRESLER
BOTEMBIAREERSHE
B9 ERMBEIEENHE

& -

Hig o &ES
BZ2016F12A31H

SHEBENBHEREI D BEENE

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Elimination  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
TIHE% NERR NERE k) bk ES) L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  AR%Tn  ARETx
Additionto non-current assets  3ERBIEEMEN 15,203 54,066 - 69,269 - 1,203 70,472
Interests in associates REERANER 56,351 93,194 - 149,545 - - 149,545
Interest in ajoint venture REELTENES 59,972 - - 59,972 - - 59,972
Interest income FlEMA 94,014 223 - 94,237 (72,406) 2,896 24,727
Interest expense MEXH
- Charge to the profit or loss —HABR 242,463 - - 242,463 - - 242,463
- Capitalization —Exf 215,865 72,406 - 288,271 (72,406) - 215,865
Gain on disposal of property, RENE BER
plant and equipment BlClolen 212 5 - 217 - 95 312
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  BEFAEME - 368,618 - 368,618 - - 368,618
Share of profit of associates NG e 1,610 13,817 - 15,427 - - 15,427
Share of losses of a joint venture  FElEAL AN 28 - - 28 - - 28
Depreciation HE 2,811 2,303 - 5114 - 84 5,198
Change in fair value of investment &R &1E9E
properties NTERE - - 3,613 3,673 - - 3,673
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6. Segment Information (continue)

Other segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

PEEE @)

Hittn 82 )
#£2015%12A31H
SEBES BBEAS HEAENE

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Elimination Unallocated ~ Consolidated
TitRE NELE NEHE R =gl RO Al
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ABETR  ARETT ARETr  ARETr  ARETR ARETH
Addition to non-current assets EREGEEMNEM 923 1416 - 2339 - 2233 4,572
Interest in associates REERAIMME 68,051 79376 - 147,427 - - 147,427
Interest income FlEMA 131,842 o - 132,264 (123,702) 3937 12499
Interest expense MEXH
- Charge to the profit or loss —HABR 76,069 - - 76,069 - - 76,069
- Capitalization —Ex 233895 123,702 - 357,597 (123,702) - 233895
Gain on disposal of property, RENE  BER
plant and equipment BlGlolen 1 164 - 405 - % 49
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ REF A - 34,567 - 34,567 - - 34,567
Share of profit of associates BiEBELAE 3026 15,611 - 18637 - - 18637
Depreciation HE 1,002 210 - 1212 - 2117 3329
Prepaid lease payments released  ERE R
o profit or loss BHAER - 75 - 75 - - 75
Change in fair value of investment &l #1%
properties LTERE - - 115529 115,529 - - 115,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. PEEE
Information about major customers FRTEEZFNER
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the KEEREBKRZI0%A EHEFHNZBE
Group’s revenue is as follows: IEsanT
Year ended 31 December
B112A8318 L
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Customer A2 BPA? N/A 374,335
Customer B2 ZFEBR? 596,942 N/A
596,942 374,335
Notes: BisE -
1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group's 1. HEERSEAEERZETHEB10%
revenue.
2. Income arising from land development arrangements. 2. HREKA
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations REBRBESE TSI HENIN
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in the PRC. Non-current AEPHmEREPE  AEEKREEM
assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in the PRC. O MMEREEER 2N o
7. Other Income and Expenses 7. HitWAMBX

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A318 L1245/
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Other income: EAUA -

Interest income on bank deposits RITIE TSI 24,727 12,499

Interest income on trade receivables and other B 5 & Efib fE W kI8 R S U A
receivables 29,109 12,387
Compensation income (note a) HEWA(FsEa) - 109,237
Government grants (note b) BT 8 (I 3ED) 90,019 4,270
Disposal of land development rights (note c) BE T EiE (Mstc) 305,000 -
Others EA 9,316 4,091
458,171 142,484
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Other Income and Expenses (continued)

7. HWAMBELZ @

Year ended 31 December

HBZ12A318 L1285/
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Other expenses: HfbZH -
Penalty charges (note d) SR (M3Ed) (2) (104)
Donations B = (600)
Convertible Bonds issuance costs AEIRESEITER = (724)
Others Hib (353) (561)
(355) (1,989
Notes: 5T
a. The amount mainly represented the compensation from the local a. HEWAE Z R 7 BT & BT 5
government authority for loss incurred by the Group in progress land BEBPRERBORHE -
development arrangements.
b.  The amount mainly represented the grants from the local government b. BRHBEZERAEMFEELERMERG
authority for contributions to certain development locally. BIFME -
c.  The amounts mainly represented the disposal of land development rights c. RBRELHMAEEIEERETIXERSEE
within industrial town park, where the Group has the exclusive right to BREFRERE -
develop.
d.  The amounts mainly represented penalty charged to the Group for early d. SREZAEEEEIEE VIR

commencement of construction activities without obtaining appropriate
approval documents from relevant government authorities.

8. Other Gains and Losses

f

% o

8. HittWmREE

o

BUR#IBESEE 0B T XX MR SR

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31H 112 A A
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARET T
Net gains and losses ESATERAIEEES

Exchange losses, net P 5 R4 R (32,286) (18,786)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) BEF A AR (FiE40) 368,618 34,567
Loss on disposal of associates (note 18) BEERE AR EE(MHF18) (1,375) -

Gain on disposal of property, plant and BEEWE  BE&E&E
equipment, net Eolie 312 499

Gain on disposal of properties under REGEEEPYE

development (note a) Bl s (fisEa) = 13,603
Others Hth 199 4,690
335,468 34,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

8. Other Gains and LosSesS (continued) 8.

Note:

a. The amount represented gain on disposal of certain properties under
development to the local government as a result of change in local
commercial development plan.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Halz= R EE )
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R AT E A S BRI EA IR -

9. Finance Costs 9. BERA
Year ended 31 December
HZE128318 11218 B 5/
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Interests on bank loans RITERHFE (105,227) (70,526)
Interests on other loans EmERAFE (254,077) (239,438)
Interest on Convertible Bonds and Notes Al EEIA S A5 R Z IR TS
(note 30) (FF7E30) (99,024) -
Total borrowing costs Ep- e (458,328) (309,964)
Less: Amount capitalised in progress land B FELAREA R
development arrangements B b2 143,459 110,193
Amount capitalised in properties FEBRREPYED
under development for sale =Nt 72,406 123,702
(242,463) (76,069)

The weighted average capitalization rate on funds borrowed generally is
8.66% (2015: 9.52%) per annum for the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRBLADER
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting): MEADSFIRIBR TZIEREE ¢

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12831H 112 AR
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTTT ARETT
Directors’ emoluments EZTM(BEREROZNER)
(including share-based payment expenses) 11,948 9,502
Staff costs BT A
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREMER 98,771 71,594
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RREFIETEI AR 8,836 8,912
Share-based payment expenses AR -3 7,433 4,037
Total staff costs BIRARE(BIEEEEHH)
(including Director’s emoluments) 126,988 94,045
Less: Amount capitalised in progress land W ST REIER A
development arrangements BERNEHE (12,030) (8,598)
Amount capitalised in properties HEEERTMEN
under development for sale BERLETE (3,663) (3,276)
111,295 82,171
Rental income from property leasing classified as 5 %8 2% & Y3 E A
investment properties (21,160) (10,588)
Less: Direct operating expenses for property W MEREEREERY
leasing 2,354 224
(18,806) (10,364)
Cost of properties sold EEWER AR 759,299 745,943
Cost of land development arrangements FEHFAZIER KA 579,133 66,556
Operating lease rental expense KEHERSMAX 26,182 10,515
Auditor’s remuneration ZERET BN & 3,696 2,801
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥% - R RBEITE 5,198 3,329
Prepaid lease payments released to profit or loss = Bz5 ) TE TR E R = 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 11.B= - (THARRANES
and the Five Highest Paid Individuals A THIE

Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as follows: ESENRARESNFHMAOT
Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary Share-based
and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
Fem RIER REHN
He Hitt g A HE L BESL ROIAER At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETx

Year ended 31 December BZ2016%12831H

2016 I35
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note () TRE(MH) - 874 44 - - 918
Yang Yun Bh - 353 32 216 572 1,173
Wang Yagang TR - 353 32 216 572 1,173
Huang Peikun HE - 3,794 16 2,530 572 6,912
Chen Lianggiu (Note (i) BRI (M) - 446 15 280 = 741
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying sl = 146 13 98 - 257
Independent non-executive BEMTES
directors:
Zhang Xiaomei RN 258 - - - - 258
Wei Yu B 258 - - - - 258
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxEdL 258 - - - - 258

774 5,966 152 3,340 1,716 11,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

MBS THRABRANVES

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals FALTHEM =)
Emoluments (continued)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary  Share-based
and other benefits  performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus expense Total
e RINVEF FEEM
ik Hih g AR WEMT ROLZFHER EH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETn ARETR
Year ended 31 December  #Z20155128318
2015 tFE
Executive directors: WiTEE
Wang Jianjun (Note (i) TRE(WH() - 889 2 - - 915
Yang Yun B - 355 26 216 238 835
Wang Yagang TR - 355 26 216 238 835
Huang Peikun HiEA - 3,401 15 2,267 238 5921
Non-executive director: FRITES :
Zhao Ying & - 246 12 - - 258
Independent non-executive BAUETES
directors:
Zhang Xiaomei REE 246 - - - - 246
Wei Yu By 246 - - - - 246
Dr.Wong Wing Kuen, Albert — Fikigtsi+ 246 - - - - 246
738 5,246 105 2,699 714 9,502
Notes: () Mr. Wang Jianjun is also the president (regarded as chief 5T (1) IREXEMREARALH
executive) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed (RETRAR) - LilEE
above also include those for services rendered by him as the e F b BERETER
president. IR ARG T RSB ©
(i) Mr. Chen Lianggiu has been appointed as an executive (2 BREMEER201645H178

director with effect from 17 May 2016 and resigned with effect

from 17 March 2017.

The emoluments of directors shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

WEBABEARRNITES -
W B201743 A17 BAEEHAT -

PR NEEENFMEEZRGMEAR
ARAEENATEETEAM -

Annual Report 2016 3R

\g

135



Y

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 11.E%= - THARRINVES

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals
Emoluments continued)

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or respective member’s
performance for such financial year.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals include 3 individuals disclosed as
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31
December 2015: four individuals). The emoluments of the remaining
2 highest paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2016 (year
ended 31 December 2015: one individual) are as follows:

FALTHHFN =

TEAEAREERAEERKE AR A B
BEERMRBRFE -

hfuZE#HAL
HE2016F12A31BILEFE » AfismH
ATBEELEXAEEARNARESH =L
(B ZE2015F12 A31H ILFE - A7) A
+ o HE2016F12A3NBLEEE - KW
L (BZE2015F12A318IEFE  — )&
EEATREMS RINT -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 678 362
Discretionary performance-related bonus RIBMEBIBIEA 493 240
Share-based payment expense R&1D & A 1,144 238
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RIREFFTEIER 31 -
2,346 840

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

OV 0 T EA S TREE A BT
PR BB -

Number of employees

BETA¥
2016 2015
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75%51,000,0012 1,500,000 2 1

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, none of the Directors
nor the five highest paid individuals waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

12.Income Tax Expense

12. FiE 5B

Year ended 31 December

BZ128318LLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AERETT
Current tax: EHREH
— PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEH (283,827) (142,290)
- Land appreciation tax — T IBER (32,612) 9,479)
— Over provision for prior year — AR E RS 942 5,251
(315,497) (146,518)
Deferred tax (note 21) IRAERIE (FT3E21) 42,552 (20,865)
(272,945) (167,383)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit generated in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015:16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group’s subsidiaries in

Hong Kong had no assessable profit.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST Urban Development
Co., Ltd. ("Langfang VAST"), Langfang Hongsheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Hongsheng”) and Langfang Yonglun
Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Yonglun”), were subject
to the PRC enterprise income tax at a tax rate of 25% on a verification
collection basis at deemed profit which represents 10% or 15% of its
revenue after adjusting the non-deductible subsidies paid to customers
(enterprises establishing their businesses in Longhe Park) prior to 1
January 2014 in accordance with authorized tax valuation method (#%
SERUUR) approved by local tax bureau pursuant to the applicable PRC
tax regulations (the “Deemed Profit Basis”). From 1 January 2014, the
three subsidiaries of the Group mentioned above no longer enjoyed the
tax benefit of the authorized tax valuation method. Certain income tax
calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of unrealised profit earned in prior

years was realised in 2015 and 2016.

The PRC enterprise income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the

Group was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 25%).

HZE2016F 128318 ILFE - BEFEH
RBBEEMNGET ERRAEN16.5%E
(20154 : 16.5%) - AR AEEBREEH
MR R EERRAE - ALiRE 0%
HENEERESFIEHRELEE -

BEREBEABBERE  ~5EETHE
AR M AREXTEREBR AR (B
PR BYMEREMEZRERAF
(R REE) KRB mkmEEREER
AR (BRYIK® ) BIRZEBURESE - DAt
B % BB AR B9 % E R R T8 B R E i
MANEZE2014F1 A1H IEFE IR ) &%
IR ENRNEEFPNEERTFENA
I ANBR 7 BE S B 1% 9 10% 31 15% 58 4 71 =R
B25%E R BB o #2014 181
B Ll=MEENHNEARTHEERZ
EBRTIEER - R Bz #U
KREIRFEE2015F M2016F (G

HIE2016FE12A3NBIEEE - PEERA
H)F A R B P15 B B4 3R 5 25% (20154 -
25%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

12.Income Tax ExXpense (continued)

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") (1 2& A R HF1E 4 b 2B E 1 T14451)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (1 A R AL F1E +
HEREITIEFIE AR effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (& @iZX#(F =) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The tax charge can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

12. FiEBiM R )

RIE1994F 1 A1 BB AERA(PEARL
B b 3E(E B B 1T 6401 ) F11995481 27 B
H R E AR FAFE LS E R BT 15
BIEFEARA) - Br T EFRSBBBAE A
EHNERBE%HERITEFTEZES -
H v BN S E A it AR K
FEIENEEGER(LEMERE TR
NERPEERERANYERSEI )RS
BIR30%260% K] T IR (ETS

T TR S H R S A A B A

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Profit before tax B AT 941,317 680,964
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% BB EMEEI25%
S THTE (235,329) (170,241)
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise 1R EEFT1S T 8 3R I B2
income tax (note) Ry 2 (fIEE) 8,320 14,122
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A MB AR ETE
purpose (16,873) (1,296)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as TAERELERBHEERN
deferred tax assets MIBEERBSE (9,395) (12,769)
Tax effect of share of profit of associates FEMEEE A RR TSR & 3,856 4,659
Tax effect of share of losses of a joint venture FEMRERE A RIRBENTGE 8 (7) -
LAT + I ER (32,612) (9,479)
Tax effect of LAT THIBER TSR 8,153 2,370
Over provision for prior year BEFEEBRERE 942 5,251
Income tax expense FTiSFiF S (272,945) (167,383)

Note: Amounts represent income tax calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of
unrealised profit earned in prior years realised in 2015 and 2016.

Mzt e BBt FERIZ BRI A ER
IR E E MR R BB R EE2015F 7
2016 F HRHI PTG E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

13.

14.

Dividend

A final dividend of HK$0.12 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2016 amounting to HK$196,516,920 in aggregate has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to the approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 will be paid out from
the Company's share premium. In the opinion of the Directors, such
distribution is in compliance with the Articles of Association adopted by
the Company and also the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.1 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 amounting to
HK$163,764,100 in aggregate (equivalent to RMB139,964,000) (2015:
a final dividend of HK$0.15 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to HK$245,640,150 in aggregate (equivalent
to RMB197,817,000)) was paid out from the Company’s share premium
on 11 July 2016.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

i35

SR ERE0.12B B H E2016512
A318 @ #EE & H1196516920T -
ZEREHESREWBEREERNE
ERRRE A S E AR ILAE o BIR20165F12
ANBEENRBBRERARHRAEE
Lo KBEFENHAE  SE EREAHS
BHEMARERUKLARANE22E (1961
FRAES  BEWGE—FER) -

TER 8RS BAR - BE2015F 12 A31H
HRENSKERDABBONTESBE
163,764,1007T 40 & A B 139,964,000 T £
2016F7ANMBRBRASERIMT - (HE
2014F 12 A3 B EMN R BR D LB
0.15TT #5178 245,640,150 T X & AR
197,817,0007cE X1+ » )

BRER
BRIE DA E SR E AR R ER A
TR -

Year ended 31 December

HE1283181LEE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTR ARETT
Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners REREAZFME
of the Company for the purpose PiN/NGIE ¥ =Ny
of basic earnings per share F A5 F 668,986 513,581
Adjustment to profit for the year attributable to gt EREHERFIMS
owners of the Company for the purpose of PIN/NGIE ¥ =Ny
diluted earnings per share F R A B 58 B
— Interest on Convertible Bonds —AIEEHFRFE = -
Profit for the year attributable to owners of MRS RAME AR F]
the Company for the purpose of diluted B AERF R A
earnings per share 668,986 513,581
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

14. Earnings Per Share continued)
Number of shares

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. SR EBF @)

IRE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLLEE
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
T8 %
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERERBFMEH
for the purposes of earnings per share DA A% B 1,637,641 1,637,641
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEAE ST RRNTE
— Convertible Bonds = - 338
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for &R EE 2 F M S &
the purposes of diluted earnings per share DnAE 1 A% £ 1,637,641 1,637,979

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 does not assume the conversion of the Company'’s
outstanding Convertible Bonds since their assumed exercise would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

The computation of the diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 does not assume the exercise the share
options issued by the Company because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price for shares for both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 9% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Motor fittings and
buildings vehicles equipment Total
HETR RA - #E
EEY RE R#EE et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥F T AR®TF T
Cost KR
At 1 January 2015 HR2015%F 1418 34,170 5,920 7,465 47,555
Additions NE 85 2,082 2,405 4,572
Disposals k= - (1,172) (94) (1,266)
At 31 December 2015 20155124318 34,255 6,830 9,776 50,861
Additions NE 47,321 18,118 5,033 70,472
Disposals e (991) (1,478) (51) (2,520)
Transfer to investment properties a2 & 4 EHE (31,316) - - (31,316)
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 49,269 23,470 14,758 87,497
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2015 20151418 (8,599) (3,436) (5,655) (17,690)
Provided for the year FNEE (1,545) (704) (1,080) (3,329)
Eliminated on disposals o B B T 8 - 857 16 873
At 31 December 2015 20155128318 (10,144) (3,283) (6,719) (20,146)
Provided for the year FREE (604) (2,577) (2,017) (5,198)
Eliminated on disposals B 8 228 1,150 50 1,428
Eliminated on transfer to oA
investment properties B EE R 7,998 - - 7,998
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 (2,522) (4,710) (8,686) (15,918)
Carrying amount K2016F12A431H
At 31 December 2016 BREE 46,747 18,760 6,072 71,579
At 31 December 2015 H2015%12A31H8 24,111 3,547 3,057 30,715
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

15.

16.

Property, Plant and Equipment continueq)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

4.75%-4.85%
19%-19.4%
19%-19.4%

Leasehold land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB23,236,000 were pledged
to a non-financial institution to secure a loan of RMB369,000,000, details
of which are set out in note 29(b)(i).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB46,747,000 (31 December
2015:Nil) were pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan of
RMB16,937,000, details of which are set out in note 29(a).

Investment Properties

15. 9% -  MERRE =

btz - BB RREBERB R RERG
BEENELERUTEFLRTE

fE L MEEY 4.75%-4.85%
e 19%-19.4%
KA RERF 19%-19.4%

2015F12A31H » AEBOYE - BE K
REFABEARY23,236,000THE EHK
ERARME=ZFIECRBEERARE
369,000,0007T * FFHIE2 B E29(0)ii) .

2016F12A31H » AEBOYE - BE &
RIEFREEEAREL6,747,0007T (20154
128318 « #)WEEREHARBITER
AREE16,937,0007T * FF1E52 RHEEE29(0) »

16. REWHE

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
=354 BRP
REYHE REWHE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREF T AREFT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2015 20151818 714,600 33,000 747,600
Additions byl 13,790 65,881 79,671
Transfer (YN 20,556 (20,556) -
Increase in fair value NEE
— Unrealised gain — REIRUR 53,854 61,675 115,529
At 31 December 2015 2015124318 802,800 140,000 942,800
Additions N - 243,795 243,795
Transfer from property, plant and Ay - BERREEA
equipment 57,500 - 57,500
Transfer A 235,832 (235,832) -
Increase in fair value NS ER il
- Unrealised gain (loss) —RERW R (EK) 8,936 (5,263) 3,673
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 1,105,068 142,700 1,247,768




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (“Savills
Valuation”), an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

The fair value of completed investment properties as at 31 December
2016 are determined based on the income capitalization method
whereby the rental income of contractual tenancies are capitalised
for the unexpired term of tenancies. The reversionary market rent
after the expiry of tenancies is also taken into account. The fair value
of investment properties under construction relating to two pieces of
land yet to be developed are determined based on direct comparison
method by reference to market comparable and adjusted to reflect the
conditions and locations of the subject property.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately RMB208,100,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB106,800,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group, details of which are set out in note 29(a).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB565,700,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB636,300,000) were pledged to certain trust fund companies to
secure loans of RMB450,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB600,000,000)
obtained from certain trust fund companies, whose details are set out
in note 29(b)().

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB58,100,000 (31 December 2015:
Nil) were pledged to a third party company to secure certain other loan
of RMB369,000,000 to the Group, whose details are set out in note 29(b)
(ii).

16. REWHE »)

AEELZTHANZMARDNES BB K
REHEMEERAATEEXGE L H
DEEMFIR BN o

AEBREMENAFERSHRENMLE
REF-AFRAETHEREZERAER
RA([E KPR HEDIERNGE
FHE o HEAD 7 SR R B B B R e 10 B
SANE IR AR AD -

EEREEMEERT2016F12831BHA
FEEBAERMOEREE - BIFFEAREIE
LW - AR ETSHEETNEEE
W BRPREMEN T AR L1 -
HAFESKAESZLERETRESE @ &
2EMB A LY EBELEREFHEUR
BREARRANIE o

R EBREMERNFER  WEORE R
REMRESBARE -

20165128318 - AEBEREEEBELOA
R %208,100,0007T (52015512 A31H :
AR106,800,0007T) B9 & W3 B EH R
BT LEABAEBERE TRITREN
I - FHIBEN I E29G)

M2016F 12 A31H » AEBEEEEEY
565,700,000 7C (A20154E12 B318 : AR
#£636,300,0007T ) IIE EMEE B RN E
RESQNF - LEARZERES QR
1§ A R #450,000,0007T (722015412 A 31
B : AR%600,000,0007T) BRI - 5
BERHTFE290)) ©

M2016% 128318 » AEBEREED
58,100,0007T (F2015F 12 A31H : )
BEMECHITFRE=FAR " UEAR
2% = H A REE AR 369,000,000 E
REHER - S EPAMT FE29(0)()
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

16. REWHE o)

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

At 31 December 2016

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HERTRIZRALE

TREFZEREME R FEWNAHEE (5
R PIER A b (E R R A\ B M B KL
NEREBAFEFEGABEBENAIBRERE
ERRFEDH -

R2016512H31H

Significant unobservable input(s)
EXTUBRG RS

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to fair value
AUERBAHERATENBEE

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group hierarchy
IEEEERENS ATEER
Investment properties-Completed Level3
(thirty completed buldings) £=80

FENE-ERT
(0ETIREN)

Investment properties - held Level3
for/under development g=8
(two pieces of land yet to be
developed)

RENE-HEER /TR

(MELEHREE)

Income capitalization

method (term and
reversionary approach)
WABRLE (FHREEL)

The key inputs are

(1)
@2
@

4

Term yield;
Reversionary yield;
Market unit rent of
indlvidual unit, and
Level adjustment

IEGAEEA

(1)
@2
@

@

e
Gl
T
e R
NERE

Direct comparison method
The key input is:

(1)

Site unit rate

ERIBE
IEGAEBA

(1)

BEHE

Term yield, taking ino account of yield

generated from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the certainty of term

income Secred and to be received, of range

from 35% to 5%.

T - SRR R EEEONER AR
R E REEUB N E AL R
NF35%E5% 0

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual

unit market rental income and unit market

value of the comparable properties, of range

from 4% to 4.5%

BiElG - RTALIENFREL TSRS
WARBME N F4RELH

Market unit rent, using direct market comparable
and taking into account of time, location and other
inalvidual factors such as size and quantum of
properties, of range from RMBO.55/sq.m./day to
RMB1.98/50.m./day.

mEELRS  RRBEMAIHNEER kit R
B HEHEMENRE - flnpEA ) RES
NFERETARAREOSTEARE 1987 °

Level adjustment on individual floors of the property
range from 25% o 45% on specific level.
ERMEEENKERE N PRERENDYE
5%

Accommodtion value, using direct market
comparable and taking into account of time,
location and individual factors such as size and
quantum of properties of RMB523/sq.m.
BELE  FRERTRIHRMEER R R
B ERERER - flnnEA REE -
BETRAARESST -

Adlight increase in the term yield used would

result in a significant decrease in the fair value
measurement of the investment properties,

and vice versa.

FTRAE R aRT - A eERRENEATE
EXETH R

Adlight increase in the reversionary yield used
would resultina significant decrease in the fair value
meastrement of the investment properties and vice
VErsa.

IFRASELaRA - AeSHRENE A TR
XS R -

A dlight increase in the market unit rent used would
resultin a significant increase in the fair value
meastrement of the investment properties and vice
Versa.

IFRATAEESRT - BIESRRANELT
[EEAB LA R -

Anincrease in the level aojustment on individual
floors used would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the investment properties by
a lower percentage, and vice versa.
[ERBERMEEROKERE LT - BleBHR
EMELTEHENEONEIN ] R

An increase in the accommodation vale used would
result in anincrease in the fair value measurement
of the investment properties, and vice versa.
WTRREMmERT  ASERRENEATE
B Rz
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e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Investment Properties (continued 16. REWE )

At 31 December 2015

72015612 A31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
REBEERENE ATEER HERTRIERALE EXATTERBAHE AUERBAHERATENEE
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalization Term yield, taking into account of yield Adlight increase in the term yield used would
(twenty-eight completed buldings) ~ E=#; method (term and generated from comparable properties and result in a significant decrease in the fair value
REME-ERT reversionary approach) adjustment to reflect the certainty of term measurement of the investment properties,
(BEZTEEY) WNER(E (£5R%EE)  income secured and to be received, of range and vice versa.
from 3.5% 10 5.0%. IR E T aR - BleSaRENEAT 6
THNE - RTEERNEEEONAR EAGETH - R2H%A e
BREBIERERIBARNEBRAR
TRV - NT35%F50%
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual Adlight increase in the reversionary yield used
() Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market would result in a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionary yield; value of the comparable properties, of range measurement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of from 4.0% 0 5.5% VISa.
indvidual unit, and BENE HRTBLIMENFEEUMSRE WARRRENARS  AeSHRANFLTEN
(&) Level adjustment WARENTE * N T40%25.5% NN
TEGNHER Market unit rent, using cirect market comparable A light increase in the market unitrent used would
() FfdE: and taking into account of time, location and other  resLltin a significant increase in the fair value
0 HEhs: inclividual factors such as size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
@ ERBEHTEEGRS :  properties, of range from RMBOS/sqm./dayto  versa.
R RMB1.9/50.m./day. IFRATEELESHT - BIEBRRENEAT
) kERE MEENLRS  RRERTAURNBERRGIR EHEABLA K2
B HEAEHERRE  AnmEA REE
NTERETARARBOSTEERETAX
ARE197
Level adjustment on indiviclual floors of the property - An increase in the level acjustment on individual
range from 55% to 75% on specific level. floors used would resutt in a decrease in the fair
ERDEREACEDE  NTHTRENSS  value measurement of the investment properties by
E75%° a lower percentage, and vice versa.
IEFRAEREERCERE L - AleER
EMFATEENEOOAAL TS - R -
Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodtion value, using direct market An increase in the accommodation value used would
for/under development £=8 The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, result in an increase in the fair value meastrement
(two pieces of land yet to be (1) Steunitrate location and individual factors suich as size and of the investment properties, and vice versa.
developed) ERNEE quantum of properties of RMB512/sq.m. BTN ERT ST RENENTEH
REME RS/ T IEBNEEA: BEME  FRARTATEUBEARIREE . 214 RaMA-
(I L HARE) () BEsE HEREAREZ - flnngX) REE - BETAK

ARES127L o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16.

17.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group's investment properties.
At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
worked closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider
and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the management of
the Group.

Prepaid Lease Payments

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments in respect of land use
rights for the lands, which are all situated in the PRC, is analysed as
follows:

16. REWHE o)

AT EFERMGEBRE
FEHAREE A A T EEERS A
5 PR AT 44 PR MO TR AT BT R o
BEE—ROBAEE  AEBEEEA
B R T 0 A ) H WD B AT
8 o NEMEHEERE  AEENER
BRAEBINEGERERAE LR
REEEEGEERTRE-BNE=R
DG BHOBARE - AR S %%
BREAE-HHARE  DEWSHAR
AT R B AE M  ERERES - 1
BHE - MOB B - AEEAERA
BIEE = RGBS BRI - EE
AFEHBEALS - AgnAEEEE
BHEAREDNRE -

ANHEERER
R Ee e [ e TOR R
- HEEBES T

17.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBET R ARETT
At beginning of the year F) 2,128 2,203
Released to profit or loss as expense FFAZIBRNAY = (75)
Transfer to investment properties EHEEEEYE (2,128) -
At the end of the year FIR - 2,128

At 31 December

BIE12A31MALEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT

Analysis for reporting purposes as: BBESTAOT ¢

Current i) = 75
Non-current FERE = 2,053
- 2,128




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RS R R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. {WHHE N B AV

At 31 December

®12H318
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AERETT
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted B N AR E AN — R £ 131,620 148,420
Share of post-acquisition profits FEAGU ST 3 OB B AR B
net of dividends received 30,762 11,844
Impairment loss (note a) BRI (FizEa) (12,837) (12,837)
149,545 147,427
Note: B

During the year ended 31 December 2010, as requested by other equity
holders of Huayuan and agreed by the Group, Langfang VAST unilaterally
made additional cash contribution to Huayuan as further capital injection
into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000 with shareholding interest in
Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss amounting to RMB12,837,000 was
recognised by the Group based on an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the Group'’s interest in Huayuan during the year ended 31 December
2010.

EHZE2010F12 831 B IR - EEREM
REREANERAREERE  BH A
FTRIZBERNTEUAR SN X AERE
& AR %19,750,000 7T 7 B 6 7 5 R A9 A
ETEAZE - £EE2010612A31A8
IEFEEREEHERIEE /AT K E © 58
R AR12,837,0007C KRB B K ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. I E N TN ER @)

BERESHMERE - AEBBATEZ

associates: NG
Equity interest
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
raER RIBERAH BRTRAR/ dMER rEEELER TEER
At 31 December
#M2A318
2016 2015
% %
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating PRC RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heatenergy generation
Co., Ltd. ("Huayuan") (note i) 21 August 2007 (Paid-up registered capital R RT
BAMEREERNERAT EP ARH117,000,0007T
200758A218 (BRMER)
Langfang Kaichuang Jiahua Investment PRC RMB20,000,000 = 49 Property development
Co, Lid. ("Kaichuang’) (note ) 14 Noverber 2011 (Paic-Up registered capita) NEYRE
AT AEERERRAT EP AR20,000,0007C
011117148 (BRFMER)
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart PRC RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing and property
Co., Ltd. ("Kaihong") (note i) 10 December 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) development
BT ERERRERAA il AF#100,000,0007 NERENNEER
20106127108 (BRFMER)
Huarong Shengshi (Langfang) Investment ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 = 35 Infrastructure investment
Co, Lid. (‘Huarong Shengshi’) (notes ) 4 January 2015 (Paic-Up registered capita) ERhieRE
RSt (B RERRAT EP AE20,000,0007C
01561748 (BRMER)
Note: MEE
English name for identification only. T ATHEHHER
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e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. Interests in Associates (continued) 18. Bt E N R ER (=)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material ERAEFEN T BEHA N RN EERE
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information below wan s o A NS E R A g A A ER
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements BRI SRS RS MR S5

prepared in accordance with IFRSS for equity accounting purpose.

Huayuan )
At 31 December
MW12A31H

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Current assets MENEE 115,676 164,448
Non-current assets IERBEE 313,272 341,684
Current liabilities TEIARE (128,920) (292,268)
Non-current liabilities EREaE (139,023) (57,458)
Net assets FEE 161,005 156,406

Year ended 31 December

#A12831H

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Total revenue FELON 91,020 62,573
Profit and total comprehensive income AR FE R E A2 A

for the year 4,599 8,604

Group's share of profit of the associate EE RS QA 1,610 3,011

Dividends received from the associate L& H=NS S = -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. Interests in Associates (continued)

Huayuan (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in these

consolidated financial statements:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. I E N TN ER @)

ER(E)
AR B R B AR A B S SRR VTR
REREERREENENT -

At 31 December

M12H31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Net assets of Huayuan EREFEE 161,005 156,406
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in - 7 8= E R EE R g G 1
Huayuan L) 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBREROEARE
Huayuan A RE(EE 56,352 54,742
Kaihong =
At 31 December
#A12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Current assets MENEE 44,782 19,081
Non-current assets IERBEE 559,476 533,976
Current liabilities mEAaE (293,613) (288,470)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - -
Net assets FEE 310,645 264,587
Year ended 31 December
A12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Total revenue FEAL N 61,254 58,140
Profit and total comprehensive income AREFME R EM P EI S
for the year 46,058 52,037
Group’s share of profit of the associate ESEl NS e 13,817 15,611

Dividends received from the associate

Ui ERBh 2 X A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. Interests in Associates (continued) 18. HiEtE N AR ()
Kaihong (continued) CIPNE)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB RS AR B B AR A B TS TR AR
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in these REVERE=REESRET ¢

consolidated financial statements:

At 31 December

A12A31H

2016 2015

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFT

Net assets of Kaihong IRHFEE 310,645 264,587
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin - A& E R F B 1

Kaihong gl 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEERI RO HEEE

Kaihong =M BRE(EE 93,193 79,376

Aggregate information of associates that are not BEBEERBHE ATNER

individually material

Year ended 31 December

A12A31H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTTT ARETTT
Group’s share of profits of associates AL E FE(R A AR ER - 15
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's A B FELE LB N B R
interests in these associates BRI 4258 = 13,309
()  Thereis no unrecognised share of losses of any associate. () RERERBEQATINERER
(i) There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to (i) HEQFUReRSEBRLES TAE
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay B EERNEERAFRME N9 ET T
advances made by the Group. BEAMRS ©
(i)  Except for the investment in Huayuan and Kaihong which are (i) BrTHERMNE  (KEBIEEE
significant associates of the Group engaging in heat energy NEENMYEREXHKNERBE R
generation and property leasing activities, all other associates AR EIN - NEEFEHE M
of the Group are not significant to the Group. For the purpose DR AEBMIT EEATE - HHEE
of establishing further business relationship and strategic TR R R B E— P
cooperation with the majority shareholder of Huayuan and RERERIEEE  RNEBRBNER
Kaihong, the Group retains 35% and 30% interest in Huayuan and H) 35% 48 7 LA N 9l 7= ) 30% 4 2 LA 1
Kaihong respectively, for investment purpose. RERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

18. Interests in Associates (continueq)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's disposal
of associates is set out below. In the prior year, the Group held a 35%
interest in Huarong Shengshi and a 49% interest in Kaichuang and
accounted for the investment as associates. In May 2016, the Group
disposed of its 35% equity interest in Huarong Shengshi for proceeds
of RMB5,794,000. In July 2016, the Group disposed of its 49% equity
interest in Kaichuang for proceeds of RMB6,140,000. These transactions
have resulted in the recognition of losses in profit or loss, calculated as

follows.

18. HEEE N EINHER )
BREEEERLAANSSE T
T o TEABIAERE ¢ S A 35% HE AR
B 01 49% 1 81 35 35 ) R HE X 9B LA 1 49
ER AL R TMIEE « 2016657 -
AN alLA A R B 5,794,0007T B9 B 1& & & 35%
SR BRI - 72016486 8 + AFIAA
R # 6,140,000 T B & R B 45% 9 B 532 5
EARAE - BIRA F RSB D R T8
% . ABEHENT :

2016

RMB’000

AR¥F T

Proceeds on disposal BEFTS 11,934
Amounts of the investments on the date of disposals BREERRTHESSE (13,309)
Loss recognized (note 8) Bk (FIzEs) (1,375)

19. Interest in a Joint Venture

Details of the Group's investment in a joint venture are as follows:

19. HEE N EIMES

HPJEE\ m

2016 2015

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBFT

Cost of unlisted investment SEDFRIRERAR 60,000 -
Share of post-establishment loss B IBIBREEE (28) -
59,972 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. HEE R RAWER )
M2016512A318 - AEBHE THEEA

19. Interest in a Joint Venture (continueq)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interest in the following joint

venture: AR Rk A
Proportion of ownership
interest held by
Country of the Group as at
Date of establishment  Fully paid-up/ 31 December Principal
Name of entity establishment and operation  registered capital FEER12A318 activity
AEER R B RYMEEFER CHE/ FRER HENERLA TEER
2016 2015
% %
e ER M ELHMERE  8December2016  PRC RMB100,000,000 60 N/A Investment,
BRAR(DHILEE]) 2016F12A8H H AR100,000,000 construction,
Hubei International Aviation operation and
Development Co., Ltd. leasing
("Hubei International”) BE - BR
BERAE

On 4 December 2016 Langfang VAST entered into a joint venture
agreement (“2016 JV Agreement”) with Shenzhen Shunfeng Airport
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shunfeng”) for the establishment of
Hubei International. The principal activity of Hubei International is
investment, construction service for industrial park, operation and
leasing. Upon establishment, Hubei International is owned as to 60%
by Langfang VAST and 40% by Shenzhen Shunfeng. Under the 2016 JV
Agreement, unanimous approvals by the directors of Hubei International
are required for decisions on directing the relevant activities of Hubei
International. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group’s interest in
Hubei International is accounted for as a joint venture. During the
current year, the Group made capital contribution of RMB60,000,000 to
Hubei International.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

201612848 « B3 A2 )L 55 &
BRABN(NELEE |)EETERKRH
EEEN G - FILEENEEEH IR
B EXEELRE - EBERAE - B
BRHREFFAR60% - IELF5FRRA0% © HRIE20164F
AEARMNARER  ZAFHNARREE
FH—BBB  BFRA  HILE
BREARMEE QT - fEAH - £EMH
JEEIERE & AR #60,000,0007T ©

I
o)
i

o

AERRIERS P BME T ARRERE -

EEAASEENEE QA I G ER B0
T UTHBERBEES 2 RARARER
BB TS ISR R B R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19.Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 19. HEE N FHER )
Hubei International 4L B R
At
31 December
2016
201645
12A31H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Current assets MEEE 100,005
Non-current assets EMBEE -
Current liabilities mBAE (51)
Non-current liabilities FREEE -
The above amounts of assets include the following: A EMEESERIENLT ¢
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 100,005

From the date
of establishment
to 31 December

2016
BRI BZE
20165
12A31H
RMB’000
ARBT T
Revenue WA =
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the period NEfBL TR A B (46)
Group's share of loss of a joint venture eGP S (28)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB E Rl B AR S B SRR AR
carrying amount of the interest in Hubei International recognised in I B e R AR E SRR AT
these consolidated financial statements:
2016
RMB'000
ARET R
Net assets of the joint venture BENANFEE 99,954
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in AREB AL BIRR A% A 1
Hubei International T3 L £l 60%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEERAIL BB RS
Hubei International FREEE 59,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. Available-For-Sale Investment 20. A HERE

Available-for-sale investment comprise: AL ERERRE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET AREBFT
Unlisted investment: FLETRE
— equity securities - J&fEE A 3,300 3,300
The above unlisted equity investments represents unlisted entity A FFEEMRERERRPEIRALE £
securities issued by a private entity in the PRC. They are measured at BTN LITHREES - cMEER
cost at the end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable EEREBRKATEN  BRESFRART
fair value estimate is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion PN FEEEFEERNT 2D TESN
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. BHETTOEDHERK
21. Deferred Tax 21 EEHIA
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial LA R N BB B R 5 4T

reporting purposes:

At 31 December

R12A318
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBFT
Deferred tax assets RIERITE A B 37,419 34,548
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (42,602) (74,270)
(5,183) (39,722)
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21. Deferred Tax (continued) 21 EEBIIE )
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and AAFRNEENELHEHREE(BE)YN
movements thereon during the year are as follows: ZFEIE
Temporary
Fairvalue differences Unrealised
changeon  on property profit on Property
investment sale and Tax Accrugd  Impairment  intra-group revaluation
properties cost of sales losses payroll of assets  transactions Other LAT Teserve Total
s
REME  HERAN LIRS FiE

AYEAR  EWER  BEER  RMRe  RENE  AEBAR R iMEER  REEG &t
RUBDD  RMBOD  RWBOID  RWBOD  RWBOD  RWBOID  RWBO  RWBOD  RWBOID  RWBOOD
ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARMTR ARETL  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR

At January 2015 1551 A1A (34302 8,100 3863 113 6416 13490 (3831 6076 - (18.857)
(Charge) credtto iAER

orofit r loss (2888) (4,803 %] 4 - 16508 - (3049 - (20863
A3 December 2015 0155128318 (83,184 397 2910 138 6416 299% (3831 307 - (39722)
(Charge) ceditto itAER

orofitor loss 1) 16483 83 0 - 5 - (4036) - 05
Charge o other TAEEER2ENE

comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - - - (8013 (3013)
At31December 2016 2016E12A31A (4102 978 303 1813 8616 30550 (3831) (109) 3013 (5,83
Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows: ANEEKRFRABIAER

At 31 December

MA12831H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets — sRptiEERIE A E R
BiIEETIE 94,800 57,923
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e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

21.

22,

Deferred Tax (continued) 21 REBTE ()
The following unrecognised tax losses has fixed expiry date, which will BT B RERTIEREBER A TE
be expired in the following years: EEIER -
At 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFT
2016 20165 = 702
2017 20174 673 673
2018 20184 1,604 1,604
2019 20194 3,344 3,344
2020 20204F 6,924 6,924
2021 20214 24,535 -
Total BT 37,080 13,247
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBEHBEER - NEE RS ARIE
of RMB57,720,000 (31 December 2015: RMB44,676,000) available for &5 18 A R #57,720,0007 (20154 12 A 31
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. B : AR44,676,0007T) 7] AR H 7] ¢
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses ER AN AR IRFDE - R REETERIR
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. REVRE AR - AR IE SR RRE
JERRIE o
No deferred tax liabilities for undistributed earnings of the PRC FR AR B B B A R MR AT BITE G 2R B
subsidiaries have been recognised as there is no plan of the dividends LASNE 75 R AR S - A It 8 5 5% & BT
distribution out of the PRC in the foreseeable future by these PRC BRARAKKRD REFERRLEHRIESE -
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate undistributed 20165123318 - FEIFE R FAIRSD
profits of the PRC subsidiaries were RMB2,978,000,000 (31 December R i ) 42 58 5 Bl A A R 1 2,978,000,0007T
2015: RMB2,512,000,000). The corresponding unrecognised deferred tax (2015 12A8318 : AR #¥2,512,000,000
liabilities as at 31 December 2016 were RMB297,800,000 (31 December TL) © R20165F 12 A31 B AEFER R IERIEE
2015: RMB251,200,000). HIE A E A AR 297,800,0007T (20154
12A318 « AR#251,200,0007T) °
In Progress Land Development Arrangements 22. & 1B

In progress land development arrangements mainly represent costs
incurred for land development under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority within the districts of the
development project. Although the Group does not have ownership title
or land use right of such land, the Group is given the right to carry out
construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
in those land development project under agreements with the local
government authority.

FETHHZERERTEREERRRAN
ERBA HER RN SRR E
EMRAR - AREEL TNEFZZ LA
FrERE T EMAE  BEEEEREE
BUFsL L3 RIE B 00 i B2 IR B 1T
HEEkhERIR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22.In Progress Land Development Arrangement

(Continued)

When the land plots are sold by the local government authority, the
Group is entitled to receive from the local government authority a
proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

As mentioned in the accounting policy of revenue recognition on
income from land development arrangements in note 3, income
from land development which are under collaboration arrangements
with the relevant local government authority are recognised upon
sales of related land plots by the local government authority with the
corresponding costs incurred under such arrangements recognised as
cost of sales.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into
certain new land development agreements with the local government
authority, pursuant to these agreements, the Group is entitled to
receive from the local government authority income arising from
land development arrangements by reference to the recoverable
costs incurred during the period plus an agreed cost-plus margin.
The Group is also entitled to additional income relating to these land
development activities in the form of marketing and promotional service
in accordance with the specific rate and basis set out in the relevant
service agreements entered into between the Group and the local
government authority.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's in progress land
development arrangements with carrying amount of approximately
RMB41,504,000 (31 December 2015: Nil) was pledged to a bank to
secure a loan of RMB100,000,000, details of which are set out in
note 29(a). Certain of the Group's in progress land development
arrangements with carrying amount of approximately RMB339,000,000
(31 December 2015: Nil) was pledged to a third party non-financial
institution to secure a loan of RMB300,000,000, details of which are set
out in note 29(b)(ii).

22.

FELHARIER @)

B EN KBS BFEE
ERPIULER L4t R 10— B o i o

IEAAPHRES £2 2R S B R 3 A B R A
RS EINER - LR T BT 06
BEU A\ AE B B W R 1R PR U 3 5 4 e 3
B IS FEARIER - A LB TEAD
ERERTHFEHMA

E20165F 12 A31 A IEF/E HAf - B 6
FHNE THOFS THHEEEL - K
BA KRR - BB 5 BT U R 8
76 b 7 35 4B FE O W 2R A R 4 AR FE EA
AU 1E1 B9 B A N _E AR FE RO A AR NEK o SR
TG B E b AR FE M 2 - R URES AR IR
JRE £ B 191 45 A 1R + 3 B B FE SN Y B T IS
ISR URES A - BB KIREE MR
SRR T MR -

2016512 A318 - AEBEEBEY
41,504,0007T (201512 A318 : £)H
RETHFAFEIRE D ERRRT - LER
B 3% $R 17 HUS A R # 100,000,000 7T & 7 A
A FIEEHARMH EE290) - NEFEEEE
{B#7339,000,0007T (742015412 A31H -
HE)MRETHAEIEEDERNIESRE
=R DMERMZIESRE = HKE
H {2 A R #300,000,0007T &R HIHEHR - 5F
BERAKIEE29(0)()



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

23. Properties Under Development for Sale 23. FERBIPYE

Year ended 31 December

HIE12A31HILEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AERETT
At beginning of year F1) 1,382,620 2,409,626
Additions nNE 569,757 457,755
Transfer to completed properties for sale EEB S EEEYE (447,994) (1,467,424)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) BB A (FiEE40) (156,602) (17,337)
At end of year F®, 1,347,781 1,382,620

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s properties under
development for sale with carrying amount of approximately
RMB332,671,000 (31 December 2015: RMB364,534,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group, details
of which are set out in note 29(a). Certain of the Group's properties
under development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB225,498,000 as at 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB43,370,000) was pledged to a third party company to secure
certain other loan to the Group, details of which are set out in note
29(b)(ii). Certain of the Group's properties under development for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount as at 31 December 2015 of
RMB222,648,000 was pledged to certain trust loans to the Group, detail
of which are set out in note 29(b)(i). In 2016, loans from trust fund
companies are repaid and the pledge is released.

As at 31 December 2016, properties under development for sale with
carrying amount of approximately RMB1,239,485,000 (31 December
2015: RMB1,152,620,000) were expected to be completed after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

R2016F 128318 » AEEE FTHREE
A H N R#332,671,0007T (2015412 A 31
B AR®364,534,00070) 0 15 & 3 R
MECEIRTIRT  FAREEERET
BITRE IR - FEBEAME29E) - &
EFEN2016F12ANBHE TETRAEY
AR #225,498,0007T (201512 A318 -
AR #43,370,0007T) M iFE R P E
BERTFE=FAR {EAAKEETH
b BRI - ST NI FE29(0) () © B
Z2015F12A318 » EEEEEEARE
222648000 L EHRBRPYMEAEEH
SECE SRR - BEERAA S E M1 E29()
() « 720165 « HIEX R FIMERELE
BRI IR E AR AR o

BZE2016F12A31H - BEREES I
AE#1,239,485,0007C (2015512 A31H -
AR #1,152,620,00070) HOFF BB RP Y%
RS FARIAE R A0 128 A 2 1R FEPX ©

Annual Report 2016 “E %

159



Y

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

24.Trade Receivables 24. B 5 EEINFKIE
At 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Receivables from land development FeE4HEIEIE B MfE U EIE
arrangements 875,338 436,819
Receivables from properties for sale Al E YR RN TR 67,822 99,972
943,160 536,791
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REEEE = (1,409)
943,160 535,382

Analysis for reporting purposes as: MBEITAT -

Current assets TRENEE 943,160 478,266
Non-current assets EMENEE = 57,116
943,160 535,382

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s receivables from land
development arrangements with carrying amount of approximately
RMB91,413,000 (31 December 2015:Nil) were pledged to a bank to
secure a loan of RMB250,000,000, details of which are set out in note
29(a).

The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of allowance
for doubtful debts presented based on revenue recognition date, at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

201656123310 - AEBEEREEEAA
91,413,000t FE L HHAFIERE S
FEU R IB W AR R TE SRR - ZIRTT
B <58 A ARK250,000,0007T - HEE
B2 RIE29@) -

R E IR A RE - REBENE 5B
(kP 27 RER AR ) RIBW S ER B
HIMERE DT T

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
0to 90 days 0ZE90K 576,666 487,958
91 to 180 days 91£180K - -
181 to 365 days 1812365k 295,369 8,864
1-2 years 1224 47,589 38,560
2-3 years 2%3F 23,536 -
943,160 535,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

24. Trade Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables from land development arrangements as at 31
December 2016 with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB18,388,000
were settled up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

In respect of income arising from land development arrangements
for Longhe Park, the successful land buyers would enter into land
acquisition agreements with the local government authority after
public auction, tender or listing procedures. According to these land
acquisition agreements, the respective land buyers are usually granted
a credit period ranging from 1 to 3 months to settle the full amount
of land acquisition consideration with the local government authority.
The Group would normally be able to recover the full amount of trade
receivables from the government authority shortly after the local
government authority have received the full amount of land acquisition
consideration from the land buyers.

In respect of income arising from land development arrangements for
other industrial parks in other regions, the relevant local government
authorities and the Group have entered into service agreements
according to which the Group would provide construction services to
the relevant local government authorities on a cost-plus basis. The
settlements will be made in accordance with the terms specified in the
agreements governing the relevant transactions.

In respect of revenue arising from sales of properties and property
leasing, the Group normally does not grant any credit term to its
customers except for the sale of the whole block of buildings developed
by the Group, details of which are set out in the following paragraph.

Trade receivables are all interest-free except for receivables related to
sale of whole block of buildings. The trade receivable of RMB41,895,000
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB59,790,000) in respect
of sale of a whole block of building to an entity controlled by the local
government authority during 2015 was charged at an interest rate of
5.22% per annum. The trade receivable of RMB19,281,000 as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB32,326,000) in respect of
sale of another whole block of building to another entity controlled by
different government authority during 2014 was charged at an interest
rate of 9% per annum.

24. E 5 EWRIE @)

201612 A31H @ FELFHEER K
E{EE /A A K 118,388,000 09 FE M FHRIE R
BLHER B B RKR AR EE -

FLEER B R A b B B IE B e W AT
o OEAHME  BERHEREFZE
BT BB 3 ) B R & B 3 B 2R AT 3 U
B - BEZE L ERZE - BEN
BHERBRESZ==@ANGEES
VAR 4 05 BT #8978 3 BB SR » AR
SE R A BT B REELE R
2L HEERTA 2RI D fE KR T
BB HHIA -

FREAI IR TR E RS T A
& - RIEASEE T B & )7 BUR A6 P
FRTBRTG s - AEBES AR AR
B R PIER L 32 AR BR 75 O PR A 75 58 AR
ERHE LR EEBNRA - BEER
B tpask AR T RO MR BB IR B AETT ©

SAIHEEMERMERE RS - HER
HEREBEREOMEIN » REE KT
gREZFPENEMERS  ERHEY
EWFMBR2 R RERE -

B 5 FEWRIE R B R B W) SEARRER
SEIMIRF B o 20154 (AT 30 P9 & 18
MEEBEBHE—BYENELENE SR
UERTE - 201612 AN BMEE S8 5
AR #41,895,0007T (201512 A31H HY
85 T & 58 B A R #59,790,0007T ) &R
5.22% B0 G F ZIE A B, o 2014F M5B — R
ATRBRESMEENCEEELE S —
HYEMEENE S EUEIE - R2016%F
12A31BREE €5 A AR 19,281,000
(2015812 A31THMEESHEAARY

32,326,0007C ) * 1% BB 9% K 4 FI) & g B FI
5 o
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24. Trade Receivables (continueq)

24. B 5 EWRERIE @)

162 FEEFEEMEEESR2AF China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

WEWIE AT RENE S RIRFENRR
ST

At 31 December

#H12831H

2016 2015

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETT

Neither overdue nor impaired WA HA SR E 935,096 527,318
Past due but not impaired: BEEEY KA

110 2 years 1224 - 8,064

2 to 3 years 2E3F 8,064 -

943,160 535,382

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to receivables from the local government authority arising from
land development arrangements. The Directors are of the view that the
credit risk is considered low as the land plots are sold through public
auction, tender or listing to qualified land buyers, whose qualifications
have been verified by the relevant local government authorities and
certain refundable deposits were received by the Group from interested
parties for partial investments in the land development by the Group
(note 27(a)).

In respect of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 from sale
of whole block of buildings to entities controlled by local government
authorities, based on the information available to the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary as there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
these receivables and the balance is still considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts:

TEBHRRENE ZBUHRAETRER
& T30 F 3 R B UG J7 IR B0 508 ©
BRAE LR EIAR BB AMMBE - 1
BRI R EERD L HE BT R
ENNAERIHMERHEE  MAKED
NERBBEEAEEMEN LA AR
EAYERE T R B E £ (M 5E27@)
AREEEEERREERRE -

M2016F 12 A31H » ¥ @t T HHFE
EMEEEBLEMENELENE HER
FoERAEEENMES  AEEES
ERAMEE S EWFRIERN SRR R
BEERE  BEFBEDT2ELD -
E ™R Z R EERE -

REEEHL)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
At the beginning of the year F4 1,409 1,409
Amounts written off as uncollectible A EER B Mz S FE (1,409) -
At end of the year FH - 1,409
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

25. Prepayments and Other Receivables 25. BIRIER H AWK IE
At 31 December
#A12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Prepayments: SEANE S
— Prepayments for construction activities — BREEMTENFIE 34,911 13,642
— Prepayments for taxes —JafHiE = 5,041
- Others —HAty 2,943 1,852
Other receivables: HAb IR -
— Receivables on disposal of properties under — U g (BfisEa)
development (note a) 136,288 208,929
- Compensation receivable (note b) — iR E R (MI7ED) 119,214 112,562
— Receivable from disposal of a subsidiary —BETAREYGRIE
(note ¢) (Ff5EC) 18,213 30,480
— Loan receivables (note d) — FEYE SR (P 3Ed) 61,453 21,423
- Staff advances —BI8% 9,391 7,560
- Deposits —EYET € 42,925 21,691
- Others —Hith 65,423 55,308
490,761 478,488
Less: allowance for other receivables B E A GRS - (13,623)
490,761 464,865
Notes: BT
a.  Certain pieces of land of the Group were required to sell back to the local a. AR E BT ERBEINE(\ - ok

government due to change in local business development plan. The local
government authorities will make compensation to the Group for the loss of
the respective properties under development. The outstanding receivables
at 31 December 2016 is expected to be settled before the end of 2017 with
the effective interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 6% per annum.

b. The Group incurred loss in a land development sales transaction in 2006. b.
After continuing communication and negotiations with the relevant local
government authority by the Group for years, in 2015, the local government
authority agreed to make compensation to the Group in respect of the
above. The Group expects to recover this receivable before the end of 2017
with an effective interest rate of 6% per annum.

C. Amount represents receivable from disposal of a subsidiary, details of C.
which are set out in note 40.

d. Loan receivables at 31 December 2016 and 2015 made to independent d.
third parties which were interest-bearing, unsecured. The loan to Pingan
Real Estate Company Ltd with a carrying amount of 21,423,000 is expected
to be received in full within 2017. The rest loan to Shenzhen Shunfeng and
another institution does not have fixed repayment term.

THFEEEME LA E BT o BB
FHAEEFRTPMENIBRETHE
MR2016F12A31H - REFMBORIBEMIZRE
5.5% % 6% F K KA E ) S FEHE20174F
EATELR -

REFE2006FE LMBENRFhEE
TEE - KEFREWBNBR - K
FER20154F B Bt Lt B iR S SR BT
B - AREBTEF A HR2017 FF R Z AT D
FHE R A R IR R F M K 6%t H AR E TR
B -

ZRWEALETATMMNE - LBER
2 B0 -

2015512 A31 B 2016512 431 H 4%
UE=NRENRKERSREE - B
REER - BRAFLTHEERDFRE
DE R ARKE21,423,0007T B9 FKIAFAET AT
20175 W AU E o H AR ME RIRIITIR
LSRR EFR A RS —HEBHREE
B TE E R BN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 26.8817&8 R IZR4IBTED

Deposits
At 31 December
#H12831H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBET R ARETT
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash inhand  $8177%5% « BT8R FIHFES 3,469,024 1,564,995
Less: Deposits pledged for banking facilities B BLERTTRYE M 1R AY
(note a) Fax(FizEa) (700,000) (441,100)
Deposits pledged for other loans (note b) FEAE T E R
FR(HisED) (6,000) -
Deposits pledged for guarantees granted AR ELERM
to customers (note c) ERER (M) (55,495) (32,877)
Deposits pledged for issuance of bills AEITREZEED
payable BT (HisEa) - (15,000)
Deposits pledged for a letter of guarantee PRI LRE
EROFH(HEa) - (17,500)
Total cash and cash equivalents R RIBSEEYRE 2,707,529 1,058,518
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash inhand LA R & EHENIRITER -
denominated in: RITHEMREFRHIRS
- RMB (functional currency of the relevant —ARE
entities) (HEEBNIHEEES) 3,351,072 1,161,786
—US$ —ZE5T 103,167 398,475
— HK$ — B 14,785 4,734
3,469,024 1,564,995
Analysis for reporting purpose as: PREPTAT -
- Current assets — e 2,869,024 1,564,995
- Non-current assets —3JERED 600,000 -
3,469,024 1,564,995
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

26.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank
Deposits (continued)

Notes:

a. The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
security for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29(a)).

b. The amounts represented deposits in RMB pledged to a trust fund company
as security for the other loan facility to the Group (note 29(b)(i)).

C. The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as
security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group’s
customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving
the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the banks
from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted.

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2016 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the
government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of
the PRC.

The restricted bank deposits and bank balances carry prevailing market
interest rates as follows:

26. RITHBRRZRHRITER

(&)
Wi

a. SEEFEALAKEEERETRBRITRE
EVIRIR T M RITEROARBER - 18
A EE29(a) ©

b. SEEEALEEE -HERALERD
—IREAE SR A AR AREFR -

c. EEEEARTAAKERFRILETRER
BERNER T @RTEROARBERT
Tk ZRBIBITHERBRBITEAES K
MEMENFEMEEEERERIZBE
FREE RIS R R IR 1

R20165F12A31R - RITHEHBRRETE
NARBHE  MARETREBRBETIS
Bl AREERZITEBFOR
g BAEHESELTEFZRNPERK
R E S INER I

IS M R B ZRAIRIT R RTT
AT

At 31 December

®12H318
2016 2015
% %
Interest rate per annum FHIEEE 0.35-2.75 0.30-2.75
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27.Trade and Other Payables

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

27. B R B A B TR

At 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Trade payables Z PR FE 773,224 732,694
Investment properties construction cost payable  JE{T% & M2 R A 231,885 26,907
Refundable deposits (note a) AREET® (Mf3ka) 17,142 47,142
Advance from government (note b) BT (FIFED) 39,732 39,732
Other taxes payable EAb B RIIE 948 35,213
Other payables E M RIE 66,169 39,339
Other deposits received HEtEWET€ 27,942 42,021
Accrued expenses FEETRASE 800 472
1,157,842 963,520

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on services/

materials received date at the end of the reporting period:

NTREEREHEER - EZENHE
RIBEER R A E ) B BT RRER 7
#r

At 31 December

MA12H31H

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Less than 1 year DRE 469,999 471,569
1-2 years 1226 206,087 223,106
2-3 years 2E3F 69,493 16,836
Over 3 years 3FEMLE 27,645 21,183
773,224 732,694

Notes: st

a. The amounts represent refundable deposits received from interested
parties for potential investments in the land developed by the Group.

b. The amount represents interest-free refundable cash advance received
from the local government authority to assist the Group’s operations in
the construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
of land development projects. Such cash advance is repayable to the local
government authority on demand.

a. ATHERERMEEMEEASEMFE LN
TERBERENERPIMA ARAT S ©

b ALBREAMHSRAKRMNSETRE
ROBH - M BHAEBGEEHLIY
REORR F o T ERERRBHIE -
HERLBABEBTRLHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

28.BILLS PAYABLE 28. EEHE
The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date at LA B# 12016512 431 H LA KX 2015412
the end of the reporting period is as follows: A31R ' ENEERIREFAEBBH#®THR
[EEFaRige

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

0-90 days 0Z90K - 15,000

- 15,000
All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within six FERNENEERYAREEBREEME T

months from the issue date. MEEWHERZAZNEAREIE -
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29.Bank and Other Borrowings

29. SRIT R HAERR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
Bank loans RITIER
Secured (note a) AR (IzEa) 1,930,869 1,386,309
Other loans EAb AR
Secured/guaranteed (note b) HIIE (P ED)) 2,659,797 1,946,577
Unsecured (note c) IR (M EE©) 20,000 20,000
4,610,666 3,352,886
Total borrowings are repayable as follows: ERERE R (BERAE
- Repayable on demand —REREE 20,000 20,000
- Repayable within one year —BR—FREE 1,503,229 1,834,559
— Repayable over 1 year and within 2 years —BR—FEEMERER 1,022,713 985,900
— Repayable over 2 years and within 5 years —ARMER R TEANEER 2,051,220 492,427
— Repayable over 5 years — AR AERER 13,504 20,000
4,610,666 3,352,886
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities 38 : KB AEIE N RHSEE (1,523,229) (1,854,559)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities SEREIBEE NIRHEEE 3,087,437 1,498,327
Floating rate borrowings EBER 1,333,727 633,218
Fixed rate borrowings TEBMER 3,256,939 2,699,668
Interest-free borrowings EBER 20,000 20,000
4,610,666 3,352,886
Bank and other borrowings denominated in: LATRB) &R ERRIT R
EAb &K
- RMB — AR 4,593,729 3,127,164
- USs$ —%7T - 225,722
— HK$ — K 16,937 -
4,610,666 3,352,886
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued) 29. BITRHEMER @
Notes: Bt 5T
a. The secured bank loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the a. AEBHIRITRBEERALREBE TEE
Group and their carrying amounts are as follows: fERIER - HFREEANT :

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AERETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W - BB R (MEE15) 46,747 -
Investment properties (note 16) "E M (HE16) 208,100 106,800
In progress land development arrangements HeELEEIEE (ME22)

(note 22) 41,504 -
Properties under development for sale (note 23) FEERERYE(HFE23) 332,671 364,534
Receivable from land development arrangements &5 i fI 2518 B A fEUREIE

(note 24) (Ffi5E24) 91,413 -
Restricted bank deposits (note 26) SR IR TF R (P 5E26) 700,000 441,100

1,420,435 912,434
b.  The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows: b.  ZAEEFEREROEMERFBENOT
At 31 December
A12831H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
Loans from trust fund companies (note i) EEESARIER(ME) 984,929 1,012,038
Loans from other third parties (note ii) HAbsE = HERR (M) 1,674,868 934,539
2,659,797 1,946,577
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

(i)

In February 2013, a subsidiary of the Group, Langfang VAST entered
into an agreement with a trust fund company in the PRC pursuant to
which the trust fund company agreed to contribute RMB300,000,000
to Langfang Honghao Investment Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Honghao
Investment”) as capital injection. Subsequent to this capital injection,
the registered capital of Langfang Honghao Investment increased
from RMB320,000,000 to RMB620,000,000 and 48.4% equity interest
of Langfang Honghao Investment was held by the trust fund
company accordingly. Per the agreement, Langfang VAST agreed
to repurchase and the trust fund company agreed to sell the 48.4%
equity interest in Langfang Honghao Investment either at a cash
consideration of RMB390,000,000 in April 2015 after 24 months of
capital injection or at a cash consideration of RMB439,500,000 in
April 2016 after 36 months of the capital injection, the final date of
repurchase of which is at the full discretion of the Group. Langfang
Honghao Investment is accounted for as a wholly owned subsidiary,
taking into account that the Group can still exercise control over
Langfang Honghao Investment, the compulsory repurchase
arrangement and the trust fund company does not entitle to any
variable returns (including profit distribution) from Langfang Honghao
Investment but receives fixed interest income, the transaction as
a whole has been considered as a loan granted to the Group in
these consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic
substance of the arrangement. In April 2015, the Group made a cash
payment of RMB20,000,000 to the trust fund company in order to
extend the final settlement date by Langfang VAST for repurchasing
the equity interest held by the trust fund company from April 2015
to April 2016. This loan was fully repaid in April 2016. As at 31
December 2015, this trust loan was secured by certain properties
under development for sale of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB74,596,000 and investment properties of the Group
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB86,600,000.

In December 2013, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
another trust fund company, pursuant to which loan amounting
to RMB328,280,000 was granted by this trust fund company to the
Group with three-year term at an effective interest rate of 5.535%
per annum. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
early repaid an amount of RMB50,000,000 and this loan was fully
repaid in December 2016. As at 31 December 2015, this trust loan
was secured by certain properties under development for sale of
the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB148,052,000.
In November 2015, the Group entered into another loan agreement
with this trust fund company, pursuant to which loans amounting
to RMB600,000,000 were granted by this trust fund company to the
Group pledged by bank deposits amounting to RMB6,000,000 at
a contractual interest rate of 7.20% per annum. The first batch of
this loan amounting to RMB200,000,000 was received in 2015 and
will be repaid at 31 December 2017 and the remaining of this loan
amounting to RMB400,000,000 was received in 2016 and will be
repaid in December 2018.

29. SRITREMER @

BiEE ¢ ()

b. AEEBRER EROEMGERFEN
T (&)

0]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

0]

(Continued)

In June 2014, two subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang VAST and
Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment Co., Ltd. (“Langfang Shoukai
Sheng Shi Investment”) entered into a tri-party agreement with a trust
fund company in the PRC, pursuant to which the trust fund company
agreed to contribute RMB300,000,000 to Langfang Shoukai Sheng
Shi Investment, of which RMB60,000,000 and RMB240,000,000 were
recorded as the registered capital and the capital reserve of Langfang
Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment, respectively. Subsequent to this
capital injection, the registered capital of Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi
Investment increased from RMB102,000,000 to RMB162,000,000 and
37.04% equity interest of Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment
was held by the trust fund company accordingly. According to the
agreement, Langfang VAST agrees to repurchase and the trust
fund company agrees to sell the 37.04% equity interest in Langfang
Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment in June 2016, after 24 months of
capital injection, at a pre-determined price if the Group can provide
certain additional pledged assets to the trust fund company within six
months from the date of the capital injection completed. At the end
of 2014, the Group fails to provide certain additional pledged assets
to the trust fund company, the Group is required to repurchase the
37.04% equity interest in Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment in
June 2015 after 12 months of capital injection at a pre-determined
price. Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment is accounted for as a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, taking into account that
the Group can still exercise control over Langfang Shoukai Sheng
Shi Investment, the compulsory repurchase arrangement and the
trust fund company is not entitled to any variable returns (including
profit distribution) from Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment but
receives fixed interest income, the transaction as a whole has been
considered as a loan granted to the Group with a one-year term
in these consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic
substance of the arrangement. In January 2015, the Group reached
an agreement with the trust fund company to extend the maturity
date of a loan from this trust fund company with the principal
amount of RMB300,000,000 from June 2015 to June 2016 by providing
certain pledged investment properties of the Group to the trust fund
company.

In the first half of 2016, the Group repaid part of this loan amounting
to RMB100,000,000 and made a cash payment of RMB811,700,000 to
the trust fund company the maturity date of the remaining with the
principle amount of RMB200,000,000 from June 2016 to June 2017.
As at 31 December 2016, this trust loan was secured by the equity
interest held by the Group in Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment
and investment properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB565,700,000(31 December 2015: RMB549,700,000).

29. SRITREMER @)

BiEE ¢ ()

b. AEBEFER MEROEMERFBN
T (8
0 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

0]

(Continued)

In May 2016, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a trust
fund company amounting to RMB250,000,000 with a three-year term
at a contractual interest rate of 11% per annum, secured by certain
investment properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB565,700,000.

In October 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a
non-financial institution amounting to RMB133,200,000 with a three-
year term at an interest rate of 13.5% per annum. The loan was fully
repaid in advance in 2016.

In August 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a
non-financial institution amounting to RMB200,000,000 with a two-
year term at an interest rate of 13% per annum, secured by certain
assets of Langfang Wantong Cemetery Company Limited (“Langfang
Wantong") which is a related party of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB381,820,000. The loan was fully repaid in
advance in 2016.

Included therein is a loan from a non-financial institution amounting
to RMB6,600,000 (31 December 2015: RMB10,800,000) as at 31
December 2016, which is guaranteed by Langfang VAST.

Included therein is an entrusted loan from a non-financial institution
in the PRC of RMB369,000,000, including RMB150,000,000 with a
two-year term and RMB219,000,000 with a three-year term, both at
a contractual interest rate of 10.90% per annum as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: RMB369,000,000)which was secured by
certain properties under development for sale of the Group with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB225,498,000 (31 December
2015: RMB43,370,000) and the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately RMB58,100,000(31 December
2015: property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately RMB23,236,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

29. SRITREMER @)

feE - ()

b.  The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows: b. REBAER  FEROEGBERFBLO
(Continued) T (8
(i) (Continued) iy (&

In June 2016, a subsidiary of the Group, Langfang Shengshi Tonghui
Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Shengshi Tonghui”) entered into an
agreement with a non-financial institution in the PRC pursuant to
which the non-financial institution agreed to contribute RMB700,000
to Shengshi Tonghui as capital injection and loan amounting to
RMB999,300,000 was granted to the Group. Subsequent to this
capital injection, the registered capital of Shengshi Tonghui was
RMB1,000,000 and 70% equity interest of to Shengshi Tonghui was
held by the non-financial institution accordingly. Per the agreement,
Langfang VAST agreed to repurchase and the non-financial institution
agreed to sell the 70% equity interest in Shengshi Tonghui at a cash
consideration of RMB700,000 in July 2021 and Langfang Vast has the
right to early redeem all the equity interest from 2019 afterwards.
Shengshi Tonghui is accounted for as a wholly owned subsidiary,
taking into account that the Group can still exercise control over
Shengshi Tonghui, the compulsory repurchase arrangement
and the non-financial institution does not entitle to any variable
returns (including profit distribution) from Shengshi Tonghui but
receives fixed interest income, the transaction as a whole has been
considered as a loan amounting to RMB1,000,000,000 with a five-
year term at an effective interest rate of 8.2% per annum in these
consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic substance
of the arrangement. This loan was secured by the equity interest
held by the Group in Shengshi Tonghui and guaranteed by Langfang
VAST, Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Langfang City
Property”) and China VAST.

In June 2016, The Group entered into a loan agreement with a third-
party company amounting to RMB300,000,000 with a five-year term
at an effective interest rate of 8.63% per annum, secured by certain
in progress land development arrangements of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB339,000,000.

In April 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement with Fine
Process Limited, an independent third party and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ICBC International Investment Management Limited, the
initial principal of the loans are of US$100,000,000. In April 2015, the
Group repaid part of the loan amounting to US$12,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB73,686,000). In December 2015, the Group
made further repayment of this loan amounting to US$50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB324,500,000). In April 2016,
the Group repaid the remaining part of the loan amounting to
US$38,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB245,666,000).
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29. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

C. The details of unsecured other loans of the Group are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. SRITREMER @

BiRE - (B

C.

SERERREMERNBRANT

At 31 December

A12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Loans from third parties (note i) FE=F a5 20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000

(i) The above loans from third parties as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 were interest-free and are repayable on demand.

()  #ZE2016F12 831 H 20159127
JNEME=TEREEEERELR
FRIRERKEENER

d.  The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as d.  SEERNFIEHELT
follows:
At 31 December
MA12A31H
2016 2015
% %
Effective interest rate per annum: BIRFER =
Floating rate borrowings FEFIE R 4.90-8.83 4.90-8.40
Fixed rate borrowings & E FI| R &5k 4.87-11.84 2.62-15.61
e.  Interest on borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates is based on e.  NARBHESGIZEEBROFERBES

the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China. Interest on
borrowings denominated in US$ at floating rates are based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate and repriced monthly. Interest on borrowings
denominated in HK$ at floating rate is based on the Hongkong Interbank
Offered Rate and repriced monthly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

30. Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 30 December 2015, the Company issued a three-year term US$
6% convertible bonds due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount of
US$50,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). In addition to which, on
the same date, the Company also issued a three-year term US$ 12%
secured guaranteed notes due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount
of US$50,000,000 (the “Notes”) to the same holder of the Convertible
Bonds. The total net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
and the Notes are used for the purpose of capital expenditure and
general working capital. The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly
guaranteed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured
by the pledge of entire equity interests of Shing Cheong Holdings
Ltd. (“Shing Cheong Holdings"), China Vast International Ltd. (“China
Vast International”), King Billion Ltd. ("King Billion”) and Sheng Shi
International (HK) Development Co., Ltd. (“Sheng Shi”).

The Convertible Bonds, upon issue, will constitute direct,
unsubordinated, unconditional and secured obligations of the Company
and shall at all times rank pari passu in all respects and without any
preference or priority among themselves.

The Notes, upon issue, will constitute direct, general, unconditional,
unsubordinated and secured obligations of the Company and shall at all
times rank pari passu without any preference among themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

30. Convertible Bonds and Notes (continued)

The principal terms of the follows:

(a) Conversion Right

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has the right to convert all
or any part of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from the beginning
on, and including, the issue date of the Convertible Bonds up
to the close of business on the maturity date of the Convertible

Bonds.

For the purpose of determining the number of ordinary shares to
be issued on conversion of the Convertible Bonds, the relevant
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of US$1.00:HK$7.75.
The price at which ordinary shares of the Company will be issued
upon conversion (the “Conversion Price”) will initially be HK$3.10
per share, but will be subject to adjustment for, among other
things, consolidation, reclassification or subdivision, capitalization
of profit or reserves, distributions, rights issues of shares or
options over shares, dividend adjustments and other dilutive

events.

(b) Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased and cancelled
as provided herein, the Company shall pay to each holder of the
Convertible Bonds on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
an aggregate price of (i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount
on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds, (i) all accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds and unpaid
default interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii)
all other related outstanding amounts payable by the Company to

the holder of such Convertible Bonds.

(c) Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption Rights

for Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Convertible Bonds occurs, the holder of the Convertible Bonds
may elect to require the Company to redeem the outstanding
Convertible Bonds in full in the amount equivalent to the sum of
(i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds, (ii) all accrued and unpaid interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds and unpaid default interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such

Convertible Bonds.
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30. Convertible Bonds and Notes continued)
The details of the redemption of the Notes are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled, the
Company shall pay to each holder of the Notes on the maturity
date of the Notes an aggregate price of (i) the outstanding
principal amount on the maturity date of the Notes, (ii) all accrued
and unpaid interest in respect of the Notes and unpaid default
interest of the Notes, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such Notes.

Company'’s Early Redemption Rights

The Company shall have the right to redeem all or any part of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes at any time during the
period between the day immediately after the second anniversary
of the issue date of the Notes and the last day immediately
preceding the maturity date of the Notes, provided that no event
of default has occurred on or before the date of full payment
of the redemption price by the Company to the holder of the
Notes. The redemption price payable by the Company for such
early redemption shall be the amount equivalent to the sum of (i)
the outstanding principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes or (if any interest payment date has occurred) the
latest interest payment date up to (and including) the date of full
payment of the redemption price by the Company to the relevant
holder of the Notes and unpaid default interest (if any) accrued,
and (iii) all other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of such Notes.

Note Holder's Redemption Rights for Events of
Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Notes occurs, the holder of the Notes may elect to require
the Company to redeem the Notes in full in an amount equivalent
to the sum of (i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes,
(ii) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes up to (and including) the date of full payment of the
redemption price by the Company to such holder of the Notes and
unpaid default interest (if any) accrued, and (iii) all other related
outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the holder of
such Notes.
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30. Convertible Bonds and Notes (continued)

The terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes are negotiated with
the holder collectively and the issuance of the Convertible Bonds and
the Notes are inter-conditional, accordingly, the total net proceeds
received by the Company from the issue of the Convertible Bonds and
the Notes have been allocated to a debt component of the Convertible
Bonds, the Notes and the derivative component in its initial recognition
as follows:

(@) Debt component is initially measured at fair value amounted to
approximately RMB583,652,000, which represents the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest rate at that
time applicable to instruments of comparable credit status and
providing substantially the same cash flows with the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes. It is subsequently measured at amortised
cost by applying an effective interest rate of 16.10% per annum
after considering the effect of the transaction costs;

(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the economic characteristics
and risks of the early redemption option of the Notes are closely
related to the host debt contract of the Notes. Therefore, the
Company does not account for the early redemption option
separately; and

() Derivative component, which is equal to the difference between
the net proceeds of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes received
and the fair value of the debt components of the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes, is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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30. Convertible Bonds and Notes continued)
The movements of the debt component and derivative component of

30. TERESFREE W)

AEEECEERERD BEmlo M E

the Convertible Bonds and the Notes for 2016 and 2015 are set out AT
below:
Debt Derivative
component component
of the of the Debt
Convertible Convertible component
Bonds Bonds of the Notes
AEE A E ¥R
aE&8 R a&8s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARETT ARETT
Convertible Bonds and Notes issued 72015512 308 #1749
on 30 December 2015 Al D FEE 285,024 62,279 298,628
Transaction costs incurred AT (3,311) - (4,035)
Exchange realignment e N 1,664 364 1,744
As at 31 December 2015 2015F12A31H &5 283,377 62,643 296,337
Fair value change recognized in BRERFHAFEE
profit or loss ZH)ER - (5,302) -
Interest charged for the year FERF B 49,512 - 49,512
Interest paid BEASHHFLE (30,528) - (30,528)
Exchange realignment PN 17,089 4,278 17,969
As at 31 December 2016 2016F12 A31B &% 319,450 61,619 333,290

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes

has occurred up to 31 December 2016.

NEPTEITH A EERPEEEEE2015

FI2A3N BB AR FEHRSEO OB

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. Share Capital 31. |’
Share capital of the Group includes only issued and fully paid share REERKRARBIFEATIIE N D 2T
capital of the Company as set out below. /NG ) N
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
ZER ZER EZER
B & EE
HK$'000 RMB'000
BT ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: R EESE0.01 T TR
As at 31 December 2015 and 2015 &
31 December 2016 201612 831H 5,000,000,000 50,000 39,792
Issued and fully paid: BITWHUE -
As at 31 December 2015 and 20154 &
31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 1,637,641,000 16,376 13,031
32. Reserves 32.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The principal reserves of the Group consist of the following:

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve in these consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 represented the share
capital of Shing Cheong Holdings.

AN B ¥R 5 BT P e R 4 R DA S AR R

t

CEAGHRERTHESEERBE

1755 -

AEETENRBRIE NIIEER

)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32. Reserves (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium at 31 December 2016 represented share premium
of the Company. The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to members;
(b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (c) the redemption
and repurchase of shares (subject to the provisions of section 37
of the Cayman Companies Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary
expenses of the Company; and (e) writing-off the expenses of, or
the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares
or debentures of the Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity shareholders
out of the share premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC rules and regulations, those
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are required
to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation, after
offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the relevant
accounting policies and financial regulations applicable to entities
established in the PRC, to the statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners of these PRC subsidiaries. Statutory reserve is
non-distributable other than in liquidation and can be used to
make good previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-in capital in proportion to the existing interests of equity
owners, provided that the balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

32. @B

(ii)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern; to maintain the confidence
of creditors; to sustain future development of the group entities
and to maximize the return to the owners of the Company through
optimization of debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, net of cash
and cash equivalents, convertible bonds and notes, and total equity of
the Group.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations of the

Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend, raise of new capital, issue of new debt or the

reduction of existing debts.

34. Financial Instruments

34.

a. Categories of financial instruments

33. EXERERE

REBEEREBEARARRAEE G A4S
BEGE  BRERANEL  LRKE
BECEERERTE  HEEEEN
ARER - ARBREEREE NHRKRK
Bl -

REBREARER AR BN ERHIRE
ERASEEY)  THRESRIENG
ARAEAARK

AEEEREETMEREARE - FR
UIREZH — & - ERESEREAK
AREXRBERR - REEEENRE
FAEBREBRMNEE SEHER - 3
TTHAKBIBRBER - KPR

RERE -

BiETH

a. HMEIEER

At 31 December

MA12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Financial assets at amortised cost TR ARSI AR B T B
Trade receivables FEMGRIE 943,160 535,382
Other receivables E i ENRIE 443,516 436,770
Amounts due from related parties JEUR REEE 5 TRIE 1,209 3,606
Bank balances and cash RITERKIES 2,707,529 1,058,518
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIBITFR 761,495 506,477
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost FEHIG R E Sl AR A A 7
less impairment HEKE
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 3,300 3,300
Financial liabilities at amortised cost TR ARSI AR AR 5 B
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMENFKIE 1,156,894 928,308
Amounts due to related parties FESRARS 5 508 67,036 3,104
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 4,610,666 3,352,886
Convertible Bonds and Notes AIERES R ER 652,740 579,714
Financial liabilities at fair value through FTA Bz X N BT E A
profit or loss HEEE
Derivative PTEBET A 61,619 62,643
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34. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments consisted of bank balances
and cash, restricted bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
available-for-sale investment, amounts due from/to related
parties, trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes and derivative. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include interest rate risk, credit
risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Company does
not have any significant exposure to financial risks.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate trade receivable, other receivables, convertible bonds
and notes (note 30) and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings (note
29).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the People’s Bank of China, London
Interbank Offered Rate and Hongkong Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure, but will closely monitor its interest rate
exposure in the future.

The variable rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and assumed that
the amounts outstanding at the end of reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the Directors consider that the exposure
of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable rate bank
balances in insignificant.

34. Bt
b.
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34. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

184 FEEHELTELEESRZAT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher
or lower and all other variables were held constant, there would
have no impact on the Group’s total equity apart from retained
profits and the potential effect on profit after tax, after taking into
account the interest capitalization effect, for the each of reporting
period is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4-¢H§IENF

MEEREEEERBE®)

F R @B ()
BRE DT

B H B E T ol T 100K B T
FIARMERBIETE B TREF
N - AEEMB ST e 2R
& MEBFEENMCPLEE K
SHRE R R FI B ST

Year ended 31 December

EZ128318 L1218 A HR
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Increase in post-tax profit for the year F L& T I N 5,292 1,165
Other price risk HAthE 4 @b

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its derivatives.
However, no sensitivity analysis is presented as the Directors
consider the impact is insignificant.

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amount of the Group'’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each of
reporting period are as follows:

REBRITETAEZRIEERLNE
YT .%%EWL E/giTE
R WARINIREERE ST -

SMNE PR

7RG B 0 25 S B R 4 SRS LA SN E 51
ENEBEEREEABRAMAEN
™

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
Assets EE
United States dollars ("US$") En(lEx])
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 103,167 398,475
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") ([ ])
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 14,785 4,734
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34. Financial Instruments (continueq) 34. M T R
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. M¥ERMEEEEZEREK®)

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

1B JeEL Bk (4)

At 31 December

M12A31H

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT AEETT
Liabilities =R
us$ =

Bank and other borrowings RITREMET = 225,722

Convertible Bonds and Notes IR E S TIRE 652,740 579,714
HKS poted

Bank and other borrowings $R1T R E AR 16,937 _

Sensitivity analysis BREST

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in US$ and HK$
against RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2015:
5%) increase and decrease in the exchange rates of RMB
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting period for a 5%
(2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax
profit for the year where RMB strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit for the year.

AEEWEERBKEETRABERL
AREEEE RS

TREIAE@MEARE X BEING
FER N RN Bk5%(20154F  5%) 2
BRRE IS © 5% (20154 : 5%) K&k
BIREYINEIE R AT RE S IR B B AT
fly - BRE D ITEBIBAINESHER
MAZNEREIEER - WA ERE IR
45 TR LA SINEE [ SR 38 15% (20154F -
5%) ERE X% - TIIEH(AEH)E
FREARBEHEBINGSE8RE - F
AR EFEREMORD) - ARKEY
BRI 555% (20154 : 5%) K -
HENFBEBRSENERTE -
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34. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

4. T B

AR EERERBEE)

SINGE JEL B ()

BREENN (B

Year ended 31 December

EZ128318 L1218 A HR
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Increase in profit for the year (US$) FREFIE N (ET) 28,707 24,669
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FEREFIE I CRA) (B
(HK$) 107 (237)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure at the end of reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during that particular year.

Credit risk

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee
issued by the Group as disclosed in note 37.

The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and restricted
bank deposits. The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is
limited because the bank balances and restricted bank deposits
are maintained with large commercial banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

EERERR  ANSHEHNEERE
MERARIE TRERZFENRR -
F bt BURE D AT I N EER R E A SME
[z o

FERR

REMEHEERE - AEERED
FREBITEERASEELIEE
RMEGBAEBRZTHEENR
REERBKBGAHBRTRAH
BIRCHRY B EENREE RN
I7FAEE AR EE B SRR X
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34. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, 93% of trade receivables were from
income derived from land development arrangements (31
December 2015: 83%), details of which are set out in note 24, and
therefore there is concentration of risk as all these receivables
would be settled by the local government authorities to the Group
after the local government authorities received the proceeds from
the successful land buyers and/or by other income of the relevant
local government authorities. The Directors consider that the
credit risk is low as in progress land development arrangements
is sold through public auction, tender or listing to qualified land
buyers, whose qualifications are verified by relevant government
authorities and buyers have paid a portion of proceeds to the
Group as performance bonds which is disclosed as refundable
deposits received for land auction, tender and listing in note 27.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables in respect of sale of the whole block of buildings
to entities controlled by local government authorities (note 24) and
other receivables from the government authority (note 25(a)) and
(b)) In order to minimize the credit risk on trade receivables and
other receivables, the Directors continuously monitor the credit
quality and financial conditions of those debtors and the level of
trade receivables and other receivables to ensure that follow-up
action is taken timely to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk in respect of the
above is significantly reduced.

34. BT R

b.

AR EEEERBEE)

EERE®)

B ZE2016%12A318 - 93%HI UK
BREFELHFHAEBEBENEREA
(20164128318 : 83%) * ARFIE
SR TE24 - B R BT 8 R AR
NEB T E KU ATS5RIBR,
SR ERAS ERL M T3 B i R AR A ) EL At UK
A% A ZSRWREES RIS
BRI AEESE - AtAHER
SEF - ARFELHHEIEEER
AFIRE - BEIHEAEEREL
HEERFEEZENRTEESNL
WERHE  MERBELRANEER
SHE G B HREERBLHRES
(RKIE27RETE BT INE - BiF
RE BB ARETE) - FUE

ERREERRIE -
AN REEEHEEIATEER

B HEEEE TR @ din ) A
MR PR ) B B8 A B e B MR IR (P
FE24) B Bt R YRR — BT # 8 R0A
(M FE25(a)F (b)) » BEERIE R
RERAMEUGIENEERR &
ERBEEEREEBANEEEER
EAREAR - LA R R MR FROR e EL b R LR
SRR - LARELR N B BRENBRAETT
& A EaHER - plit - EER
REXEREREEGR Lt EAM
SERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

34. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70%
of the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the period of
guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand the
Group to repay the outstanding loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit
the sales deposit received and resell the repossessed properties.
Therefore, the management considers the Group would likely
recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantees. The
management considers the credit risk exposure to financial
guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited because
the facilities are secured by the properties and the market price
of the properties is usually higher than the guaranteed amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds and notes.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans and other borrowings
with a repayable on demand clause were included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the lenders choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

34. BT A

b.

BEEREEEEREE 5
EERKE @
REBEEEHRTHKEROYME - K
SE—MRREFHRIBEERERERIR
ITIELER UARPRHEESESR
Y - STEUERYMEEEEN70%
AR - ZEREERAMGBEEEE
%18 E'Jhﬁ?ﬁz%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ—fzzfﬁl"%
EEENBNERLETNFE - £
BEBAT AEERKE WAH
Erle kil EmEEE - HilL
EHRERE  AEERAE A ALUKEE
RITEENEREE - EEERA
BRERYEERREMBERNEE

REAR - T REERYEERE
B MyENTE-—RRERSER
= o Bt EFRATEENEER
b3 B K IEBRIE -

REBEE R
REBUGEFMBES  BITREM
BRI SRS LR AL LES
SEFRUES -

TREANNAEEREITERBEE
M BRA WHIR - TRIRBEASER
WEFERORFHY  RUBEE
HARFTRRESRELT - LBME -
T ERTERITE LN
1 - LRTA AR 2 I8 SRR IRTT
ERREAM BRI AR OREE
ER - 3T aEnTIEBA
RIRIEREH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting
period.

34. ﬂﬁ%IEw

b. HEEE

REBESER(E)
TERRABBEMNERRNERERE

EEAERBR®)

1 RTREHR

BEFERERZEE

A E RS AR A RIFAIFIE

Undiscounted cash flows
RTRRERER
Weighted Overone  Overtwo
average Ondemand,  yearbut  yearshut Total
interest  orlessthan  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Carrying
rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflows amount
WERE  AR-ER  -FAEHR REAEIR AERS
% g WEAEE IEAME  DE4EE hEfE FEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETn ARETn ARETn  ARETn ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2016 RO16E12A318
Trade and other payables JERT RE TR - 1,156,8% - - - 1156894 1,156,894
Amounts due to related parties JE T 3R - 67,036 - - - 67,036 67,036
Bak and otfer borrowings SREME
- Fixed rate -%8 8.12 1,411,764 984,862 1,258,273 - 3,654,899 3,256,939
- Variable rate -%8 6.41 383,152 231,029 869,928 13,937 1,498,046 1,333,727
- Interest free -%8 - 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertible Bonds and Notes EAERREE 9.00 62,433 818,566 - - 880,999 652,740
Financial guarantee contracts BRERAY - 968,211 - - - 968,211 -
Total E) 4,069,490 2,034,457 2,128,201 13,937 8,246,085 6,487,336
At31 December 2015 H015E128318
Trade and other payables JER REfERFE - 928,307 - - - 928,307 928,307
Amounts due to related parties JE s 3R - 3104 - - - 3104 3104
Bark and otfer borrowings FRAMER
- Fixed rate -%& 1040 1,954,364 701,389 311817 - 2,968,070 2,699,668
- Variable rate -2 6.13 105,405 312426 203,262 20613 701,706 633218
- Interest free -%8 - 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertiole Bonds and Notes EAEAREE 9.00 58,65 58,655 638,369 - 755,679 579714
Financial guarantee contracts BIBERAN - 786,015 - - - 786,015 -
Total by 3,856,350 1132470 1,153,448 20613 6,162,381 4,864,011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MEHRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Financial Instruments (continueq)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for bank and other borrowings with
variable interest rate differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand, or less than one year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016,
the aggregate carrying amount of these borrowings amounted to
RMB20,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB20,000,000).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts on the basis of the earliest date on which
the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that such amount will not be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

34. BT A

b.

BREREEEERBEE)
REBESERE)

BIEH A RARINE B R SR
B B RS - DL HRRE A%
HRRETREBERFTRIENSE
EAFED) -

EAEEIBBES A LETHARE
Eﬁi&%mﬂ%?ﬂmﬂ TREMERE

[BARERFLIR—FREE]
E’JETF'EJ%EHW > 22016 F 12 A 31
= EA#(ETAE’]%@EEEfEZ%/\EM
20,000,0007T (2015412 A31H = A
R #20,000,0005T) °

N EMBRERADMEENRSSHE
REREEERRE T 2BEROT
ATHRF B - MRZARMZH
ERETTEROM o RIFERSHERE
WIEH  AEERS  RAEAELSE
BEZ SR - A - ZEFTREIR
FREARLDRROATEEMETE - M
FTRERBPREHETHENER
MEKFIEREEEEBEME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Financial Instruments continued)

C.

Fair values of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Certain of the Group's financial liability is measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair value of this financial liability is
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used).

34. BT A
c. MBIANAFE
EMEMEE IR G T SR I TR —
B AEMAHRENDTE -

SEMBRBH D FERUE
LEBITEN

SEE— LI A ER RS REIA
RTEFTEH « ATRBAGEH TEME

M5 B B A FE R 00 HEE B (

RIRETEIENBARNEIR)

Fair value (RMB'000)
AFEARYET )
asat asat  Fairvalue Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Financial liability 31 December 2016 31December 2015 hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
2016%£128318 2015128318
HEEE HATE NATE AVESE AEHONERRAEE EENTREBNBARE
Conversion option derivative 61,619 62,643 Level3 Binominal Tree Pricing Model ~ Binominal Tree Pricing Model
FEARITER E=E “XHEERE “XYEERY
The key inputs are: The input is:
1) US$ Risk Free Rate 1) Volatility: 41.87%
2) HKS Risk Free Rate BARE
3) Dividend Yield 1) REE
4) Underlying Asset Value
5) Exercise Price
6) Volatility
EELIN ¢ 8
1) EeEERE
2) EREEpE
3 RekaE
4 FTEAEER
5 1B
6 KB
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34. Financial Instruments continued) 4. T B

c. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial

c. BMBIEMNAFEE®

F-EROPBEEAHEFENRK

liability: e
RMB'000

ARBFT

At the date of issuance %17H 62,279
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss ERBEEAN DT EEL _
Exchange realignment T R 364
As at 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 62,643
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss TEERERHATERL (5,302)
Exchange realignment IE R EE 4,278
As at 31 December 2016 201612 H31H 61,619

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosure are required)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

35. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments.

SENUREENMBRETR
RERAFEKETEN(E
EEEQXVENEE)

BRI ABEA P ERED H I AER
BB (S IRE S REAER B
tATE -

i«(éé*ﬂhﬁ(

AEBEAEHBEA

R EEHRERE NEBHREFEE
BB AT RRFEBERK ©

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
Within one year —F R 27,581 15,575
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive E_ZhF(BIEERME) 40,206 39,475
After the fifth year FRFE 39,319 28,563
107,106 83,613

None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

36.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

35.

REHEEFH @
AEBIEAEBEA

R R4 RS - AEE RS AT B
51 58 0 7 T BN 7 3R 2 1 48 A TR 4 R
E‘g :

At 31 December

A12A31H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARTR ARET T
Within one year —F LR 25,325 23,457
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FFEERF(RIEEEMT) 41,801 68,704
After five years FRFE 9,450 -
76,576 92,161

Operating lease payments with terms of between 1 to 10 years,
represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.

REMENFTINF—FE2+F KRN
SEETHRLOEMERNES - HWEET
BREEAREEE REDE -

Commitments 36. EAREH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RS BRI AR - AEEB AT AR ¢
commitments:
At 31 December
®12H318
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
Contracted but not provided for in the BHEITARER R
consolidated financial statements: A ptmREP
Expenditure in respect of in progress land BRSFELABEENT Y
development arrangements 19,151 72,002
Expenditure in respect of properties under BREGEERPYENTH
development for sale 234,755 56,321
Expenditure in respect of investment BREEMENT T
properties 912 1,656
254,818 129,979

The commitments above at the end of the reporting period are to be
settled according to the progress of the future development of the
underlying projects which might not be necessarily incurred within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

VA |7 3 5 B R 4 SRS 1) 3B AN ARGE S 1R PR
HEABENARRERESHEE - 1BRIER
B E A AGE N —ER%ZE B HERm 1218 A
NEXE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

37.

38.

Contingent Liabilities

37.HEEE

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT
Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group AR&EE AEEERRITIZED
to banks in favour of its customers (note a) RIBEFER(W ) 968,211 786,015
968,211 786,015

Note:

a. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition, taking into
consideration the possibility of default by the relevant buyers and, in case
of default in payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can recover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in these consolidated financial statements for these guarantees.

Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government authority.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute specified rate of the
employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme ("MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules separately. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

ARREERS  AKENMBEREH
RTPERNEERHLTEKN - ZET
HEERBROARE  MEERER
IR - BEIMEN R B BFE A R R
BERBASMEN - ERER S RE
e Bt - BUERAKA M BEREARZ
SERIFHRAE -

o

38. R RERIGHE

SEETAMPEARAMBERARME
BMERARABAGF BN E - £ER
ERBEAEABRMEERERETIHNT
& R E R PIR R KR TR B
R - KRB E IR RRKE
SHEIBMAEOR

BREEEGEANERESNERERE
B REAMATERENEEEE TH
Bt AResTE(TRESE]) - %
AETHHMERGBILNEENIMERIE
SRBEHREMTA - RizRESE
BIEEREHFOHRRBEOEXRMEZ
sEIBMERIR - KREERES A BIPHE—
BB ERL R AR B TRIR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

39. Share-Based Payment Transactions

()

Details of the employee share option plan of
the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible
employees including Directors, employees, consultants, business
partners or advisers, to subscribe for shares in the Company. As
31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the Scheme was 90,750,000.

Among the total share options, one-third of which are exercisable
during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019, from 28
July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019,
respectively. The exercise price of HK$3.02 per share represents
a premium of 0.07% over the highest of (i) the closing price of
HK$2.80 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (i) the average
closing price of HK$3.018 per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The following share-based payment arrangements were in

39. URBABEBRN AR S

(i) =ARHEIFERGARES
EER
ARAHERUBEEARTHDETHE
8 20157 A21BBBYEEITT
NRIE MG BT B ([5%aT 8D - £
ZEEIT - AB AR TR
FHAOTEKENEL  BIEES -
B8 - BEMURRRIER LNAE
BHEZ  HE016F12A31H - &£
ZETEI T AREIINETHRGOEA
90,750,000 ©

ERARRENROEES =952 —
K EAEZE A 201657 A28 A =201947
B38BT BIN=5 2 —H A
201747 A28 B £201947 A31H1T
£ BT =52 — K ERER2018%F
7A28 A E20194F7 A31R1TfE - 174
ESRRMDBEIITE & ER
BEBO0.07%EEE : ()AL AHfE
EBMERSEBR AR ([BZAT])
FIEMET R RERMBHUHESR
PinBHE2.800T ¢ R(NHKEER LA
AT REEERERAMTENER
HREXRAHH TR T ETRRG S
#3.0187T °

RERPAFER AR RERA SR

existence as at 31 December 2016: ZH T ¢
Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise price
R NERESE BEBH ZEIH B 1THEME
72,000,000* 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 HK$3.02
201547 A28H 201947 A28H 7B#3.027T

The following share-based payment arrangements were in

20155 NPT AR AR R ETER 2

existence as at 31 December 2015: NZHaT
Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise price
IR A R A ZHH THEE
82,350,000 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 HK$3.02
201547 A28H 201947 A28H BH#3.027T

* Certain employees, who have been awarded 10,350,000 (2015:
8,400,000) share options were ceased their services with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Hence, these share
options will not vest under the employee share option plan.

* R2016F12A3NBILEFE - BHD
AR T A7 B#E 51 10,350,0008% -
LARA2015F12A3MBILLEFE - B
BB 1 % T AR 19 B 4 +£518,400,000
ARAOBE TN RIBER: - S LLATEIE
IR B T % B ThE
FTEINEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

39.Share-Based Payment Transactions
(Continued)
(ii) Fair value of share options granted

The fair values of the options determined at the date of grant using
the Binomial Model amounted to HK$46,581,000. The following
assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of share

39. MR AERNZINRZ @)

(i) AEERHORODHBENATF
=)
HEEAREYBOAFEARBE
46,581,0007T AR & — 18 B #E e (B 18
BIFFFEE R » LA N 2Rt EwE T

options: i EAtE A FEMRER -
Options granted
on 28 July 2015
BR 43 ERRE A
201567 H28H&EH
Grant date share price HK$2.80 per share
K RRE 712 80T E A
Exercise price HK$3.02 per share
TR FBHE3.027T A%
Expected volatility 37.73%
SER R EIES
Expected option life 3years
TEE R ERRES W 3%
Risk-free interest rate 3.00%
B A 5
Dividend yield 5.36%
g

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the Directors'
best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result
in changes in the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2016, the number of share in respect of which
options awarded outstanding under the Scheme was 72,000,000
(31 December 2015: 82,350,000). Included therein 26,350,000
(31 December 2015: Nil) share options are exercisable.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB9,149,000 for the
year (2015: RMB4,751,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.
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TAET AR EY R RARIE N BART S E
EsE AR EPAHIERY - TAET A BARES 7p
ERBEEEENSETENRGE
PIARE B TITRAEENSEMAT

=]
= °

— IR A F R R S
ORTAE - KA HRGBHAT E
SEURERPLENEIRE A A
S - BB RBROELH
SEHRGPRAT AN -

EHZE2016F 128318 + BRI ERRERI&
K #X & 572,000,0008% * & = 20154
12 4318 K% 482,350,000,/ A]
TTRERI% 81/526,350,000 % - 20154
ATEMBRE AT -

S BEER TR B EARFIERD
#EBRARARYS,149,0007T - 20154
K& 5 A AREA,751,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e PR MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. Disposal of a Subsidiary
In 2016, the Group has entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary of the
Group, for a consideration of RMB525,220,000.

40. ZEF 1T

20165 - AEERBIE=HEFTEH
HERENETARRE  XHERB/A
R #525,220,0007T °

The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of; HENBRRINFEEE :
RMB’000
ARBTT
Properties under development for sale FEHRTYXERE 156,602
Total net assets disposed of BEFEE 156,602
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 8) B ME A mdEs (F3Es) 368,618
Consideration received B EIHIRZ 5B R 525,220

In 2015, the Group has entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest in Langfang Gaodi, a
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of RMB30,480,000, of which
RMB12,267,000 was received during the year ended 31 December 2016.

E2015%F - AEEBEBUE=HHETEH
HESEENEB AR RSN ATE RE -
RSB AREES0,480,0007T © EF AR
#12,267,0007C B F 201612 A31 8 IEF
EueE -

The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of: HEM B ATRFEE -
RMB’000
ARET T
Properties under development for sale FEHRTYXEER 17,337
Trade and other payables JFESH AN EL A FE A 5R0E (21,424)
Total net assets disposed of BEFEE (4,087)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 8) BENBA R (H5ES) 34,567
Consideration receivable (note 25) R S8R FEMGRIA (Bi3E25) 30,480
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. Related Party Balances and Transactions
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant balances and significant
transactions carried out between the Group and (i) a company
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying, the spouse of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders, (i) an associate of the Group, (iii) immediate holding
company of the Group and (iv) the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders of
the Group. The transactions with these related parties were made on

terms agreed among the parties.

(@) Related party balances

Balances as at the end of each reporting period with related

4. BB EESRER S

BEeMBRREMBHREN  RER
MAEEEN T TBMETEAR SN
it (VEh B RS EREREEL L
HEORF] - (IDAEBEEZERF] () AEH
VBRI AR ¢ (V)RS E A &SRR
R RSWETT Z TR GRETT ©

(@) BAH L&A
7O ¥R o H 0 4 SR BB O 0 A

parties: 5
Amounts due from: PEWBAT X8 F0E -
At 31 December
MA12A31A
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFT
An associate: i dl/NG|
- Huarong Shengshi —EEFRAR - 3,606
Immediate holding company: BEERAT
— Profit East —FE 1,209 -

The above outstanding receivables to related parties are of non-
trade nature, denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and

recoverable on demand.

Amounts due to:

LR IR R EIEE S
B UARBHE  BEA - RER
AIRFWRE -

AT =870 ¢

At 31 December

MA12831H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
An associate: idol/NG
- Huayuan — R 22,179 3,104
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: Sl giid-
- Wang Jianjun —IE=E 200 -
Immediate holding company: BHEERATR
— Profit East —FE 44,657 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. Related Party Balances and Transactions

4. BB EESRRER S @

(Continued) (a) BHFEeR(E)

(a) Related party balances (continued) FitEAEEARFIEAE L -
The above outstanding payable to an associate is of trade nature, UABRKE - EIKIR > 2R WIEE
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable SKIBIE o Pl EN SAIEIRIRE I
on demand. The above outstanding payable to the Ultimate BIEZFMHE  AAREEE - mIK
Controlling Shareholder is of non-trade nature, denominated in # o REWEREREE - LENE
RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The BERARRIERAIFEZIE - UA
above outstanding payable to immediate holding company is REEHE - EmHEE - UEFEI%ET S
of non-trade nature, denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest WHE—FAEE -
bearing at 8% per annum and repayable within one year.

The following is an aged analysis of the outstanding payable with AL PR LR - RIEETRG
trade nature, presented based on service or payment received SUREIRENHE - HESHHEMNR
date, at the end of each of the reporting period: BRSO TOT
At 31 December
A12831H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARET T
Less than 1 year DME 19,075 -
2 to 3 years 2E3F - 3,104
3to 4 years 3EAF 3,104 -
22,179 3,104

(b) Related party transactions (b) BBEA RS
During the reporting period, the Group has transaction with its RANIRE BRI - AN S A 0 A
associate, Huayuan. Huayuan provided heat supply services to the BRFER S o FERMAAEBEIRHEEUE
Group with the transaction amount of RMB19,075,000 (2015: Nil) BR7% - HE2016F 12 A1 B FEHR
for the year ended 31 December 2016. S5 &8 A AREE19,075,0007T (20155

128318 : &) -
(C) The Ultimate Controlling Shareholders provided jointly guaranteed (C) mpERBERAREEIEIRESR

to the holders of the Convertible Bonds and Notes. Details are set
out in note 30.

ZENBEERERARER - FER
FMFE30 ©
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41.Related Party Balances and Transactions

(Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those senior management
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

A. BB EEBRRER S @

(d) EEZEEAEHH
FEEBRABRBENRBEAE
BERMERE BRI A EmE
BEBNERERE - TEEBAR
MFBT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 6,498 5,733
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme  R{KEFIEH 2R 170 130
Discretionary performance - related bonus — BYE3RIR —EMHTEAT 3,736 2,939
Share-based payment expense B EA 2,859 1,190
13,263 9,992

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's performance for
such financial year.

(e) Loan secured by a related party

AT TR E R B A MR
-

(e) EHEAHETSIRALEIFMER

At 31 December

#A12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Company controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying i EE A i A B
- Langfang Wantong - B B AR - 200,000
Loan secured by a related party s 5 B LI A0 B 3N = 200,000

The above outstanding loan received by the Group from a
PRC non-financial institution amounting to RMB200,000,000
was secured by certain assets of Langfang Wan Tong with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB381,820,000. This loan was fully
repaid in 2016.

LRERBSAEEATE KR
MEBRERE 2E/ARYE
200,000,0007T * #4f& TR A BB LT B HlHF
BHIERHE £ % AR #5381,820,0007T
MEEREER - ZERSRN20165F

2FMEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. i & A 7]
RBEHBLERE - XATHEEUTHE

42. Subsidiaries
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company has the following

subsidiaries: NGIE
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
TR ERTRARN
AR EH B BH R b5 BA/EMER AEBEGES TEER
At 31 December
W12A318
2016 2015
% %

Shing Cheong Holdings Ltd. BVI US$7,000 100 100 Investment holding
(notes ii) ("Shing Cheong holdings”) 12 April 2007 (Ordinary shares) BB

(HERRERAF) 2007547128 7,000 7T (&%)

China Vast International Ltd. BV US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
("China Vast International”) 8 November 2011 (Ordinary shares) RERRK

(PEZRERERBRLR) 2011411788 10,0005 7 (B R)

Sheng Shi International (HK) Hong Kong HK$297,180,000 100 100 Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd. 16 January 2006 (Ordinary shares) BB
("Sheng Shi") 2006513168 751297,180,0007T

(BB (B3 ERERRA) (k)

King Billion Corporation Ltd. Hong Kong HK$51,870,000 100 100 Investment holding
("King Billion") 19 April 2007 (Ordinary shares) REER

CkFHEBRDE) 200748198 J5151,870,0007T

(L@k)

Langfang VAST Urban Development PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Co., Ltd. (notesiand iv) 8 August 2005 (Paid-up capital) development of industrial
("Langfang VAST") 20058 A8H AR #150,000,0007T town projects

(BOTEREEMHRREBRRA) (BEEMER) RE A RERESE
(BzEiFTv) mHIER

Langfang City Property Development ~ PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes iand iv) 22 May 1995 (Paid-up capital) and provision of
("Langfang City Property”) 199545 A22R AR#150,000,0007T after sales service

(BYTHEENEREERAR) (B&EMER) MEBRRIFHERRY

(KtsEimniv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42, Subsidiaries (continued) 42. M B A Rl o)
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AR BRITRMEN
AR EB B B E R BA/ERER AEEELEER TEER
At 31 December
W12A318
2016 2015
% %

Langfang Vast Zhanyao Property PRC US$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 5 June 2007 (Paid-up capital) MELR
(notes iand v) 2007%6A50 29,800,000 7T
("Langfang Vast Zhanyao") (BEfMER)

(BHERBEREHMEERBBAR)

(BzEiFTiv)

Langfang Yongxie Property Service PRC US$100,000 100 100 Consulting and maintenance
Co., Ltd. (notesiand v) 5 June 2007 (Paid-up capital) service
("Langfang Yongxie Property”) 200756 A58 100,000 ¢ B RRERS

(B iBEERABRAR) (BEMER)

(BzEiFTiv)

Langfang Vast Zhuoyou Development ~ PRC US$6,550,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (notes i and v) 5 June 2007 (Paid-up capital) MERRE
("Langfang Vast Zhuoyou") 200756758 6,550,000 7T

(BHEREBEHMEERBBAR) (BEfMER)

(BizEiFTv)

Tangshan Zhanyao Property PRC US$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 June 2007 (Paid-up capital) MEERE
(notes iand v) 200768250 29,800,000 7T
("Tangshan Zhanyao") (BEMER)

(BLRBEHEREERAF)

(BzEiFTv)

Langfang Hongsheng (notesiandiv) ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
(BFMEREHERLERLA) 14 August 2007 (Paid-up capital) and property leasing
GEE) 200748148 AR #50,000,0007T MEBRRERYERE

(BEMER)

Langfang Honghao Investment Co., PRC RMB620,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Ltd. (notes i and iv) 7 July 2008 (Paid-up capital) BRI E
("Langfang Honghao Investment”) 200847 A7H AR #620,000,0007T

(BHmBZBERRAT) (BEMER)

(BizEiFTIv)

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continued) 42. M B A Rl s
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, ERTRARN
ek AR BA/ERER AEEEGES TEER
At 31 December
®12A318
2016 2015
% %

Langfang Yonglun Property PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development (notes i and iv) 14 July 2009 (Paid-up capital) PELRE

(BHmAkREHEREARAR) 20097 A 14H AR#10,000,0007T
(FzEiIRTvV) (BEMER)

Chengde Yonglun Real Estate PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 February 2010 (Paid-up capital) MERE
(notes i and iv) 201042786 AR#50,000,0007T
(“Chengde Yonglun”) (B&EMER)

(REmXREHEREARAR)

(FzEiITvV)

Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi PRC RMB162,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
Investment Co., Ltd. 4 August 2011 (Paid-up capital) and land resettlement
(notes i and iv) (“Langfang 2011E8A48 AE¥162,000,0007T HEELERERTHRE
Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment”) (BEMER)

(BmE A&t R EBRAR)

GE)

Langfang Hongtai Technology PRC RMBS5,100,000 100 100 Not yet commence business
Incubation Service Co., Ltd. 29 March 2013 (Paid-up capital) HARIREE
(notesiandiv) 201335298 AR™5,100,0007T
("Langfang Hongtai Technology”) (BEMER)

(B R REHE KR RS
BRAR) (V)

Chuzhou Vast Zhanyao Investment PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Business consulting service
Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) 26 August 2013 (Paid-up capital) WEE AR
("Chuzhou Vast Zhanyao") 2013585268 AR ®10,000,0007T

(BNERBREEBRAR) (B#MER)

(FzEiFTv)

Langfang Vast Park Service Co., PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Property leasing
Ltd. (notes i and iv) 8 October 2013 (Paid-up capital) LIEE-

("Langfang Vast Park”) 2013%F10A8H AR ®1,000,0007T

(BHmERERREERAF) (B&MER)

(FzEiIRTvV)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

Issued and

42. M B A Rl o)

incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, BRITRMEN
AR EB R ARk BA/ERER AEEELEER TEER
At 31 December
W12A318
2016 2015
% %

Langfang Goodman Vast Park Service  PRC US$30,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure maintenance
Co., Ltd. (notesiand v) (“Langfang 12 April 2012 (Paid-up capital) service
Goodman Vast Park Service”) 201247128 30,000,000 T HRER i R R T

(BHEREEERREERAT) (B&EMER)

Beijing Vast Zhanyao Investment Co.,, ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Project investment, lease,
Ltd. (notes i and iv) 29 April 2014 (Paid-up capital) consulting and asset
("Beijing Zhanyao Investment”) 2014547298 AR #500,00070 management

(ARERERREERAF) (B&EMER) BEREREENR

Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial Urban PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. 11 December 2014 (Paid-up capital) development of industrial
(notes iand v) 20145128118 20,000,000 7T town projects
("Zhangjiakou Vast") (BEEMER) TXEEMEEIRENER

(RRABREFMERREBART)

Shenzhen Foresea Vast Development  PRC - 100 100 Not yet commence business
Co., Ltd. 1 January 2015 (Paid-up capital) WAFRREE
(notes i and iv) (“Foresea Vast") 2015%1A18 (BAMER)

CRITmRIE R RERBRAF)

Hebei Vast Investment PRC RMB99,630,000 100 100 Not yet commence business
Development Co., Ltd. 21September 2015 (Paid-up capital) WARREE
(notes i, and v) 2015F9A21H AR#99,630,0007T
("Hebei Vast Investment”) (BEEMER)

(T ERBEEERBRAT)

Beijing Vast Zhihui Technical PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Property leasing and
Service Co., Ltd. (notes iand iv) 29 September 2015 (Paid-up capital) Internet information
("Beijing Vast zhihui") 2015894298 AR ™5,000,0007T technology service

(ERERBENBREERAR) (BEEMER) MEBEMBEEE

ZERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continueq) 42. B A Fl o)

Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, ERTRARN
ek AR BA/ERER AEEEGES TEER
At 31 December
®12A318
2016 2015
% %

Shenzhen Vast Zhihui Technical PRC RMB3,000,000 100 100 Property leasing and
Service Co., Ltd. (notes iand iv) 30 October 2015 (Paid-up capital) Internet information
("Shenzhen Vast Zhihui") 2015104308 AR 3,000,00070 technology service

(M ZREEHBREERAT) (BHEMER) MERENBEELS

RS

Shijiazhuang Vast Urban PRC RMB47,882,000 100 N/A~ Planning, design
Development Co., Ltd. 1 January 2016 (Paid-up capital) and development
(notes i, ivand vi) 2016F 1818 AR #47,882,0007C of industrial town project
("Shijiaznuang Vast") (B&EMER) RE R RERE

(RRENEREXTRERABBRRR) EXTMHEER

Ezhou Vast Urban Development PRC RMB53,381,000 100 N/A  Planning, design
Co., Ltd. (notes i, iv and vi) 25 January 2016 (Paid-up capital) and development
("Ezhou Vast”) 2016F1A25H AR 53,381,0007C of industrial town project

(FNEREEXTHERARAT) (B&EMER) RE R REE

EXMHEER

Hong Kong Brightup Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$1 100 N/A  Property leasing
(notes i, vand vi) 1 April 2016 (Paid-up capital) MERE
("Hong Kong Brightup”) 20164518 BB

(BR(EE)BERRA) (BAEHMER)

Langfang Shengshi Tonghui Park PRC RMB1,000,000 100 N/A  Infrastructure and
Development Co., Ltd. 6May 2016 (Paid-up capital) maintenance service
(notes i, iv and vi) 20165568 ARH1,000,0007T EPR I R 4 E RS
("Shengshi Tonghui") (BEMER)

(EHPREAEERRRER
BRAR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42, Subsidiaries (continued) 42. M B A Rl o)
Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, BRITRMEN
AR EB R ARk BA/ERER AEEELEER TEER
At 31 December
W12A318
2016 2015
% %

Shenzhen Foresea Vast Zhihui PRC RMB12,500,000 100 N/A  Equity investment
Equity Investment Fund 20 May 2016 (Paid-up capital) RRERE
Management Co., Ltd. 2016F5H208 AR #12,500,0007T
(notes i, ivand vi) (B&EMER)

(“Shenzhen Foresea Vast”)

(RYTRISERREERERE
HEEEBRARAR)

Langfang VAST Industrial Urban PRC RMB100,000 100 N/A  Industrial town consulting
Services Co., Ltd. 27 June 2016 (Paid-up capital) EEMERS
(notes i, ivand vi) 2016F6 4278 AR#100,0007T
("Langfang Vast Service”) (BEEfMErR)

(B mEREXMEREBRAT)

Shijiazhuang Guochuang Vast PRC RMB4,000,000 i N/A Not yet commence business
Information Technology Service 18 July 2016 (Paid-up capital) MRS E
Co., Ltd. (notes i, iv and vi) 20167 A188 AR #4,000,0007C
(“Shijiazhuang Guochuang Vast”) (B&EMER)

(RREEEI R R {E B RITRE
BRRAE)

Beijing Chuangheng Shengshi PRC RMB20,100,000 100 N/A Not yet commence business
Construction Development 17 August 2016 (Paid-up capital) HAFREE
Co., Ltd. (notes , ivand vi) 2016F8A17H AR#20,100,0007T
(“Bejjing Chuangheng Shengshi”) (B&EMER)

(LREIERTREBRERAR)

Shijiazhuang Gaocheng Vast Urban PRC RMB30,000,000 100 N/A  Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. 19 August 2016 (Paid-up capital) development of industrial
(notes i, iv and vi) 2016F8A19A ARH30,000,0007T town project
(“Shijiazhuang Gaocheng") (B&EMER) HE - BT REREEME

(BRUETEAEREEMRRS E!

BRATE)

B RS AE ¥ Wi E AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continueq) 42. B A Fl o)

Place and date of  Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, ERTRARN
ek AR BA/ERER AEEEGES TEER
At 31 December
®12A318
2016 2015
% %

Shijiazhuang Shengxin Weichuang PRC RMB20,000,000 100 N/A~ Planning, design and
Development Co., Ltd. Planning, 30 August 2016 (Paid-up capital) development of industrial
design and Development Co., Ltd. 201628 A30A AR #20,000,0007T town project
(notes, ivand vi (EgEmER) B R REREETE
("Shijiazhuang Shengxin”) 5]

(RRENEBEARRERBRLR)

Langfang Hongtu Property PRC - 100 N/A Not yet commence business
Development Co., Ltd. 28 October 2016 (Paid-up capital) MR
(notes i, ivand vi) 2016104288 (B&EMER)

("Langfang Hongtu")

(BHmEEREFHEREEBRAT)

Langfang Hongtu Jiatai Property PRC - 100 N/A~ Not yet commence business
Development Co., Ltd. 28 October 2016 (Paid-up capital) HARRIRE?

(notes i, ivand vi) 2016104288 (B&EMER)
("Langfang Hongchang")

(BhmEEERRHEREERAR)

Hubei Zhihuigang Technology PRC - 100 N/A Not yet commence business
Incubation Service Co., Ltd. 25 November 2016 (Paid-up capital) MRS
(notes i, ivand vi) ("Hubei Znihui) 20162113258 (B&EMER)

O BB RARAR)

Zhangjiekou Taichuanggu Technology ~ PRC RMB40,000,000 100 N/A~ Consulting and lease
Incubation Service Co., Ltd. 30 November 2016 (Paid-up capital) HANEE
(notes i, iv and vi) 2016F11A30H AR #40,000,0007C
("Zhangjiekou Taichuanggu”) (B#EMER)

(RROZEIARREERH S
ARAAE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z£2016F 12 H31H i F/&

42. Subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of

Issued and

42. M B A Rl o)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
ML, BRITRMEN
AR EB R ARk BA/ERER AEEELEER TEER
At 31 December
M12A318
2016 2015
% %

Langfang Shengshi Yingjie Property ~ PRC - 100 N/A~ Not yet commence business

Development Co., Ltd. 7 December 2016 (Paid-up capital) HARRRES

(notes i, ivand vi) 201612778 (BEFMER)

(“Shengshi Yingjie")
(B Mt R ERE AR AT)
Langfang Renxin Property PRC - 100 N/A~ Not yet commence business

Development Co., Ltd. 7 December 2016 (Paid-up capital) HARRES

(notes i, ivand vi) 201612778 (BEHAMER)

("Langfang Renxin")
(BHmCEEMEREERAR)
Notes: PAE -

English name for identification only. R TR

ii. Shing Cheong Holdings is directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

iil. None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

iv.  These subsidiaries are domestic wholly-owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

V. These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

vi.  These subsidiaries were established during the year ended 31 December
2016.

208 FEFEHEEHEEEARAF China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Vi.

MEEBAARRERFHE - HHBEA
RIAARRMEREE

REL - BEARTRWBRRETEMNE

FETE o

ZEWBARARTEKRINBABE R

ZEMBE R ARPEKRININEBED

ZEMBRREEE2016F12A31BHAK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Subsidiaries (continueq) 42. B A Fl o)

\g

Composition of the Group SEREERK
Place of

incorporation/ Number of

establishment wholly-owned

and operation subsidiaries
Principal activity REEK A AR it REBETRATANEE

2016 2015
Investment holding ERICE BVI 2
Investment holding PERIRE Hong Kong 2
Property leasing EEMRE Hong Kong 1
Planning, design and development T¥REBEES PRC 7
of industrial town projects RETAERE
Property development FEEmME PRC 7
Infrastructure investment ERRERE PRC 4
Project investment, lease, consulting HE®RE  HE PRC 2
and asset management BRAMEEER
Consulting and maintenance service R ER PRC 3
Internet information technology service Bz BEFRIRIE PRC 2
Not yet commence business AL E PRC 11
a1 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

43. RN T B AR R
BBEARRQRN2016F12 A31H I F Bk R

43. Financial Information of the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company as

210 FEFEHEEHEEEARAF China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

at 31 December 2016 is as follows:

REARIT :

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary MM E AR E 1,627,033 1,627,033
Current asset RENVEE
Bank balances and cash RITERRIES 17,282 57,501
Total assets wEE 1,644,315 1,684,534
Current liabilities MEAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEUSFT B~ RZRTE 354,373 5,882
Amounts due to a related party FE{REES 5 508 44,657 -
Other payables H AR RIE 255 -
Bank and other borrowings $RIT RHEMBIEFR - 225,722
399,285 231,604
Net current liabilities MENBEFE (382,003) (174,103)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERREARE 1,245,030 1,452,930
Non-current liabilities FERBBIE
Convertible Bonds and Notes EEELRERE 652,740 579,714
Derivative PTESFETA 61,619 62,643
714,359 642,357
Net assets FEE 530,671 810,573
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital &N 13,031 13,031
Reserves s 517,640 797,542
Total equity flibed 530,671 810,573




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) \
e EEmRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12531 H 1 F/Z

43.Financial Information of the Company 43. 72 B8R R )

(Continued)
Information about the statement of change in equity of the Company R AN EE B AR E = 2016F 12 A 31 H #y4
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows: =EERNAT ¢
Share
Share Share option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R RARE REDE RitER B3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ETR N AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 818 13,031 1,058,359 - (31,811) 1,039,579
Loss and total comprehensive FRBBRZARTHE
expense for the year - - - (35,940) (35,940)
Dividend distribution REAE - (197,817) - - (197,817)
Recognition of equity-settled S EEER
share-based payments - - 4,751 - 4,751
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12831H 13,031 860,542 4,751 (67,751) 810,573
Loss and total comprehensive FRABBREZERYASE
expense for the year - - - (149,087) (149,087)
Dividend distribution REAE - (139,964) - - (139,964)
Recognition of equity-settled RS EEER
share-based payments - - 9,149 - 9,149
At 31 December 2016 72016128318 13,031 720,578 13,900 (216,839) 530,671
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFPRBERYE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the — AREEZA AASREE 2 EEREE N B E]
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is ~ E&EFI0T + Jyi8sk A L BAZI SR o
set out below.

Results E47

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBFrT ARETT AREBTT

Revenue e 1,965,181 1,423,706 2,391,205 1,212,904 467,452
Gross profit EF 624,395 610,983 1,128,092 818,192 130,469
Profit before tax R Tt AT S 941,317 680,964 931,647 799,461 265,762
Income tax expense FRERiF (272,945) (167,383) (231,049) (36,000) (37,748)
Net profit for the year FRF A 668,372 513,581 700,598 763,461 228,014
Total comprehensive income FRARTHEAA
attributable to owners of the (RS R 2
Company for the year W ia g 692,413 513,581 700,598 763,461 228,014
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As of 31 December
MA12831A
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,169,583 1,217,959 925,741 996,305 1,087,733
Current assets MEVEEE 9,156,829 7,091,304 6,014,520 5,757,628 4,397,582
Total assets EEBE 11,326,412 8,309,263 6,940,261 6,753,933 5,485,315
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3,844,398 2,214,954 1,138,756 1,452,599 1,066,026
Current liabilities mEAaE 4,097,133 3,272,986 3,300,697 4,603,332 4,484,103
Total liabilities BfEesE 7,941,531 5,487,940 4,439,453 6,055,931 5,550,129
Equity attributable to owners PN/NGIEZZ SN

of the Company FE(G AR 3,383,535 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002 (64,814)
Non-controlling interest PR i 1,346 - - - -
Total Equity 4R RE 3,384,881 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002 (64,814)
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